
 
 

Board Meeting 

Wednesday 26 August 2020 at 5.30pm 

 

The meeting will be held through a MS-Team online conference as provided for in article 71 of the 

Articles of Association. See the Basecamp post for the specific arrangements. 

 

Agenda 

1) Welcome and apologies 

 

2) Declarations of interest 

 

3) Minute of the Board meeting of Wednesday 29 July 2020  

   

4) Matters arising (paper enclosed)        

    

5) Business development 

a) Performance Digest for the period 1 April to 30 June 2020 (enclosed) 

b) Delivery Plan Progress to date (report enclosed) 

c) Minute of the Development Committee of 12 August 2020 (enclosed) 

 

6) Housing management activity 

a) Policy reviews (paper enclosed) 

 

7) Property maintenance activity 

• No additional items 

 

8) Financial matters 

a) Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2020 (enclosed) 

b) SHR ACS Return for the year to 31 March 2020 (enclosed) 

c) OSCR return for the year to 31 March 2020 (enclosed) 

 

9)   Operational matters (paper enclosed) 

a) Sustainability Policy annual review (paper enclosed) 

b) Annual Assurance Statement (paper enclosed) 

         

10)    Any other business 

a) Publication of Board papers 

b) Date of the next Board meeting – Wednesday 28 October 2020 
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Minute of the Board meeting held on Wednesday 29 July 2020 at 5.30pm via MS Teams 

 

Present:  Tenant Members 

   Frances Maguire 

   Kenny George 

Amanda Bryan 

          

   Community Members 

Simon Leslie  

Rhonda Leith 

   Bobby Pyper  

   David Porte 

   Mike Tomlinson 

   Gemma Collin 

    

   In Attendance 

   Jim Whiston  

Kirsty Broadfoot  

David McGivern  

Alan Park – Minutes 

Jim Purvis 

Caroline Donald 

   

1. Apologies 

Apologies were received from Georgina Dawson and Myra Nicol It was noted that 

Margaret Campbell had decided to resign from the Board with immediate effect for 

personal reasons. Jim will draft a letter of thanks for Simon to send on behalf of the 

Board.  

 

2. Declarations of interest 

No matters were raised. 

 

3. Minute of the Board meeting held on Wednesday 24 June 2020 

 The Minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2020 were accepted as a true record 

and were proposed by Amanda Bryan and seconded by Bobby Pyper. 

 

4. Matters arising 

 Jim updated the Board on an outstanding matter, now resolved, relating to the issue 

of a gas safety certificate for a property in Maybole. 

 

 
 

Board Meeting – Wednesday 26 August 2020 

 

Agenda Item: 3 

 

Subject: Minutes of Board Meeting 29 July 2020 

 

Prepared by: Kirsty Broadfoot 
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 A list of all committees will be issued with the new prospectus for the forthcoming 

new Board session.  

  

 

5. Business Development 

 

a) Annual Performance Reporting (papers enclosed) 

Caroline reported on the Digest and the ARC Return and confirmed that 

there had been no fundamental change in our overall level of performance.  

Caroline highlighted various areas of interest within the reports and drew 

the Board’s attention to new statistics gathered this year. 

 

After consideration, the Board approved the ARC Return for submission to 

the Scottish Housing Regulator (SHR). 

 

On behalf of the Board, Simon thanked Caroline for her work and to the 

entire staff group for the good performance disclosed in the reports. 

 

b) Minute of the Development Committee of 24 June 2020 (enclosed) 

The Board noted the Minute of the above meeting. 

 

6. Housing management activity 

 

  Nothing to report. 

  

7.  Property maintenance activity 

a) Asset Management Plan Review  

 

David provided the Board with a summary of the key points and potential 

variations to the plan dependent on budget availability and reviews of some 

current predicted replacement cycles.    

 

David provided an update on EESSH2 requirements and mentioned that it may 

be quite challenging to find ways of improving the energy efficiency of the stock 

without recourse to developing technologies. 

 

Simon asked if we had any idea of what costs may be involved. David suggested 

that as, yet we don’t know how far the social housing sector will be expected to 

go towards the ideal position of B rating.  The minimum rating is a D which is 

achievable for the association.  Due to the reliance on new and emerging 

technologies,  it is very difficult to predict likely costs at this stage. 

 

Amanda pointed out that rent increases to cover this type of expenditure may 

lead to far greater expectations on behalf of the tenants on other tenancy 

related matters. 

 

The Board approved the revised plan. 
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8.  Financial matters 

   

a) Loan Portfolio Return as at 31 March 2020  

Alan explained the annual requirement to make this return which is 

part of the desk top risk assessment undertaken by the SHR.  It 

details all loans and covenant position within each and collects 

certain other information to allow their review to take place. 

Alan confirmed that the total outstanding agrees to the figure which 

will appear in our Annual Accounts once completed. 

The Board approved the submission of the Loan Portfolio Return to 

the SHR. 

 

b) Five Year Financial Projections from 2020/21 to 2024/25  

Alan described the process applied in preparing the projections 

based on the outturn for 2019/20 and the inclusion of the agreed 

development programme. 

Alan highlighted various areas within the figures and assumptions 

and confirmed that they are very much in line with previous 

projections and the ratios are consistent with previous versions.  Alan 

highlighted the increased arrears and bad debt write offs in response 

to the economic impact of the pandemic. 

Alan explained that the SHR have extended the deadline for 

submission of this return due to the pandemic and suggested that 

whilst the Board may decide to approve the current version 

presented tonight it may be prudent to delay submission in case 

anything significant changes in the next few weeks that may change 

our outlook. 

The Board approved the projections and the proposal to delay 

submission in case the projections need revised.  It was agreed that 

if that is the case Alan will rework the figures and seek revised 

approval prior to submission.  

c) Management Accounts for the three months to 30 June 2020  

Alan provided details of the income and expenditure for the first 3 

months of the new financial year and highlighted the impact that the 

enforced lockdown had had on the maintenance expenditure.  He 

confirmed that the phased budget had been adjusted to reflect lower 

activity on the basis that spend will likely pick up as we return to 

levels of activity more in line with the norm. 

 

There are no areas of concern and all the covenants have been met.  

We closed the first quarter of the financial year with £203k more 

cash than our opening position. 

 

The Board approved the management accounts for the quarter 

ended 30 June 2020.  

 

 

9.  Operational matters 

Jim covered the Coronavirus issues and noted the very good arrears 

performance and highlighted to the Board our overall high ranking 

relative to other housing associations in Scotland. Jim has reissued 
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refreshed guidance notes to staff which includes dealing with work 

in tenant’s homes and other onsite work. Over the coming months 

we will review our methods of communication and consider what 

different methods we could use. Jim’s view is that returning to the 

office will not happen in the short term other than the continued 

small and limited presence. We will also look at the long-term 

working arrangements for staff taking cognisance of all relevant 

Health and Safety guidance. 

 

Jim reported that the current tender arrangements have been 

modified to take account of current restrictions. Kenny asked if this 

will be dealt with at the next development committee on 12 August 

and Jim thought that would be possible. 

 

The Chairs for all the committees need to be decided and it is hoped 

that this will be finalised prior to the new session starting. 

 

Eydent Chairs and CEOs had met, and the option of joint Board 

sessions had been raised.  They are also looking at ways of 

enhancing communication with prospective tenants and tenants 

electronically. 

 

The AGM will take place online and the mechanics of this will be 

covered at next month’s meeting.  There are 3 candidates for the 3 

vacancies in the tenant category which means we will not require an 

election this year.  In the community category we have 7 applicants 

for 2 places, and we will issue the ballot papers in due course. 

 

 

a) Complaints and Compliments  

Kirsty provided a comprehensive review of the paper and highlighted 

the increase in the number of reported complaints.  This was due to 

staff having received training to be able to better identify what 

constitutes a complaint which should then be logged. Most of the 

complaints relate to service delivery. 

 

We have also received a good number of compliments and hope to 

see the number increase from year to year.  

 

 

10.  Any other business 

 

Simon had some matters to discuss with the Board and invited the staff 

present to leave the meeting. 

 

Simon updated the Board on the progress of a notifiable event that had 

previously been reported to the Regulator. 

 

 10a.  Publication of Board papers  

It was agreed that all papers could be published apart from the SHR 

financial returns. 
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10b. Date of next Board meeting  

Wednesday 26 August 2020. 

 

 

There was no further business and the meeting closed at 6.55pm with a vote of 

thanks to the Chair. 

 

 

 

 

Signed       Dated 
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Board Meeting – Wednesday 26 August 2020 

 

Agenda item: 4 

 

Subject:  Matters arising including outstanding matters from earlier meetings 

 

 Prepared by Jim Whiston 

 

 

  

 

Ref Date Subject Progress Complete? Due by Board: 

B490 29 July 2020 Letter of thanks to Margaret 

Campbell 

Issued and flowers sent Yes August 2020 

B491      

  

Completed Items will be removed from the following month’s report. An archive of previous reports is retained for reference within the bound Board 

papers. 
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PERFORMANCE DIGEST 

FOR THE 3 MONTHS  

TO 30th JUNE 2020 
 

 

This performance digest is intended to give Board members a clear picture of day to day activity 

against the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) listed in the delivery plan section of our 

Business Plan. KPIs cover all the key areas for the association in terms of day to day service 

delivery and income generation. In addition, there are KPIs for financial performance, new 

business and governance. 

 

The KPIs for housing management and maintenance are intended to ensure that the 

standards set in the Scottish Social Housing Charter are met. Thus, in the Digest these 

indicators are listed under the relevant Charter outcomes. We report each year on our 

performance to the Scottish Housing Regulator in the Annual Report on the Charter (ARC). 

 

There are some Charter outcomes that cannot meaningfully be reported on a quarterly basis. 

This is particularly the case where the outcome sought is of a more qualitative nature. We will 

for example report on the following outcomes on an annual basis: equalities, tenant 

participation, tenancy sustainment, complaints and housing quality. 

 

We will also report more fully on business development performance as part of our quarterly 

and annual delivery plan reviews. 

 

If performance is below a KPI an explanation will be provided together with details of any 

corrective action in separate reports.  An up to date picture on gas maintenance issues arising 

from the Coronavirus restrictions, this is reported in a separate report.  
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GETTING GOOD VALUE FROM RENTS AND SERVICE CHARGES 
 

CHARTER OUTCOME 13: VALUE FOR MONEY 

Social landlords manage all aspects of their business so that: 

- Tenants, owners and other customers receive services that provide continually improving 

value for the rent and other charges they pay. 

 

 KPI: Current non-technical arrears no more than 1.75% of total gross rent.  

• For the year to 31st March 2020 our current tenant non-technical arrears were 0.84%. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 20 our current tenant non-technical arrears were 0.95%   

 

 

 
 

NON-ARC INDICATOR 

Given the impact of the Covid-19 

pandemic on the economy and 

household incomes and the 

consequent sharp and steep rise 

e.g. of UC claimants, this 

performance has been excellent 

and huge recognition of the efforts 

of staff in helping tenants address 

these impacts and maximise their 

incomes and entitlements as 

appropriate. 

This level of performance places us 

among the highest performers in 

the sector at the present time. 

 

 KPI: Void rent loss for mainstream properties of no more than 0.8% of total rent due. 

• For the year to 31st March 2020 our rent loss was 0.4% of the total rent due. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 2020 our rent loss was 0.2% of the total rent due. 

 

 
 

INDICATOR 18 

This is higher than the void rent 

loss we have previously 

experienced over a 3 month period 

and is directly due to the 

restrictions on lettings imposed as 

a consequence of the Covid-19 

pandemic. 

 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE 
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ACCESS TO HOUSING 
 

CHARTER OUTCOME 10: ACCESS TO SOCIAL HOUSING 

Social landlords ensure that: 

- People looking for housing find it easy to apply for the widest choice of social housing 

available and get the information they need on how the landlord allocates homes and on 

their prospects of being housed.  

 

 

ARC INDICATOR 17 - Percentage of lettable houses which became vacant in the last year. 

 

In the 3 months to 30th June 2020, 19 mainstream properties became vacant, 1.22% of our 

lettable stock.  Of the stock which became vacant: 

 

01 Transferred to another Ayrshire Housing property.  

01 Moved to a Local Authority house. 

01 Moved to a private landlord/other.   

07 As the result of the death of a tenant. 

02 As a result of financial hardship. 

01 Tenant moved to a care home. 

02 Purchased a property. 

01 Unknown.  

03 Moved in with family. 

 

During this period a further 3 properties became vacant.  All three were temporary furnished. 

These terminations are excluded from ARC indicators.  

 

 

ARC INDICATOR C2 - the number of lets during the reporting year by source of let 

 

In the 3 months to 30th June 2020 we let 13 mainstream properties.  In the same period to 30th 

June 2019 we had let 62 properties.  

 

These lets are broken down as follows: 

 

          
      

In addition, 2 temporary furnished lets were made during the 3 months to 30th June 2020.  

 

10

23

6

7

16

To 30th June 2019

Existing Tenants Housing List

Mutual Exchanges Other Sources

Nominations

1

4

06

2

To 30th June 2020

Existing Tenants Housing List

Mutual Exchanges Section 5

Nominations
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KPI: Housing application processing within 10 days and 40% of applications made online. 

• Average processing time for the year to 31st March 2020 – 6 days (98% within target).  

35% of applications were on-line, against our annual target of 40%. 

• Average processing time for the 3 months to 30th June 20 – 5 days (100% within 

target).  80% of applications were on-line, against our annual target of 40%. 

 

345 applications were processed during the 3 months to 30th June 2020.  

 3,106 applicants were on our waiting list at 30th June 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

KPI: Void re-let time 16 days or less. 

• For the year to 31st March 2020 our average re-let time was 16.7 days. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 20 our average re-let time was 44.2 days. 

 

In addition, we let 2 temporary furnished properties with an average re-let time of 34 days 

these lets are not included in the above KPI.  

 

 

 
 

ARC Indicator 30 

The re-let times for the first quarter 

are directly attributable to the 

restrictions on lettings activities as 

a result of Covid-19. 

 

These restrictions were not only 

internal with regard to our own staff 

being unable to process voids, but 

also due to our contractors, who 

also had significantly scaled back 

their resources and who were only 

responding to emergency works 

requests. 

 

Towards the end of the quarter 

there was some increase in 

“essential” lets which mainly 

related to housing homeless 

persons to assist local authorities 

and provide some relief on the 

increased demand for temporary, 

as well as permanent, 

accommodation as the pandemic 

spread. 
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NEIGHBOURHOOD AND COMMUNITY 
 

CHARTER OUTCOME 6: ESTATE MANAGEMENT, ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, NEIGHBOUR 

NUISANCE AND TENANCY DISPUTES 

Social landlords, working in partnership with other agencies, help to ensure as far as reasonably 

possible that: 

- Tenants and other customers live in well-maintained neighbourhoods where they feel 

safe.  

 

ARC INDICATOR 22 

 

 To 31st 

March 20 

To 30th 

June 20 

• The total number of court actions initiated during the reporting year. 

• The number of properties recovered (rent had not been paid).   

• The number of properties recovered (anti-social behaviour) 

• The number of properties recovered (other reasons) 

5 

0 

0 

1 (20%) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

 
During the 3 months to 30th June 2020, 1 Notice of Proceedings was issued.  No Orders for 

Recovery of Possession were granted.  

 

ARC INDICATOR 15 

Anti-social behaviour complaints cover a variety of issues.  We aim to respond to these within 

specific timescales.  The vast majority of these complaints are resolved during the reporting 

period.  However, on occasion due to the nature of the behaviour and ongoing relationships 

between neighbours it can prove difficult to resolve them within a set target and in such 

instances it requires a lengthy process of monitoring and management before the case can be 

“closed”.   During the reporting period we resolved 69 (82.14%) of ASB cases reported.  15 

cases remained open all of which were due to be resolved during July 2020. 

 

 Cases Reported Resolved in the 

Year or Reporting 

Period 

Year to 31st March 2020 241 236 

Period to 30th June 2020 84 69 

 

The ARC no longer looks at cases resolved within locally agreed targets, but we continue to 

record this.  In the 3 months to 30th June 2020, 66 complaints were resolved within locally 

agreed targets (78.57%). 
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HOUSING QUALITY AND MAINTENANCE 
 

CHARTER OUTCOME 5: REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENTS 

Social landlords manage their business so that: 

- Tenants’ homes are well maintained, with repairs and improvements carried out when 

required, and tenants are given reasonable choices about when work is done.  

 

 

  

KPI: 97% attendance within 4 hours and average emergency completion time within 3 hours. 

• For the year to 31st March 2020 we completed 92.3% of emergency jobs on time and 

the average completion time was 2.8 hours. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 2020 we completed 79.5% of emergency jobs on time 

and the average completion time was 26.9 hours. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

ARC Indicator 8 

Due to the pandemic the 

association restricted repairs to 

emergency or “essential” works 

only. Some of the “essential” jobs 

may not have been strictly 

emergencies and the impact of not 

responding within 4 hours would 

have been less severe. 

 

Our contractors had reduced their 

staffing levels and this also 

impacted on their capacity for 

responding within the target 

timescales, however it is still worth 

noting that 4 out of 5 jobs were 

completed within target. 

 

 

  

     REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE PERFORMANCE 
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 KPI: 96% of non-emergency repairs (NER) completed on time and an average NER 

completion time within 6 days.  

• For the year to 31st March 2020 we completed 87.5% of NER jobs on time and the 

average NER time was 7.2 days. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 2020 we completed 86.0% of NER jobs on time and 

the average NER time was 8.3 days. 

 

 

 

 

 

ARC Indicator 9 

As explained under ARC Indicator 8 

(above) we had to restrict the 

repairs we ordered to only 

emergency or “essential” jobs due 

to restrictions imposed on us and 

our contractors in response to the 

pandemic. This directly impacted 

contractors’ performance with 

regards to response times. 

 

 KPI: 90% of all applicable repairs completed Right First Time (RFT).   

• For the year to 31st March 2020 we completed 85.6% of all applicable repairs RFT. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 2020 we completed 86.0% of all applicable repairs 

RFT. 

 

 

 

 

 

ARC Indicator 10 

This remains a difficult indicator to 

measure and reported 

performance figures are subject to 

review as the year progresses. 

There are also inconsistencies 

across the sector as to how this 

indicator is calculated and 

reported but, unfortunately, the 

Scottish Housing Regulator has 

not taken heed of the feedback it 

has received from organisations 

regarding these matters. 

 

Notwithstanding these issues, we 

are slightly under target and this 

will continue to be raised with our 

contractors. 
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 KPI: 95% of all appointments kept.   

 

• For the year to 31st March 2020 we kept 96.8% of repairs appointments. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 2020 we kept 100.0% of repairs appointments.   

 

KPI: 60% of all jobs have an appointment. 

 

• During the period 5 appointments were made and kept.  

 

 

 

 KPI: 90% satisfaction with the repairs service. 

• For the year to 31st March 2020 tenant satisfaction with the repairs service was 

93.1%. 

• For the 3 months to 30th June 2020, no tenant satisfaction surveys were issued.   
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION INDICATORS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

19 surveys were issued to tenants who had contact with our Money Advice Service and whose 

cases were closed prior to 31st December 2019, 9 responded (47%). 

 

 Yes No 

Would you use the Money Advice Service again? 100% - 

Have you felt any benefits from your involvement with our Money Advice 

Service? 

100% - 

Were you satisfied with the outcome? 100% - 

 

 
 

 

 Very 

Satisfied 

Fairly 

Satisfied 

Neither Fairly 

Dissatisfied 

Very 

Dissatisfied 

Were you satisfied with the time it 

took for your Money Advice Officer 

to get in touch with you? 

100% - - - - 

Were you satisfied with your 

appointment and the options that 

you were given to get in contact 

with the Money Advice Staff? 

100% - - - - 

Were you satisfied that your 

Money Advice Officer was 

professional, courteous and 

knowledgeable? 

100% - - - - 

 

55 surveys were issued to tenants who had contact with our Money Advice Service and whose 

cases were closed prior to 30th June 2020, 6 responded (11%). 

 

 Yes No 

Would you use the Money Advice Service again? 83% 17% 

Have you felt any benefits from your involvement with our Money Advice 

Service? 

83% 17% 

Were you satisfied with the outcome? 83% 17% 

 

 

 

MONEY ADVICE 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION INDICATORS 
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 Very 

Satisfied 

Fairly 

Satisfied 

Neither Fairly 

Dissatisfied 

Very 

Dissatisfied 

Were you satisfied with the time it 

took for your Money Advice Officer 

to get in touch with you? 

66% 17% 17% - - 

Were you satisfied with your 

appointment and the options that 

you were given to get in contact 

with the Money Advice Staff? 

66% 17% 17% - - 

Were you satisfied that your 

Money Advice Officer was 

professional, courteous and 

knowledgeable? 

83% - 17% - - 

 

 

SOME OF THE COMMENTS 

WE RECEIVED WERE: 

 

 

 

 

 

  

“I found Wendy very helpful and she told me 

about benefits I was due. She was so much 

help in getting me the benefits.  Well done 

Wendy”. 

 

“The lady I deal with is absolutely amazing. She 

has, and continues to give me, great advice”. 

 

“Recent difficulties registering with energy 

companies provided a real challenge and with 

the help of Money Advice, all was rectified”. 

 

“Keep up the good work”. 

 

 

“Although on a low income and unable to claim 

much for a couple of years I feel looked after 

by both Jacqueline and Wendy”. 

 

“Being new to benefits, they helped me along 

the way to ensure I received what I was entitled 

too”. 

 
“Felt a big weight off my mind and 

my mental health is starting to 

improve.  I feel much better that 

my bills are getting paid, not any 

better off yet, but at least I'm 

moving in the right direction”. 
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NEW TENANT VISITS 

 

12 New Tenant Visits were carried out between January and March 2020.  

 

THE ALLOCATION PROCESS 

 

 

How did you complete your housing application form?   

Paper Form 8 66.7% 

Online Form 4 33.3% 

 

Did you find the ‘Getting Ready to Move” leaflet helpful?   

Yes 12 100.0% 

No - - 

 

Did you find the ‘Guide To Recent Allocations” leaflet helpful?   

Yes 12 100.0% 

No - - 

 

How satisfied were you with the information given to you at the point of offer?   

Very Satisfied 12 100.0% 

Fairly Satisfied - - 

Neither Satisfied nor dissatisfied - - 

Fairly Dissatisfied - - 

Very Dissatisfied - - 

 

How satisfied were you with the viewing arrangements?   

Very Satisfied 12 100.0% 

Fairly Satisfied - - 

Neither Satisfied nor dissatisfied - - 

Fairly Dissatisfied - - 

Very Dissatisfied - - 

 

How satisfied were you with the helpfulness of Ayrshire Housing staff during 

the allocation process? 

  

Very Satisfied 12 100.0% 

Fairly Satisfied - - 

Neither Satisfied nor dissatisfied - - 

Fairly Dissatisfied - - 

Very Dissatisfied - - 

 

How satisfied were you with the information provided at sign up?   

Very Satisfied 12 100.0% 

Fairly Satisfied - - 

Neither Satisfied nor dissatisfied - - 

Fairly Dissatisfied - - 

Very Dissatisfied - - 

  

NEW TENANT VISITS 
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MOVING IN 

 

How satisfied were you with the quality of your home when you moved in?   

Very Satisfied 11 91.7% 

Fairly Satisfied - - 

Neither Satisfied nor dissatisfied - - 

Fairly Dissatisfied 1 8.3% 

Very Dissatisfied - - 

 

Have you looked at the ‘Tenant’s Handbook’?   

Yes 12 100.0% 

No - - 

I haven’t looked at it - - 

 

If yes, have you found it useful?   

Yes 12 100.0% 

No - - 

I haven’t looked at it - - 

 

 

REPAIRS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Have you reported a repair since moving in?   

Yes 8 66.7% 

No 4 33.3% 

 

If yes, how satisfied were you with the process?   

Very Satisfied 7 58.3% 

Fairly Satisfied - - 

Neither Satisfied nor dissatisfied 1 8.3% 

Fairly Dissatisfied - - 

Very Dissatisfied - - 

I haven’t reported a repair 4 33.4% 

 

If yes, how satisfied were you with the process?   

Very Satisfied 6 50.0% 

Fairly Satisfied - - 

Neither Satisfied nor dissatisfied 1 8.3% 

Fairly Dissatisfied 1 8.3% 

Very Dissatisfied - - 

I haven’t reported a repair 4 33.4% 
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Very happy with  
new property. 

Property was in "move in" 
condition, didn't need to 
do anything and so could 

move in straight away. 

The packet of seeds  
was a nice touch. 

FEEDBACK 

Had to decorate  
Throughout. 

Very happy at getting a  
phone call on Xmas eve to say 
that the exchange had been 

approved, appreciated  
this being done before  

Xmas break 

 
Very satisfied with all 
aspects of allocations 

process and new home. 
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                         PROJECTS (BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Performance Indicator Internal Target To  

30th Jun  

To 

30th Sep 

To  

31st Dec 

To 

31st Mar 

Status 

Development Pipeline 

 

50+ plots secured 84      

Acquisitions and completions 50 a year 0     

 

In Progress 

Neighbourhood Initiatives Minimum of 2 supported a year 0     

 

In Progress 

Collaborations with communities 

and councils 

Minimum of 1 joint project a year 1     

 

My Home 20% year on year increase in 

users 

524 to 

553 

(5.5% 

increase) 

     

 

In Progress 

 

  

  OTHER BUSINESS PLAN KPIs 

21



GENERAL OPERATIONAL MATTERS 

 

 

 

 

Performance Indicator Internal Target To  

30th Jun  

To 

30th Sep 

To  

31st Dec 

To 

31st Mar 

Status 

Board meetings quorate per session (AGM to AGM) 

 

100% 100%      

Board attendance per session (October to August) Average of 

75% 

75%     

 

 FINANCIAL MATTERS 

 

Performance Indicator Internal Target To 

30th Jun 

To 

30th Sep 

To 

31st Dec 

To 

31st Mar 

Status 

Staff/Admin costs Less than 24% of turnover 

 

23.3      

Administration cost/tenancy Less than £1,082 per tenancy £1,067     

 

Liquidity – current assets: current 

liabilities 

(exc. development o/d) 

1.10:1 3:23:1     

 

Liquidity – cash: current liabilities 

(exc. development o/d) 

1:1 3.08:1     

 

Interest cover – operating surplus: 

interest payable 

(adjusted for depreciation) 

1.1:1 5.21:1     

 

Debt per unit 

 

Maximum of £25,000 £13,868     
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Board Meeting – 26 August 2020 

Agenda Item: 5b 

Subject: Delivery Plan – progress to date 

Prepared by: Jim Whiston 

 

2020 – 2021 Delivery Plan progress 

The Board requires regular reports on progress in achieving the tasks set out in the Delivery Plan. Whilst the Delivery Plan has a three-year 

timeframe following the Business Plan, it is adjusted annually, for example to roll forward milestone dates. The current one is incorporated 

as an appendix to the 2019-2022 Business Plan (April 2020 edition). 

Progress Reports are scheduled for the August, October, January and March Board meetings. The March report provides an overview of the 

year’s performance. 

The Board is asked to review the attached report. Generally, good progress continues to be achieved against the tasks.  

With regard to the key performance indicators, the Board is asked to refer to the quarterly performance reports for a fuller commentary. 

Year-end figures are reported in the May performance report. 

Where possible each “indicator of success” has been colour coded from green through yellow to red. This indicates respectively task 

complete, work in hand at a satisfactory rate, and either outstanding or requiring further work.  
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Providing excellent service 

 

We will provide a responsive service to tenants and other users that: 

• Surpasses tenants’ expectations 

• Ensures fair access to housing and sustains tenancies  

• Guarantees high levels of satisfaction and active engagement 

Work area Task  Indicator of success When  Progress to date 

Engagement 

and service 

assurance 

Support for scrutiny 

panel 

Active group – at least one topic a 

year. 

March 2021 A new panel has selected a topic to 

investigate. Work in abeyance for time 

being. 

Settling-in visits 95% of tenants satisfied with the 

quality of their home and our services. 

March 2021 See performance report of new reporting 

format. New log developed on My Home 

for ease of record keeping and analysis. 

Charter report Active tenant engagement to ensure 

its relevance. 

September 

2020 

Report will build in feedback from 2019. 

Increase breadth of 

satisfaction 

reporting 

Quarterly reporting to include 

feedback from new tenants, on aids 

and adaptations and money advice. 

March 2021 See tables in the performance report. 

Annual rent review At least 25% increase on previous 

tenants’ response rate. Board 

decision reflects tenants’ feelings on 

value. 

March 2020 62% increase in responses over 

previous two years. Aim to increase 

further.  

Three yearly 

independent surveys 

2022 survey commissioned to build 

on the 2019 survey. 

 

March 2022  

My Home 20% year on year increase in users 

(532 users at 1 April 2020). 

March 2021 Currently, 568 active users. 
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Work area Task  Indicator of success When  Progress to date 

Engagement 

and service 

assurance 

Repairs service Emergency repairs: 97% within 4 

hours. 

Emergency completion time: 4 hours. 

Other repairs: 96% completed on time. 

Other repairs average: within 6 days. 

Gas safety: 100% compliance.  

Satisfaction level: minimum 90%. 

Right first time: 90% of jobs. 

Appointments kept: minimum of 95% 

of jobs. 

March 2021 See performance report for the most 

recent position. Service delivery has 

been affected by the Coronavirus 

restrictions which are being carefully 

managed with the support of our 

contractors to ensure that essential 

repairs and maintenance are being 

done, access permitting, and reflecting 

current Health and safety advice. 

 

Repairs 

appointments 

50% of all jobs. March 2021 See the quarterly performance report. 

 

Work area Task  Indicator of success When  Progress to date 

Sustaining 

tenancies 

 
 

Integrated tenancy 

management 

Current arrears at 1.75% of gross 

rent. 

90% of tenancies sustained for more 

than 12 months. 

March 2021 See the quarterly performance report. 

Aids and Adaptations Grant fully utilised.  

Fully recorded on SDM. 

March 2021 New grant allocation received from the 

Scottish Government. 

Accessing housing 

support and other 

services 

Signposting and service agreements 

in place. 

March 2021 Being maintained via newsletters, 

website and social media, and personal 

contact. Additional information on 

domestic abuse. 

Maximising our 

tenants’ income and 

financial welfare 

Number of cases. 

Demonstrate financial gains. 

March 2021 Continued excellent performance.  
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Work area Task  Indicator of success When  Progress to date 

Access to 

housing 

Accessible 

application process  

Feedback within 10 days of applying. 

40% online. 

March 2021 See quarterly performance reports 

Turning around lets Average re-let time less than 16 days.  

Rent loss less than 0.8% of rent due. 

March 2021 Very good performance in current 

circumstances, see the performance 

report. 

Assisting the Council 

in meeting needs of 

the homeless  

25% referrals in overall lets. March 2021 Continuing to work with SAC to support 

a housing first project. 

Create supported 

housing 

opportunities with 

South Ayrshire 

Health and Social 

Care Partnership and 

voluntary agencies 

At least one core and cluster project 

delivered. 

March 2021 We are working in partnership to provide 

a core and cluster of 12 flats at Elba 

Street with the South Ayrshire Health 

and Social Care Partnership. 
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Quality homes 

We will: 

• Maintain our houses to the highest standard 

• Create new homes of quality 

Work area Task Indicator of success When  

Maintaining our 

houses to the 

highest 

standard 

Ensuring 

compliance with 

SHQS 

Fully funded Asset Management Plan. June 2020 Revision of the Plan approved in June.  

Preparing for 

EESSH 2 

Action plan put in place. June 2020 Enhanced section in plan with a 

commitment to a full strategy review 

in June 2021. 
 

Work area Task Indicator of success When  

Creating new 

homes  

Secure a 

pipeline of 

developments 

Maintain at 50 plots a year. March 

2021 

Currently 84 plots. 

Meeting 

aspirations cost 

effectively 

In use feedback informs Design Guide. 

Awards secured. 

March 

2021 

Revised feedback form prepared. 

Sustainable 

programme of 

acquisitions and 

completions 

50 a year. March 

2021 

Good progress to date. 
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Thriving communities 

We will engage with residents in our neighbourhoods and throughout Ayrshire by: 

• Ensuring our neighbourhoods remain popular places 

• Empowering our communities 

• Equality of access 

• Working with the voluntary sector partners 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Excellent 

neighbourhoods 

Maintaining the 

amenity of our 

estates 

70% tenants satisfied.  

Tenant informed improvement 

scheme in place. 

 

March 

2021 

Further development and 

promotion of the devolved budget 

committed to. 

 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Empowering our 

communities 

Active 

engagement 

One collaboration with communities 

or the Councils. 

March 

2021 

The partnership working with SAC 

on housing first and with the 

SAHSCP on supported housing. In 

addition, the collaboration with 

VASA to provide digital access to  

tenants.  

Supporting 

resident 

initiatives 

through our work 

Two neighbourhood initiatives 

supported each year. 

 

March 

2021 

Through promotion of our grant 

scheme and networking. 

Supporting our 

tenants’ 

participation in 

community 

activity 

50% of grants to organisations in 

which our tenants are active. 

 

March 

2021 

Continuing to promote the grant 

scheme. 
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Community 

benefits through 

procurement  

50% of framework contracts with 

benefits. 

March  

2021 

Current April 2020 Procurement 

Report records good progress. 

Ensure equal 

access to our 

services 

Equalities action plan and 

engagement strategy in place. 

March 

2021 

Policy revised with a commitment 

to finalise an engagement 

strategy. 
 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Inclusive 

communities 

Capacity building Grants allocated. 

Other grants levered in. 

Number benefiting. 

Usage of the hub (days). 

March 

2021 

Successful in obtaining a Scottish 

Government Supporting 

Communities grant to support 

three Coronavirus-related 

projects. Report in October to the 

Development Committee on the 

hub’s promotion.  

 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Partnerships with 

the educational 

and voluntary 

sectors 

Joint projects  Thirty-five individuals supported. 

Usage of the hub (days). 

March 

2021 

See above. 
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A forward looking and sustainable association 

To ensure that our Board and staff can: 

• Respond positively to change 

• Always be open to feedback and new ideas 

• Ensure fairness in our work 

• Build on enthusiasm and skills to deliver ever better projects and services 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

A strong and 

forward-

looking Board 

To reflect 

breadth of our 

communities 

and tenants 

Competition for places. 

Links to tenant and broad community 

engagement. 

Attendance at community events. 

Ten new community members. 

September 

2020 

Competition for community places. Five 

new members. 

Well attended 

and effective 

Board 

meetings 

Minimum 75% attendance (with remote 

communication facility). 

100% participation in Board review 

process. 

September  

2020 

New Board effectiveness action plan in 

place. 

 

 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Equality of 

access 

Ensure 

fairness in our 

work 

Services compliant through regular 

auditing and benchmarking. 

March 2021 Equalities and Human Rights policy 

updated. 

Necessary 

skills  

Annual equalities plan for Board and 

staff. 

October 2020 Next review due in June 2020. 
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Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

A 

knowledgeable 

and energetic 

staff team 

Valuing our 

staff 

Positive wellbeing results. 

HWL “Gold” award maintained 

Four community engagements. 

March 2021 HWL award being maintained.  

Increasing 

capacity  

One training day equivalent - each 

Board and staff member. 

March 2021 Online opportunities being explored. 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

A more 

productive 

team 

Technological 

innovation 

Year on year increase in fieldwork using 

tablets with linkage to My Home 

promotion. 

 

March 2021 My Home administration being 

enhanced.  

 

Use of digital communication tools to 

support homeworking. 
 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Promoting our 

achievements 

Revisiting 

successful 

projects 

Enhanced recognition by partners and 

the sector. 

March 2021 Promotion of Lochside regeneration 

project. 

Developing our 

social media 

presence 

Number of Board and staff teams 

‘generating copy”. 

March 2021 ICT working group formed and active use 

of social media as a communication  tool 

during the current situation. 
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Underpinned by  

The Asset Management Plan 

Objective  Task  Indicator of success By when  Progress to date 

Plan fit for 

purpose 

Stock surveys c20% resurvey a year. June 2021 New survey tools to be 

commissioned. 

Amended for 

EESSH 2 

Implementation strategy included in Plan. June 2020 Enhanced section in plan pending  

a full review in 2021. 

Procurement  100% of work in contract. 

Contract management in place for all 

framework and main support contractors. 

March 2021. In place. 

 

The Design Guide  

Objective Task  Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Inspiring but 

deliverable 

Publish Content fully reflected in practice. March 2021 Being reflected in project briefs. 

Board 

engagement  

Each project actively sponsored. March 2021 Development Committee fulfilling 

role. 

Incorporate 

project and user 

feedback 

Each scheme reviewed. March 2021 Peebles Street review pending. 

Quality assurance 180o reviews with consultants and 

contractors. 

KPIs achieved. 

March 2021 New format to be developed. 

 

 

 

 

 

32



Financial Planning, Value for money and risk management 

Objective Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

A plan which 

underpins 

our 

ambitions 

Robust plan  Guarantees delivery of services. Defines 

investment potential in existing stock and 

acquisitions. 

KPIs set and delivered. 

March 2021 KPIs being monitored quarterly 

alongside covenant compliance 

(see Management Accounts). 

Value for money Management costs better sector 

benchmarks. 

March 2021 Set benchmark being met. 

Annual budget Consistent with financial plan and 

delivered within acceptable parameters. 

March 2021 Being monitored by the Board 

through the quarterly 

management accounts. 
 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Prudent 

approach to 

risk 

Stress testing the 

plan against a 

comprehensive 

risk assessment 

Financial reserves and mitigation 

strategies more than sufficient. 

Compliant with covenants. 

March 2021 Quarterly covenant compliance 

reports to the Board. 

 

Governance compliance and development 

Objective Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Meeting 

Regulatory 

Standards 

Annual self-

assessment 

“Clean” assurance statement. October 2020 Will cover Coronavirus mitigation. 

Financial health 

check 

“Clean” assurance statement. March 2021 Will inform 2021 assurance 

statement. 
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Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

A strong 

Board 

Application of the 

Board 

effectiveness 

policy 

Demonstrate appropriate skills mix and 

personal development by Board and the 

Director. 

June 2020 The 2020 reviews for the Board 

and Director have been completed 

in accordance with the policies. 

 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Equalities 

and diversity  

Annual action 

plan based on 

revised policy 

Plan implemented. March 2021 Policy updated. 

 

Objective Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

Governance 

and process 

assurance  

Internal Audit 

programme 

Action points cleared within 12 months of 

each report. 

March 2021 Progress being monitored by the 

Audit Committee. 

 

Work area Task Indicator of success When Progress to date 

A safe 

working 

environment  

Health and safety 

compliance 

Meet ACS audit assessment. 

 

Positive wellbeing survey response. 

March 2021 

 

March 2021 

Compliance being maintained. 

Facilities manual adopted. 

Survey to be scheduled for 

2020/21. 
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Development Committee Minute – 12 August 2020 

 

Prepared by: Jim Whiston 
 
 
 
 

Minute of the Development Committee held on Wednesday 12 August 2020 at 10.30am 

as a MS-Teams meeting. 
 

 

Present:  

 Bobby Pyper - Chair 

 Mike Tomlinson 

  

In attendance:  

 David Glennon 

 Adrian Stewart – DO-Architecture (items 1,2 and 3 only) 

 Jim Whiston – Minutes 

  
 
 

1. Apologies 

Apologies were received from Amanda Bryan, Gemma Collins and Simon Leslie. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest 

No matters were disclosed. 

 

3. Architect’s presentation on Queen’s Terrace project 

Adrian Stewart made a presentation on this project which is now the subject of a pre-

application enquiry to South Ayrshire Council. Jim Whiston confirmed that the price 

agreed for the site took account of the development constraints. The Committee 

thanked Adrian for his comprehensive presentation. 
 

 

4. Minute of the meeting held on 24 June 2019 

These had previously been considered by the Board on 29 July. There were no 

matters arising. 
 
5.        Development Report 

The Committee reviewed the contents of the report.  It noted that the tenders for the 

Troon project were being analysed with a view to appointing a contractor shortly and 

that it was hoped that the South Harbour Street planning application would be 

determined by the Council in September. It was confirmed that we continue to give 

support to Hope Homes’ planning application for a development at Fisherton. 

 

Northeast Troon: aim to appoint contractor in September. 

Elba Street: revised programme awaited, completion possibly at the end of 

September. 

Peebles Street: update for next meeting. 

Queens Terrace, Maybole: pre-app submitted August; submit Pl app early September; 

tender award by March 2021. 

 
6. Any other business 

Date of next meeting – Wednesday 8 October 2020 at 10.30am. 



 

The meeting closed at 12.00pm 

 

 



 
 

Board Meeting – Wednesday 26th August 2020 

 

Agenda item:  6(a) 

 

Subject: Policy Reviews  

 

Arrears and Voids Management Policies and Tenant Participation Strategy 

 

Prepared by: D McGivern 

 

Recommendation: Extend the Rent Arrears and Void Management Policies by 3 years, the 

Tenant Participation Strategy by 1 year and delegate minor or operational policy updates 

to the Director or Head of Housing Services 

 

Introduction 

 

Our key policies are subject to periodic review to ensure that they remain appropriate, relevant 

and up to date with regards to legislation and best practice. 

 

The policies covering our arrears management and recovery activities and our management 

of void properties were last comprehensively reviewed in 2017 and were both scheduled to 

be reviewed after 3 years. 

 

Since they were last reviewed there have been no significant factors to indicate that they are 

in need of substantial revisions at this time. 

 

Arrears Policy 

 

The principles underpinning our current policy focus on pre-tenancy advice and information,  

early intervention when arrears occur, the provision of housing management support and 

money advice targeting income maximisation, realistic, flexible and affordable repayment 

arrangements and firm action when arrears levels escalate and no positive engagement with 

the tenant is in place. 

 

These principles haven’t changed and the policy remains relevant and appropriate to our 

current circumstances. Alongside a set of clear procedures, monitoring and supervision and 

guidance on case management the association’s performance for arrears management has 

been consistently among the most effective within the sector. 

 

Void Management Policy 

 

The key aims and objectives of the Void Management Policy include:   

 

• To meet all legislative, contractual and regulatory obligations;  
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• To minimise void rent loss and maximise rental income;  

• To ensure that void repair costs are controlled and monitored;  

• To ensure that properties are repaired to a defined, minimum lettable standard prior 

to allocation;  

• To ensure that tenants are aware of their obligations and that end of tenancy arrears 

and rechargeable repairs are prevented where possible;  

• To ensure that new tenants are satisfied with the standard and quality of their home. 

 

These objectives remain valid and would not change if a comprehensive review of the void 

management policy was being undertaken. Minimising rent loss and letting properties 

prepared and repaired to an acceptable standard are the principal drivers for this activity. 

 

These are also underpinned operationally by a set of detailed procedures followed by housing 

management and maintenance staff which help ensure that the policy aims are met and void 

management and re-letting performance is high. Void rent loss is comparatively low as are our 

average re-let times. There is no significant feedback either through refusals or new tenant 

satisfaction surveys to suggest that we are offering properties which do not meet our minimum 

lettable standards. 

 

These procedures are regularly reviewed and, along with any recommendations e.g. through 

audits of the activity, changes are made to help ensure that they remain relevant, in line with 

statutory and legislative requirements and are in accordance with best practice. 

 

Some of the procedural changes that are required to be carried out may also have overlaps 

with some policy requirements. It is recommended that these do not require to be brought to 

the Board for approval every time they are required but that the Board notes that such 

changes will not have any impact on the focus on meeting the policy’s overall aims and 

objectives. 

 

Tenant Participation Strategy 

 

The Tenant Participation Strategy was also last comprehensively reviewed in June 2017 and 

was also to be subject to review after 3 years. The annual update to the Board in June 2020 

indicated that the current strategy remains largely relevant for the time being although the 

action plan would benefit from review to ensure that the various actions remain feasible and 

relevant and focus on meaningful outcomes. It is recommended that a more comprehensive 

review of the strategy and action plan is carried out in 2021 along with appropriate 

consultation and input from tenants. The lockdown prevented us carrying out such a 

consultation in this spring. Further consideration will require to be given as to how such 

consultation and tenant input might be achieved give the relatively low levels of interest and 

input that has been previously been evident. 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Board is asked to extend the current Arrears and Void Management policies by 3 years 

and note that there may be some changes carried out in the interim to these as a result of 

internal review, audit or external changes in legislation or good practice. The Board is also 
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asked to approve the extension of the Tenant Participation Strategy by 1 year and note that a 

more comprehensive review of the strategy and associated action plan be carried out in 2021. 

 

The Board is also asked to approve that minor or operationally led amendments to housing 

management and maintenance policies may be delegated to the Director and/or Head of 

Housing Services 
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Board Meeting – 26 August 2020 

 

Agenda item: 8 

 

Subject: Financial matters 

 

Prepared by Alan Park 

 

For noting 

 
The Management Accounts are submitted to the Board on a quarterly basis with any 

issues of concern or interest being reported monthly. Below is a summary of financial 

performance for the 3 months to 30 June 2020: 

 

Performance Indicator Ayrshire Housing’s 

target 

Progress to date Status 

Staff/admin costs Less than 24% of 

turnover 

3 months to 30 

June 

23.3% 

 

 

Administration cost/tenancy Less than £1,082 per 

tenancy 

3 months to 30 

June 

£1,067 

 

 

Liquidity – current assets: 

current liabilities  

(exc. Development o/d) 

1.10:1 3 months to 30 

June 

3.23:1 

 

 

Liquidity – cash: current 

liabilities  

(exc. Development o/d) 

1:1 3 months to 30 

June 

3.08:1 

 

 

Interest cover – operating 

surplus: interest payable 

(adjusted for depreciation) 

1.1:1 3 months to 30 

June 

 5.21:1 

 

 

Debt per unit 

(excluding assets under 

construction) 

Maximum of £25,000 3 months to 30 

June 

£13,868 

 

 

Maximum Gearing Ratio 

(BoS definition) 

Loans no greater than 

60% of Net Worth 

21%  
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Board Meeting – 26 August 2020 

Agenda item: 8 (a)

Subject: Financial Matters 

Prepared by: A Park 

 

 

Financial Performance 
 

Agenda item: 8 (a) 

Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 

 

The Annual Audit has now been completed and the draft Financial Statements are attached 

for information.  These draft Statements will be considered and hopefully agreed by the 

Audit Committee at its meeting with our external auditor on Wednesday 26 August 2020.  

The Board will therefore be able to receive the Statements as presented for the year to 31 

March 2020 for subsequent adoption at the AGM on 2 September 2020.  A copy of the full 

set of the Financial Statements being presented to that meeting is attached to allow 

members the opportunity to make themselves aware of the background to all of the year 

end work. 

 

The results disclosed in the attached Financial Statements differ from the Management 

Accounts discussed at our Board meeting in April 2020 mainly due to adjustments required 

for FRS102.  The Accounts disclose a surplus of £808k against the Management Accounts 

figure of £2,335k. 

 

The figures are reconciled as follows: 

 

Surplus per Management Accounts    £2,355k 

Less:  Additional accruals     £      53k 

Less:  Additional Bad Debt provisions   £      68k 

Surplus pre FRS102       £2,234k  

FRS102 Adjustments 

Grants disclosed as income   £ 3,170k 

Initial Recognition of completed Housing £ (4,476) k 

Increased Pension costs per actuaries £ (120) k £ (1,426)k 

 

Surplus per Annual Accounts    £808k 
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Also, attached to this paper is a report on the covenants that we have with each of our 

lenders.  The calculations are based on the Financial Statement figures.  You will see that 

we have not breached any of our loan covenants. 

 

Finally, attached for information is the Management Letter following this year’s audit which 

you will see raised no matters to be highlighted to the Trustees.  There is also a Letter of 

Representation from the Trustees to the auditor which requires authorisation for it to be 

signed and returned to the auditor. Both of these items will be considered by the Audit 

Committee on 26 August during which the Committee will hopefully agree with the content 

of the Letter of Representation for subsequent signature by the Chair. 
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING 
    

  
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
The Board of Trustees presents its report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2020. 
 
Legal Status 
 
Ayrshire Housing is a company limited by guarantee and is governed by its Memorandum and Articles 
of Association. Accordingly, the Company has no share capital. The company is registered with the 
Scottish Housing Regulator as a registered social landlord (No. 304) under the Housing (Scotland) Act 
2010 and as is a registered Scottish Charity with the charity number SCO27906. 
 
Principal Activities 
 
The principal activities of the Association are the provision and management of affordable rented 
accommodation. 
 
Review of Business and Future Developments 
Background 
 
The Trustees of Ayrshire Housing are pleased to present their review together with the audited financial 
statements for Ayrshire Housing for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
Activities 
 
The Ayrshire Housing Group consists of Ayrshire Housing (parent), a registered social landlord with 
charitable status, and Ayrshire Homestake Limited, our one subsidiary company retained as a vehicle 
to pursue potentially non-charitable activities. The subsidiary company has not yet traded. 
 
The Group Head Office is in Ayr and Ayrshire Housing has properties throughout Ayrshire.  Ayrshire 
Housing is now one of Ayrshire’s leading housing associations with a stock of over 1,500 houses thanks 
to an active acquisition and development programme predominantly but not exclusively in South 
Ayrshire. 

Introduction 

We believe that Ayrshire Housing makes a real and distinctive contribution to the people we serve. This 
is underpinned by a focus on maintaining our financial strength to ensure that we can maintain the worth 
of our stock and the quality of our services over the long-term. 

The association’s volunteer Board has set out its vision for the next three years in an update to our 
Business Plan. This commits us to still greater engagement with our communities and tenants by both 
building much needed new houses and making our services still more responsive to individual and 
community demands. We are proud that the overwhelming majority of tenants see being with Ayrshire 
Housing as a positive choice. Maintaining this relationship means that ensuring value for money whilst 
never losing sight of the personal touch is at the heart of our plans. 

Below is a summary of our Business Plan. 

Our Values 
 
Our mission is underpinned by these core values: 
 
We listen - to everyone we work for and with. 
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING 
    

  
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
Review of Business and Future Developments (Contd.) 
 
 
We engage - as we actively involve our tenants, the community and our people in shaping our work. 
 
We show respect - as we strive to provide equal and accessible services to all.  
 
We seek challenge - to ensure best value to our tenants and wider community benefits. 
 
These values shape the work of all Ayrshire Housing’s people.  They are markers for what all should 
expect from us. 
 
 
Our Vision for Ayrshire Housing  
 

 
Our enduring vision for Ayrshire Housing is 
to: 
  

• Be valued by all our tenants and 
other service users. 

 

• Increase the wellbeing of our 
communities. 

 

• Provide more affordable housing. 
 

• Be seen as a distinctive and effective 
organisation by the people of 
Ayrshire. 

 
We aim to confirm our vision to all we work for 
and with over the three years of this Plan.   

 
Our vision underpins the detailed objectives set for our day to day work.   
 
Who We Work For 
 
Our tenants and the neighbourhoods they live in 
 
As a tenant and community run housing association, our tenants and the communities they are part of 
are central to what we do.  We have an excellent relationship with our tenants.  This is shown by high 
recorded satisfaction and the friendly tone of our day to day communication.  
 
Our 2019 independent tenants’ survey showed:  
 

• 89% are happy with our services. 

• 89% satisfied with our management of their neighbourhood.  

• 86% thought their rent was value for money. 

• 92% are satisfied with our communication and engagement. 
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING 
    

  
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
Review of Business and Future Developments (Contd.) 
 
 
We are committed to build on this excellent relationship for example through our popular digital 
HousingOnline and My Home services.  We are always looking for new ways for our tenants to engage 
with us and influence the services they receive both individually and for their neighbourhoods.  
 
Our neighbourhoods are not just popular with their residents but make a real contribution to the towns 
and villages they are part of.  We want to build on this with a focus on maintaining the quality of our 
housing stock and public areas.  We are committed to ensuring the social worth of our housing for future 
generations.  
 

 
 
Those seeking new housing opportunities 
 
We work across Ayrshire but with a particular focus on South Ayrshire.  It is an area of high demand for 
affordable rented housing with 3,500 households on our waiting list alone.  We are proud of our close 
working relationship with the South Ayrshire Council.  We are working closely with them on a housing 
first approach to tackling homelessness.  With our focus on integrated local solutions, we run joint online 
application and mutual exchange services with the Council.  We also work in partnership with several 
charities to provide quality housing for the people they support.  
 
Housing associations have always been about creating new solutions for those who benefit from a good 
quality house at a reasonable rent.  To meet the obligation to those on our waiting list, we are committed 
to acquiring and building new houses to meet their needs.  We do this on a financially sustainable basis 
which does not compromise the quality of service to existing tenants over the long-term.  
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We will also work with South Ayrshire Council and other councils to ensure that our established housing 
stock is managed in a way that caters for changing needs within attractive neighbourhoods. 
 
 
 
Ayrshire’s wider communities 

 
 
Ayrshire Housing is rooted in Ayrshire’s communities.  Indeed, our very existence is due to a 
combination of community and tenant initiative, and political support.  Our governance is based on a 
partnership between our tenants – all of whom are association members – and those who support us 
from the wider community.  
 
Our developments over the years have made a real contribution to Ayrshire’s built environment.  This 
is reflected in numerous awards.  We want to maximise the wider social worth of what we do through 
building relationships, so that our neighbourhoods are firmly rooted in the wider communities in which 
they lie.  As a charity making a real impact on people’s lives, we can spend over £10 million a year in 
the local and wider economy.   We want to stretch this investment so that it has the maximum impact.  
We do this by building links and partnerships with those who share our commitment to voluntary activity 
and the public good.   
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Our Key Aims Over the Next Three Years 
 
Here are our key aims in working for the benefit of our tenants and communities, and all who can benefit 
from our work:  

• To deliver excellent service which our tenants appreciate; 

 

• To enhance our tenants’ quality of life; 

 

• To ensure that our neighbourhoods remain desirable places; 

 

• To build new houses to meet needs across our communities; 

 

• To bring additional value through our projects and services; 

 

• To be always open to new ideas. 

 
How We Will Deliver Our Aims 

• By listening to our tenants and our communities 

The relationship with our tenants is central to who we are.  We look for new ways to ensure that 
not only their views are taken on-board, but they also play a still greater part in influencing the 
quality of what we do.  

 
As a community-based housing association, we also want to deepen our relationships with 
other community and voluntary organisations.  In strengthening community networks, we can 
foster new and better ways of delivering services and creating better places to live. 

 

• A committed team  

Our people – our members, our volunteer Board and our staff – are central to what we are 
about.  They guarantee a committed and friendly service to all our users. They inspire us to 
create better housing opportunities and to make a real impact across Ayrshire.  We see our 
people as being at the centre of what makes us rather than just a means to an end.  

 

• Being innovative  
We will constantly look at new ways to enhance our services.  We always do this in ways that 
build on our friendly engagement with our tenants and all who use or need our services.  We 
are recognised by the quality of our houses.  We will take this further with a commitment to 
increase the energy efficiency and liveability of our new developments and our existing stock.  
We will apply technology to add breadth to our services and to increase the productivity of our 
processes whilst ensuring user satisfaction.  
 
 
 
 
 

  

49



7 

 

AYRSHIRE HOUSING 
    

  
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
Review of Business and Future Developments (Contd.) 
 

• Value for money underpinned by financial strength 

We are one of Ayrshire’s major charities with assets at their social value of £65 million.  Each 
year, we inject £10 million or more into the local and wider Scottish economy.  We combine 
long-term financial strength with commitment to ensuring rents that are affordable  
and value for money.  Our financial prudence, due to keeping operating costs at the right levels, 
means that we have the assets and reserves in place to maintain our stock to meet emerging 
aspirations and to create new housing opportunities for our communities. 

 

• Strong governance and management 

We are stewards of substantial assets which are the product of investment by our tenants 
through the rents they pay and substantial public grants.  We have an obligation to ensure that 
our housing stock continues to be valued in the coming decades.  Our Board and all our staff 
are focused on ensuring that the association is run with both enthusiasm and prudence.  We 
are committed to demonstrating, both to our immediate stakeholders and the wider public, that 
we are well run, open in our decision making and an organisation which others wish to work in 
partnership with. 

 
Guaranteeing the quality of life of our tenants underpins all our decisions.  We will never take 
risks which would compromise this.  We rigorously stress test our financial plan each year to 
ensure that we can withstand both known and unexpected risks and still ensure reasonable 
rents and well-maintained homes.  In making decisions, we will never compromise the financial 
reserves needed to meet this commitment. 

 
 

 
 

The Tasks We Have Set for Ourselves 
 
Here we translate our aims into clear objectives.  We will further our mission by delivering on these 
objectives in each year of the plan.  The Board has agreed a detailed delivery plan to ensure that the 
objectives set are realised.  The delivery plan cascades down to everyone in our team – whether they 
are a volunteer Board member or member of staff.  
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The objectives are grouped around four clear themes all linking back to our mission and our aims. 
 
PROVIDING AN EXCELLENT SERVICE 
 
We will provide a responsive service to tenants and other users that: 
 
Surpasses tenants’ expectations 
 
We will deliver a genuine value for money service to our tenants.  We will build on our already high 
service standards by: 
 

• always having agreement that our rents represent value for money; 

• increasing the use of our My Home online services, but never as a substitute for our friendly 

face to face service; 

• further extending our appointment service for repairs; 

• building on our much appreciated money advice service; 

• helping our tenants to access additional services when needed. 

 
Ensures fair access to housing and sustains tenancies 
 
We will work with the councils and other agencies to widen access to housing opportunities through: 
 

• aiming to increase our stock by up to fifty new and acquired houses a year; 

• effective nomination arrangements which assist councils to fulfil their statutory responsibilities, 

for example for homelessness prevention; 

• working with the Health and Social Care Partnerships to provide housing solutions for their 

clients. 

 
Guarantees high levels of satisfaction and active engagement 
 
All our tenants are members of Ayrshire Housing.  Our aim is not just to listen but to give our tenants a 
real say in what we do.  We will:  
 

• listen to our independently supported tenant led scrutiny panel when they challenge us on our 

service standards; 

• always ensure that our rents reflect the informed views of our tenants; 

• support our new tenants through settling in visits and other measures.  

QUALITY HOMES 
 
We will ensure that our existing and future houses are built and maintained to the highest 
standards, and continue to meet the needs and aspirations of our tenants by: 
 
Maintaining our houses to the highest standard 
 
We will ensure that our fully funded Asset Management Plan: 
 

• adapts to tenants’ aspirations and  

• meets new energy and quality standards. 
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Creating new homes of quality 
 
We will build new houses: 
 

• efficiently and to the highest standards; 

• which can adapt to changing needs; 

• that demonstrate innovative practice. 

 
THRIVING COMMUNITIES 
 
We will engage with residents in our neighbourhoods and throughout Ayrshire by: 
 
Ensuring our neighbourhoods remain popular places 
 
Working with our tenants, we will: 
 

• maintain the amenity of their neighbourhoods; 

• support tenant initiatives through practical support. 

 
Empowering our communities 
 
We will support community initiatives in our neighbourhoods and beyond through: 
 

• the enthusiasm of our Board and staff; 

• our community grants; 

• making use of our community and tenant hub as a springboard for new activities. 

 
Equality of access  
 
We will demonstrate our commitment to human rights and equality through open engagement and 
through the services we provide. 
 
 
 
Working with voluntary sector partners 
 
Using our strength as a major local charity, we will enhance further our partnerships with the voluntary 
sector through:  
 

• practical support and grants; 

• developing joint projects. 

 
A FORWARD LOOKING AND SUSTAINABLE ASSOCIATION 
 
We believe that the association makes a distinctive contribution to Ayrshire and the lives of those we 
serve.  To maintain this, we will: 
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Ensure our Board and staff are equipped to respond positively to change 
 
We will do this by ensuring that: 
 

• our Board is representative of our tenants and communities; 

• our Board has the right breadth of experience and knowledge; 

• we nurture and invest in all our people. 

 
Always be open to feedback and new ideas 
 
We will: 
 

• embrace a “you said, we did” culture; 

• further support independent tenant scrutiny; 

• always build feedback into processes. 

 
Ensure fairness in our work 
 
We will: 
 

• embed a human rights ethos in our work. 

 
Build on our enthusiasm and skills to deliver ever better projects and services 
 
We will innovate by: 
 

• using technology to increase the depth of our engagement with our tenants and others; 

• investing in the skills of our people; 

• always evaluating what we do. 

 
 
ENSURING THAT WE MEET EXPECTATIONS 
 
All our tenants are members of Ayrshire Housing.  We will invite comment each year to ensure that this 
plan remains relevant to their aspirations.  We will also engage with the other users of our services and 
those we work in partnership with.  
 
Each year, we will report on what we have achieved and our ongoing plans for each of the objectives 
that we have set out above.  This will complement our other consultations, for example, around the 
annual report on our performance in meeting the Scottish Social Housing Charter and our Assurance 
Statement to the Scottish Housing Regulator. 
 
 
How We Manage Risk 
 
Both the business planning process and the performance management system are designed to control 
the association’s exposure to risk.  

53



11 

 

AYRSHIRE HOUSING 
    

  
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
Review of Business and Future Developments (Contd.) 
 
Our financial plan is designed to provide the financial assurance that we have the financial resources 
to implement any mitigating actions and cope with general financial shocks. 
 
We have identified four strategic areas of risk: 
 
The inability to sustain planned levels of rental income 
 
The falling incomes, in real terms, of many of our tenants could threaten our current high levels of rental 
collection and could also lead to higher levels of stock turnover.  There is also the risk of regulatory 
action to control rent levels or at least rent increases in the sector.  
 
Our controls include: 
 

• budgeting on the basis of minimal levels of rental growth; 

• rigorous arrears and void controls built into the performance management system; 

• investment in money advice services; 

• work with credit unions, and housing support and advice partners. 
 
A failure to maintain our stock to the required standards 
 
A poorly developed investment plan could result in a failure to meet statutory requirements and growing 
tenant aspirations.   
 
Our controls include: 
 

• the regular review of the comprehensive life cycle cost plan for our stock; 

• ensuring that there is a sufficient risk envelope built into the overall risk management strategy 
to cope with greater investment requirements due to construction cost inflation or new 
standards.  

 
Failure to maintain and enhance current high levels of service delivery and satisfaction 
 
Providing excellent service is at the heart of what we do.   Falling standards may result in tenant 
dissatisfaction and possible regulatory intervention.  
 
Our controls include: 
 

• key performance indicators backed by tenant feedback; 

• a focus on regulatory compliance; 

• regular independent tenant surveys coupled with continuous tenant feedback; 

• membership of benchmarking groups; 

• investment in staff training and new skills; 

• extending online services. 
 
Poor Budgetary and Cost Control  
 
A lack of effective controls could result in wasted resources and, if not checked over the long-term, 
financial viability being compromised. 
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Our controls include:  
 

• robust annual budgets linked to the long-term financial plan; 

• demanding KPIs for rent collection and void management; 

• Management Accounts to the Board each quarter; 

• a focus on covenant and regulatory compliance; 

• a comprehensive Procurement Strategy; 

• effective project management.  
 
Financial Health 
 
Our 30-year financial plan is designed to ensure the management and maintenance of our stock is to 
the highest standards, the funding of loan obligations and enough reserves for contingencies.  It is 
based on a conservative assumption on rental growth.  For example, minimal rent increases been 
assumed for the next five years.  Notwithstanding having 65% of loans at fixed rates, the weighted 
average cost of capital used in the long-term financial plan is higher than current costs and is likely to 
remain so even if there is a gradual rise in variable rates. 
 
We are in the fortunate position of having built up significant cash reserves through prudent financial 
management by the current and previous Boards.   Not least, decisions not to immediately fix interest 
rates on new borrowings have borne fruit with substantial increases in our cash reserves through 
savings on interest paid.   We maintain cash reserves to provide adequate working capital in turbulent 
or difficult times, for example, the current coronavirus pandemic, the roll-out of Universal Credit together 
with possible unforeseen additional expenditures such as the enhancement of the Energy Efficiency 
Standard for Social Housing (“EESSH 2”).  They allowed us to meet housing need through new 
provision as improvements in the grant regime began to offer a more attractive financial package for us 
to re-engage in a development programme of substance.  Current and past Boards have taken a very 
prudent stance in terms of both organisational and specific development risks. They have been selective 
about any potential development projects.  We are therefore financially viable and will remain that way 
if we continue to manage the business in a prudent manner as we work our way back to full operations 
after the current emergency is over. 
 
In terms of cash reserves, it is possible to demonstrate how much cash should be set aside to cover 
the many and various risks associated with a business such as ours.   Recently risks have become 
apparent which have not previously been on the horizon the greatest of which is the current national 
emergency.  We also need to consider the impact of welfare reforms and now the potential impact on 
our cash flows caused by tenants being furloughed or losing their jobs altogether. Our risk analysis has 
calculated the potential cost and probability of a comprehensive set of risk factors.  Based on this, it is 
estimated that some £2.4 million of free reserves should be maintained to fully cope if all the financial 
risks were to emerge at the same time.  Obviously, these risk factors did not envisage the current public 
health situation specifically but if we assume that the probability of the other risks occurring is relatively 
low then the conclusion is that we should remain financially robust within the current timeframe. 
 
In addition, the financial plan is stress tested as part of a financial health check carried out by the Board 
each year.  A range of scenarios and sensitivities are applied to the base financial plan for the 30 years 
to assess the impact of risks with which to assess long-term financial and development capacity.  All 
the variables are compared to our base plan which includes the delivery of the current pipeline 
development programme. 
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On the basis of a strong opening cash position, it is possible to sensitise the base plan based on certain 
scenarios by increasing projected costs across maintenance expenditure, pension deficit costs, variable 
rate interest charges, void loss, bad debts and further unplanned additional expenditure in management 
costs.  It can be demonstrated that in the unlikely event of all these events occurring then the available 
planned cash surpluses added to our opening position would be able to absorb these additional costs.  
We can also demonstrate that the key banking covenant of interest cover would not be breached with 
the sensitised increases. 
 

Scenario Sensitivity 

Management costs increase (including pension 
deficit contributions) 

Plus 15% annually 

Variable interest rates increase Plus 50% annually 

Void and Bad Debt losses increase Plus 10% annually 

Reactive repairs costs increase Plus 20% annually 

Planned maintenance costs increase Plus 20% annually 

 
The strong opening cash position means that the aggregate of all the above sensitivities should they 
occur would not exceed the base plan cash availability nor would our key banking covenants for interest 
rate cover be breached. 
 
These can be shown in graphical form as follows: 
 
Cumulative aggregate additional costs from sensitivity analysis compared to base plan cash 
availability 
 

 
 
In conclusion, housing associations like Ayrshire Housing confront a wide array of risks - both internal 
and external.  Ayrshire Housing with its strong Board, short command chain and excellent management 
systems is well placed to respond timeously to emerging risks.  There is the further reassurance though 
that if negative events do occur, predicted or unpredicted, then the association’s finances are sufficiently 
robust to cope.   Ayrshire Housing can demonstrate that it has the capacity to withstand shocks and 
maintain not just basic functioning but also its overall mission.  
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Delivery Plan for 2020-21 
 
Each year, the Board agrees a delivery plan to deliver on the strategic themes and the following 
supporting work areas: 
 

• The Asset Management Plan; 

• The Design Guide; 

• Financial Planning, value for money and risk management; 

• Governance compliance and development. 

 
Against each of the themes, specific tasks to deliver each objective are grouped into clear work areas 
for our Board and staff team. 
 
The delivery plan is at the core of the Director’s performance agreement.  Internally, the delivery plan 
is enlarged to include staff responsibilities and linkages between tasks. Performance against this plan 
is monitored each quarter by the Board.  It is fully reviewed each March to ensure its continued 
relevance.  
 
Key Performance Indicators  
 
Business critical activities are measured against the following key performance indicators (KPIs). 
Generally, these are consistent with those set out in previous Internal Management and Corporate 
Plans allowing year on year performance comparisons.   In most cases, performance betters both local 
and national averages.  Where applicable, the targets provide comfort with regard to the relevant budget 
assumptions. In addition, the Board receives reports showing performance against the Scottish Social 
Housing Charter’s indicators. 
 
 
Key Performance Indicators - Targets and Actual 2019/20 

 

Housing Management 2019/20 Target 2019/20 Actual 

Current non-technical arrears 1.75% of total gross rent 0.8% 

Void re-let times 16 days or less 16.7 days 

Void rent loss No more than 0.8% of total rent 
due 

0.4% 

Housing application processing Within 10 days 6 days 

 

Property Management  2019/20 Target 2019/20 Actual 

Emergency repairs performance 97% attendance within 4 hours 92.3% 

Average emergency completion time Within 3 hours 2.8 hours 

Other repairs 96% completed on time 87.5% 

Average general repair completion time Within 6 days 7.2 days 

Gas safety certificates 100% compliance aimed for 
and never below external 
benchmark of 93% 

99.9% 

Satisfaction with repairs service At least 90% satisfied 93.1% 

Repairs “right first time” 90% of all applicable repairs 85.7% 

Appointments kept 95% of all applicable jobs 96.8% 
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Projects 2019/20 Target 2019/20 Actual 

Development pipeline 50+ plots secured at any time 167 

Acquisitions and completions 50 a year 50 

Neighbourhood initiatives Minimum of 2 supported a year 3 

Collaboration with communities and 
councils 

Minimum of 1 joint project a year 2 

 

Financial Matters 2019/20 Target 2019/20 Actual 
(adjusted to 
exclude grants 
released from 
deferred income) 

Staff costs Less than 22.1% of turnover 22.0% 

Administration cost/tenancy Less than £1,028 per tenancy £974 

Liquidity - current assets:current 
liabilities  
(adjusted for FRS102) 

1.10:1 2.97:1 

Liquidity - cash:current liabilities 
(adjusted for FRS102) 

1:1 2.79:1 

Interest cover - operating 
surplus:interest payable (adjusted for 
depreciation) 

1.1:1 4.31:1 

Debt per unit Maximum of £25,000 (as 
adjusted to reflect new HAG 
assumptions) 

£14,014 

 

General Operational Matters 2019/20 Target 2019/20 Actual 

Board meetings quorate per session 
(AGM to AGM) 

100% 100% 

Board attendance per session Average of 75% 72.9% 

 
 
Performance in the year ended 31 March 2020 
 
Turnover 
 
Turnover has increased to £10.4M from £7.5M which includes grants transferred from deferred income 
and grants received from Scottish Ministers. It also reflects our new development at Pebbles Court in 
Ayr plus other stock additions and the annual rent increase.   
 
Operating Costs 
 
Operating costs are 12.4% higher than the previous year.  
 
Interest 
Sterling base rates remained low in the year to 31 March 2020 and this had a positive effect on the 
variable rate loans within our portfolio.   
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Operating Surplus for the Year 
 
Operating Surplus on ordinary activities for the year was £6.2M compared to £3.8M for 2018/19.  This 
exceeded budgeted projections due largely to the receipt of grants from Scottish Ministers and the lower 
interest payable on our variable rate based borrowings along with rentals from newly built properties, 
additional rental receipts from individual acquisitions and our continued involvement in the provision of 
temporary furnished accommodation. 
 
Reserves 
 
Financial reserves, consisting of revenue reserves set aside to manage the general risks faced by the 
association, stood at £25.6M.  This represents an increase of 3.7% over the same reserves at 31 March 
2019.  
 
Cash flow 
 
Positive cash flows of £5M were generated from our operating activities.  Interest payable was £929k 
offset slightly by interest receivable of £26k.  We spent £8.5M on our development projects, 
improvement works and acquisitions.  We drew £4.1M in new finance to support our development 
programme and also repaid capital of £1M on our housing loans as per the individual loan agreements. 
 
Capital Structure and Treasury Policy 
 
Borrowings at the year-end were £25.6M.  This debt is borrowed wholly from banks and building 
societies in the UK together with finance through the Scottish Government’s Bond finance scheme. 
 
The Board recognises that the association’s level of debt makes it important to consider its treasury 
policy.  The treasury function operates within a framework of clearly defined Board approved policies, 
procedures and delegated authorities. The association borrows on a conventional basis with loans 
typically repayable over 30 years.  These loans are mainly secured over the properties being financed. 
 
Maturity profile: the following table provides an analysis of when the debt falls due for repayment. 
 
Within one year     £   1.0M 
Between one and two years   £   1.3M 
Between three and five years   £   2.5M 
In five years or more    £ 20.8M 
Total      £ 25.6M 
 
A graphical representation of our Loan to Value (EUV-SH) can be found in the graph below: 
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Future Prospects: 
 
The association’s financial position is sound and a trend of improvement in its financial and operational 
performance has been maintained over many years.  We comply with all of our lender’s covenants 
which, based on our financial projections, will continue into the future.  The introduction of FRS 102 
altered how financial information is reported and it is now of crucial importance that any potential impact 
on our covenant position is fully examined prior to approving any new initiative. 
 
We will continue to manage our finances in a prudent manner and will also deliver value for money to 
our tenants and private owners. 
 
We will achieve this by: 
 

• Setting rents at levels which are affordable to our tenants. 

• Providing a high-quality service and 

• Tight cost control. 
 
We have a well-motivated and competent workforce of 31 employees with a relatively low staff turnover.  
We are full members of the Federation of Employers in Voluntary Housing which provides us with 
support in managing and developing our staff to foster a culture of continuous improvement. 
 
The association is following a number of strategies which we expect will contribute and inform the above 
actions. 
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The Association continues to invest in housing through its development and refurbishment programme.  
However, new build opportunities are limited due to land availability.  We will look towards innovative 
approaches in generating finance to allow much needed new houses to be delivered where possible. 
 
Our major repair programme remains a key element of our strategy to provide good quality homes for 
all of our tenants.  Our financial projections demonstrate that we will be able to meet our obligations 
under the Scottish Housing Quality Standards and the current EESSH requirements. 
 
We are aware of the possible impact that a return to an economic recession caused by the coronavirus 
pandemic may have on our tenants.  Our housing and money advice officers work closely with all our 
tenants identifying issues as early as possible to ensure that the tenant is aware of the different types 
of assistance available to them.  In this way it is hoped to minimise rent arrears and bad debt write off 
and other costs associated with rent arrears. 
 
Board of Trustees and Executive Officers 
The members of the Board of Trustees and the Executive officers are listed on page 1. 
 
The Executive Officers hold no interest in the Association’s share capital and, although not having the 
legal status of directors, they act as executives within the authority delegated by the Board of Trustees. 
 
The members of the Board of Trustees are also trustees of the charity. Members of the Board of 
Trustees are appointed by the members at the Association’s Annual General Meeting. 
 
Statement of Board of Trustees’ Responsibilities 
The Companies Act 2006 requires the Board of Trustees to prepare financial statements for each 
financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association and of the surplus 
or deficit of the Association for that period. In preparing those financial statements the Board of Trustees 
is required to:  
 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 

 

• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the Association will continue in business; and 

 

• prepare a statement on internal financial control. 
 

The Board of Trustees is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Association and to enable it to: ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 and 
the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2019. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the Association and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities. It is also responsible for ensuring the Association’s suppliers are paid promptly. 
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Based on its budgetary and forecasting processes the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation 
that the Association has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future; therefore, it continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual 
financial statements. 
 
Statement on Internal Financial Control 
The Board of Trustees acknowledges its ultimate responsibility for ensuring that the Association has in 
place a system of controls that is appropriate for the business environment in which it operates. These 
controls are designed to give reasonable assurance with respect to: 
 

• the reliability of financial information used within the Association, or for publication; 

• the maintenance of proper accounting records; 

• the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition. 
 
It is the Board of Trustees’s responsibility to establish and maintain systems of internal financial control. 
Such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material financial 
misstatement or loss. Key elements of the Association’s systems include ensuring that: 
 

• formal policies and procedures are in place, including the ongoing documentation of key 
systems and rules relating to the delegation of authority, which allow the monitoring of controls 
and restrict the unauthorised use of Association’s assets; 

• experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for important business functions and 
annual appraisal procedures have been established to maintain standards of performance; 

• forecasts and budgets are prepared which allow the management team and the Board of 
Trustees to monitor key business risks, financial objectives and the progress being made 
towards achieving the financial plans set for the year and for the medium term; 

• quarterly financial management reports are prepared promptly, providing relevant, reliable and 
up to date financial and other information, with significant variances from budget being 
investigated as appropriate; 

• regulatory returns are prepared, authorised and submitted promptly to the relevant regulatory 
bodies; 

• all significant new initiatives, major commitments and investment projects are subject to formal 
authorisation procedures, through the Board of Trustees; 

• the Board of Trustees receives reports from management and from the external and internal 
auditors to provide reasonable assurance that control procedures are in place and are being 
followed and that a general review of the major risks facing the Association is undertaken; 

• formal procedures have been established for instituting appropriate action to correct any 
weaknesses identified through internal or external audit reports. 

 
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control in 
existence in the Association for the year ended 31 March 2020. No weaknesses were found in the 
internal financial controls which resulted in material losses, contingencies or uncertainties which require 
disclosure in the financial statements or in the auditor’s report on the financial statements. 
 
Disclosure of Information to the Auditor 
The members of the Board of Trustees at the date of approval of these financial statements have 
confirmed, as far as they are aware, that there is no relevant information of which the auditors are 
unaware. They confirm that they have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been communicated to the auditors.  
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING 
    

  
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 
Auditor 
A resolution to reappoint the Auditors, Alexander Sloan, Accountants and Business Advisers, will be 
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.  
 
 
By order of the Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
A T PARK 
Secretary 
2 September 2020 
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

REPORT BY THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

AYRSHIRE HOUSING

ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

In addition to our audit of the Financial Statements, we have reviewed your statement on page 18

concerning the Company’s compliance with the information required by the Regulatory Standards in

respect of internal financial controls contained in the publication 'Our Regulatory Framework' and

associated Regulatory Advice Notes which are issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out our review having regard to the requirements relating to corporate governance

matters within Bulletin 2006/5 issued by the Financial Reporting Council. The Bulletin does not

require us to review the effectiveness of the Company’s procedures for ensuring compliance with the

guidance notes, nor to investigate the appropriateness of the reasons given for non-compliance.

Opinion

In our opinion the Statement on Internal Financial Control on page 18 has provided the disclosures

required by the relevant Regulatory Standards within the publication 'Our Regulatory Framework' and

associated Regulatory Advice Notes issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator in respect of internal

financial controls and is consistent with the information which came to our attention as a result of our

audit work on the Financial Statements.

Through enquiry of certain members of the Board of Trustees, and Officers of the Company, and

examination of relevant documents, we have satisfied ourselves that the Board of Trustees’s

Statement on Internal Financial Control appropriately reflects the Company’s compliance with the

information required by the relevant Regulatory Standards in respect of internal financial controls

within the publication 'Our Regulatory Framework' and associated Regulatory Advice Notes issued by

the Scottish Housing Regulator in respect of internal financial controls.

KEVIN G BOOTH (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)

ALEXANDER SLOAN

Accountants and Business Advisers

 

GLASGOW

2 September 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

AYRSHIRE HOUSING
22

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

•

 

 

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its surplus for the year then

ended;

•

 

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

•

 

 

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Housing (Scotland) Act 2010

and the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2019.

Basis for opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

• the Board of Trustees’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is

not appropriate; or

• the Board of Trustees has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast

significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of

at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you

where:

The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 were audited by another firm of auditors. Their audit report dated 4

September 2019 gave an unmodified audit report.

Opinion on other matters

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included

in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained

in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements 

or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to part c of the Key Judgements set out on page 31 of the financial statements, which describes the

unknown future impact that COVID-19 might have on the valuation of housing properties. Our opinion is not modified in

respect of this matter.

We have audited the financial statements of Ayrshire Housing (the 'Company') for the year ended 31 March 2020 which

comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement

of Changes in Equity and related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,

including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of

Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the exemption granted by the Financial Conduct Authority from the requirement to prepare Group Accounts

is applicable as the amounts involved are not material.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial

statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that

are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

AYRSHIRE HOUSING (Continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

•
proper books of account have not been kept by the Company in accordance with the requirements of the

legislation;

•
a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained by the Company in accordance

with the requirements of the legislation;

• the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial Position are not in agreement with the

books of account of the Company; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

KEVIN G BOOTH (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)

ALEXANDER SLOAN

Accountants and Business Advisers

Statutory Auditors

GLASGOW

As explained more fully in the Statement of Board of Trustees's Responsibilities as set out on page 18, the

Board of Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that

they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Board of Trustees determines is necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

2 September 2020

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

Use of our Report
This report is made solely to the Company's members as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of

the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To

the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the

Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we

have formed.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible for assessing the Company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Trustees either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Finanical

Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

audit report.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING  

Notes 2020 2019

£ £ £ £

Revenue 2 10,408,890 7,539,576

24

Operating costs 2 4,241,339 3,772,995
                                   

OPERATING SURPLUS 6,167,551 3,766,581

Gain on sale of housing stock 7 34,420 65,727

Interest receivable and other income 26,608 15,233

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (929,078) (907,344)

Decrease in valuation of housing 

properties on initial measurement 12(a) (4,476,468) (298,420)

Other Finance income/(charges) 11 (15,000) (4,000)
                               

(5,359,518) (1,128,804)
                                   

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 808,033 2,637,777

Other comprehensive income

Adjustment relating to opening pension 

liability 19 - (325,000)

Revaluation movements
5,677,381 - 

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit 

pension plan 19 930,000 (283,000)
                                   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7,415,414 2,029,777
                                   

The results relate wholly to continuing activities.

The notes on pages 28 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Notes 2020 2019

£ £ £ £

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Housing properties - depreciated cost 12 68,664,355 59,818,326

Other tangible assets 12 606,775 608,965
                                  

69,271,130 60,427,291

CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 13 288,244 306,738

Investments 14 1 1

Cash and cash equivalents 15 6,525,150 4,390,536
                                    

6,813,395 4,697,275

CREDITORS: Amounts falling due 

within one year 16 (2,330,471) (1,917,822)
                                    

NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,482,924 2,779,453
                                  

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 

LIABILITIES 73,754,054 63,206,744

CREDITORS: Amounts falling due 

after more than one year 17 (25,005,243) (21,736,741)

PENSIONS AND OTHER 

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 

AND CHARGES

Scottish housing association pension 

scheme 19 - (601,000)

Strathclyde pension fund 19 (602,000) (811,000)
                                    

(602,000) (1,412,000)

DEFERRED INCOME

Social housing grants 20 (3,422,426) (2,749,032)
                                    

(3,422,426) (2,749,032)
                                  

NET ASSETS 44,724,385 37,308,971
                                  

EQUITY

Revenue reserves 25,560,864 24,648,379

Revaluation reserve 19,765,521 14,072,592

Pension reserves (602,000) (1,412,000)
                                  

44,724,385 37,308,971
                                  

Chairperson Trustee Secretary

The notes on pages 28 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue and signed on

their behalf on 2 September 2020.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Notes 2020 2019

£ £ £ £

Surplus for the Year 808,033 2,637,777

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 12 876,865 853,986

Release of Capital grants 20 (2,749,032) - 

Movement in provisions - 55,792

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets (34,420) (65,727)

Movement in fair value adjustment 12(a) 4,476,468 298,420

Non-cash adjustments to pension provisions 120,000 4,000
                                    

2,689,881 1,146,472

Interest receivable (26,608) (15,233)

Interest payable 8 929,078 907,344
                                                                 

Operating cash flows before movements in 

working capital 4,400,384 4,676,360

Change in debtors 87,495 (14,402)

Change in creditors 288,933 551,625
                                    

376,428 537,223
                                    

Net cash inflow from operating activities 4,776,812 5,213,583

Investing Activities

Acquisition and construction of properties (8,501,312) (6,971,208)

Purchase of other fixed assets (25,914) - 

Social housing grant received 3,353,426 2,714,472

Proceeds on disposal of housing properties 101,870 129,171
                             

Net cash outflow from investing activities (5,071,930) (4,127,565)

Financing Activities

Loan Advances Received 4,443,066 1,556,048

Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 26,608 15,233

Interest paid on loans (929,078) (907,344)

Loan principal repayments (1,110,864) (926,990)
                             

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 2,429,732 (263,053)
                                    

Increase in cash 21 2,134,614 822,965

Opening cash & cash equivalents 4,390,536 3,567,571
                                    

Closing cash & cash equivalents 6,525,150 4,390,536
                                    

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March

Cash 21 6,525,150 4,390,536
                                    

6,525,150 4,390,536
                                    

The notes on pages 28 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING  

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Revaluation

Strathclyde 

Pension

Scottish Housing 

Association Revenue

Reserve Reserve Pension reserve Reserve Total

£ £ £ £ £

Balance as at 1 April 2018 14,259,136 (585,000) - 21,605,058 35,279,194

Other comprehensive income (61,195) (283,000) (325,000) 61,195 (608,000)

Revaluation in year - - - - - 

Other movements (125,349) 57,000 (276,000) 344,349 - 

Surplus for the year - - - 2,637,777 2,637,777
                                                                             

Balance as at 31 March 2019 14,072,592 (811,000) (601,000) 24,648,379 37,308,971
                                                                                 

Balance as at 1 April 2019 14,072,592 (811,000) (601,000) 24,648,379 37,308,971

Other comprehensive income 15,548 295,000 635,000 (15,548) 930,000

Revaluation in year 5,677,381 - - 5,677,381
Other movements - (86,000) (34,000) 120,000 - 

Surplus for the year - - - 808,033 808,033
                                                                                 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 19,765,521 (602,000) - 25,560,864 44,724,385
                                                                             

The notes on pages 28 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.
         

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Accounting

Revenue

Retirement Benefits

Going Concern

Housing Properties

Component Useful Economic Life

Building Over 60 years

Roof Over 40 years

Windows Over 30 years

Radiators Over 30 years

Boilers Over 15 years

Bathrooms Over 30 years

Kitchens Over 20 years

Wiring Over 40 years

Lift Over 20 years

Smoke detectors Over 10 years

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" and the Statement of

Recommended Practice for social housing providers 2018. The Association is a Public Benefit Entity in

terms of its compliance with Financial Reporting Standard 102, applicable for accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2019. They comply with the Determination of Accounting Requirements

2019. A summary of the principal accounting policies is set out below.

The Association recognises rent receivable net of losses from voids. Service Charge Income (net of

voids) is recognised with expenditure as it is incurred as this is considered to be the point when the

service has been performed and the revenue recognition criteria is met. 

A grant that imposes specified future performance conditions on the company is recognised only when

those conditions are met. A grant received before the revenue recognition criteria is satisfied is

recognised as a liability. For Social Housing Grant this means that the grant is recognised as revenue on

completion of the property.

Revenue comprises rental and service charge income receivable in the period, income from shared

ownership first tranche sales, sales of properties built for sale, other services provided, revenue grants

receivable and government grants released to income in the period.

Housing properties are held for the provision of social housing. Housing properties are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes acquisition of land and buildings and

development cost. The Association depreciates housing properties over the useful life of each major 

On the basis that the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Association has adequate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the Association has adopted the

going concern basis of accounting in preparing these financial statements.

The Association participates in the Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme and the Strathclyde

Pension Fund, multi-employer defined benefit schemes. Retirement benefits to employees of the

Association are funded by the contributions from all participating employers and employees in the

Scheme. Payments are made in accordance with periodic calculations by consulting Actuaries and are

based on pension costs applicable across the various participating organisations taken as a whole. The

Association accounts for this scheme as a defined benefit pension scheme in accordance with FRS 102.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.

Depreciation and Impairment of Other Tangible Assets

Asset Category Depreciation Rate

Furniture and Fittings 20% straight line

IT Systems 20% straight line

Offices 2% straight line

Let properties 20% straight line

Social Housing Grants and Other Capital Grants

Sales Of Housing Properties

Taxation

Leases 

Works to Existing Properties

Capitalisation Of Development Overheads

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued.)

Non-current assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged over the expected

economic useful lives of the assets at the following annual rates:

The carrying values of non-current assets are reviewed for impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

Social housing grants and other capital grants are accounted for using the Performance Method as outlined in

Section 24 of Financial Reporting Standard 102. Grants are treated as deferred income and recognised in income

on completion of the project to which the grant relates.

Social housing grant attributed to individual components is written off to the statement of comprehensive income

when these components are replaced. 

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line

basis over the lease term. Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are capitalised in the

Statement of Financial Position and are depreciated over their useful lives or the term of the lease, whichever is

shorter.

The Association capitalises major repairs expenditure where these works result in an enhancement of economic

benefits by increasing the net rental stream over the life of the property, a material reduction in future maintenance

costs, or a significant extention of the life of the property.

Directly attributable development administration costs relating to ongoing development activities are capitalised.

The Association is a Registered Scottish Charity and is not liable to taxation on its charitable activities.

Although social housing grant is treated as a grant for accounting purposes, it may nevertheless become repayable

in certain circumstances, such as the disposal of certain assets. The amount repayable would be restricted to the

net proceeds of sale.

First tranche shared ownership disposals are credited to turnover on completion. The cost of construction of these

sales is taken to operating cost. In accordance with the statement of recommended practice, disposals of

subsequent tranches are treated as non-current asset disposals with the gain or loss on disposal shown in the

statement of comprehensive income.

Disposals under shared equity schemes are accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income. The

remaining equity in the property is treated as a non-current asset investment, which is matched with the grant

received.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued.)

Borrowing Costs

Interest incurred on financing a development is capitalised up to the date of practical completion of the

scheme. All other borrowing costs are expensed to the statement of comprehensive income using the

effective interest rate method.

Property Development Cost

The proportion of the development cost of shared ownership properties expected to be disposed of as a

first tranche sale is held in current assets until it is disposed of. The remaining part of the development

cost is treated as a non-current asset. Surpluses made on the disposal of first tranche sales are taken to

the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Property developments that are intended for resale are included in current assets until disposal.

Financial Instruments - Basic

The Association classes all of its loans as basic financial instruments including agreements with break

clauses. The Association recognises basic financial instruments in accordance with Section 11 of

Financial Reporting Standard 102.

The Association's debt instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate

method.

Cash and Liquid Resources

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand, deposits repayable on demand less overdrafts. Liquid

resources are current asset investments that cannot be disposed of without penalty and are readily

convertible into amounts of cash at their carrying value.

Impairment

The Association asseses at the end of each accounting period whether there are indications that a non-

current asset may be impaired or that an impairment loss previously recognised has fully or partially

reversed. 

Where the carrying value of non-current assets is less than their recoverable amounts the shortfall is

recognised as an impairment loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The recoverable amount is 

the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use of the asset based on its service potential.

Impairment losses previously recognised are reversed if the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased

to apply. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued.)

Key Judgements and estimates made in the application of Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting judgements and accounting

estimates. It also requires the the Association to exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies.

The areas requiring a higher degree of judgement, or complexity, and areas where assumptions or

estimates are most signficant to the financial statements are disclosed below.

Key Judgements

a) Categorisation of Housing Properties

In the judgement of the Board of Trustees the entirety of the Association's housing stock is held for social

benefit and is therefore classified as Property, Plant and Equipment in accordance with FRS 102.

b) Identification of cash generating units

The Board of Trustees considers its cash-generating units to be the schemes in which it manages its

housing property for asset management purposes.

c) Valuation of housing properties

Given the unknown future impact that COVID-19 might have on the real estate market, the valuation on

housing properties prepared by Jones Lang LaSalle is reported on the basis of “material valuation

uncertainty”’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global. Consequently, less certainty –

and a higher degree of caution – should be attached to the valuation than would normally be the case. For

the avoidance of doubt, the valuer’s report states that the inclusion of the ‘material valuation uncertainty’

declaration above does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon. Rather, the phrase is used in

order to be clear and transparent with all parties, in a professional manner that, in the current

extraordinary circumstances, less certainty can be attached to the valuation than would otherwise be the

case.

d) Financial instrument break clauses

The Board of Trustees has considered the break clauses attached to the financial instruments that it has

in place for its loan funding. In their judgement these break clauses do not cause the financial instrument

to be classified as a complex financial instrument and therefore they meet the definition of a basic

financial instrument.

e) Pension Liability

The Association participates in a defined benefit pension scheme arrangement with the Scottish Housing

Association Pension Scheme. The fund is administered by the Pensions Trust. The Pension Trust have

developed a method of calculating each member's share of the assets and liabilities of the scheme. The

Association has decided that this method is appropriate and provides a reasonable estimate of the

pension assets and liabilities of the Association and has therefore adopted this valuation method.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

Estimation Uncertainty

a) Rent Arrears - Bad Debt Provision

The Association assesses the recoverability of rent arrears through a detailed assessment process which 

considers tenant payment history, arrangements in place and court action. 

b) Life Cycle of Components

The Association estimates the useful lives of major components of its housing property with reference to 

surveys carried out by external qualified surveyors. 

c) Useful life of properties, plant and equipment

The Association assesses the useful life of its properties, plant and equipment and estimates the annual 

charge to be depreciated based on this assessment.

d) Costs of shared ownership

The Association allocates costs to shared ownership properties on an percentage basis split across the 

number of properties the Association owns.

e) Defined pension liability

In determining the value of the Association's share of defined benefit pension scheme assets and 

obligations, the valuation prepared by the Scheme actuary includes estimates of life expectancy, salary 

growth, inflation and the discount rate on corporate bonds.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (Continued.)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 2. PARTICULARS OF TURNOVER, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING SURPLUS OR DEFICIT

Operating Operating

Operating surplus / Operating surplus /

Notes Turnover costs (deficit) Turnover costs (deficit)

£ £ £ £ £ £

Affordable letting activities 3 10,308,250 4,179,579 6,128,671 7,422,366 3,692,995 3,729,371

Other Activities 4 100,640 61,760 38,880 117,210 80,000 37,210
                                                                                                           

Total 10,408,890 4,241,339 6,167,551 7,539,576 3,772,995 3,766,581
                                                                                                           

 3.

General

Needs Shared 2020 2019

Housing Ownership Total Total

£ £ £ £

Revenue from Lettings

Rent receivable net of service charges 7,153,188 26,730 7,179,918 6,821,873

                                                                 

7,153,188 26,730 7,179,918 6,821,873

Less: Rent losses from voids 41,678 - 41,678 38,361

                                                                 

7,111,510 26,730 7,138,240 6,783,512

Grants released from deferred income 2,749,032 - 2,749,032 - 

Revenue grants from Scottish Ministers 411,173 - 411,173 452,554

Other revenue grants 9,805 - 9,805 186,300

                                                                 

10,281,520 26,730 10,308,250 7,422,366
                                                                 

1,777,547 9,622 1,787,169 1,567,393

283,240 - 283,240 240,500

Reactive maintenance costs 1,180,445 - 1,180,445 1,039,594

Bad Debts - rents and service charges 79,964 - 79,964 15,432

843,758 5,003 848,761 830,076

                                                                 

4,164,954 14,625 4,179,579 3,692,995                                                                 

6,116,566 12,105 6,128,671 3,729,371
                                                                 

2019 3,714,938 14,433
                             

PARTICULARS OF TURNOVER, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING SURPLUS OR 

DEFICIT FROM AFFORDABLE LETTING ACTIVITIES

Gross income from rent and service charges

Income from rents and service charges

Total turnover from affordable letting activities

Operating surplus on affordable letting activities

Expenditure on affordable letting activities

Management and maintenance administration costs

Planned and cyclical maintenance, including major repairs

Depreciation of affordable let properties

Operating costs of affordable letting activities
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 4. PARTICULARS OF REVENUE, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FROM OTHER ACTIVITIES

Operating Operating

Other Other surplus surplus

revenue Other Total operating / (deficit) / (deficit)

grants income Turnover costs 2020 2019

£ £ £ £ £ £

Factoring - 24,145 24,145 - 24,145 23,651

Commercial Leases - 13,966 13,966 - 13,966 13,559

Other activities 62,529 - 62,529 61,760 769 -                                                                     

Total From Other Activities 62,529 38,111 100,640 61,760 38,880 37,210
                                                                    

2019 80,000 37,210 117,210 80,000 37,210
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 5. OFFICERS' EMOLUMENTS

2020 2019

£ £

200,488 72,520
                          

48,980 16,313                          

Emoluments payable to Executive Officer (excluding pension contributions) 76,770 72,520

Pension contributions paid on behalf of the Executive Officer 18,706 16,313                          

Total emoluments payable to the Executive Officer 95,476 88,833                          

Total emoluments paid to key management personnel 248,500 232,366
                          

Number Number

£70,001 to £80,000 2 2

£80,001 to £90,000 1 1
                          

 6. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

2020 2019

No. No. 

25 25
                          

Average total number of employees employed during the year 31 31
                          

Staff costs were: £ £

Wages and salaries 886,957 868,301

National insurance costs 88,705 87,559

Pension costs 146,336 130,716
                          

1,121,998 1,086,576
                          

Aggregate emoluments payable to Officers with emoluments greater than £60,000

(excluding pension contributions)

The number of Officers, including the highest paid Officer, who received emoluments, including pension

contributions, over £60,000 was in the following ranges:-

Average monthly number of full time equivalent persons employed during the year

Pension contributions made on behalf of Officers with emoluments greater than 

£60,000
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 7. GAIN ON SALE OF HOUSING STOCK

2020 2019

£ £

Sales proceeds 104,999 132,500

Cost of sales (70,579) (66,773)                          

Gain on sale of housing stock 34,420 65,727                          

 8. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

2020 2019

£ £

On bank loans and overdrafts 912,958 907,344

Non-utilisation fees 16,120 -                           

929,078 907,344                          

The capitalisation rate of capitalised development period interest was 2.46%  (2019 - 2.46%).

 9. SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

2020 2019

Surplus For The Year is stated after charging/(crediting): £ £

Depreciation - non-current assets 876,865 853,986

Auditors' remuneration - audit services 8,750 7,190

Operating lease rentals - land & buildings 8,987 13,958                          

 10. CORPORATION TAX

 11. OTHER FINANCE INCOME / (CHARGES)

2020 2019

£ £

Net interest on pension obligations (15,000) (4,000)
                      

The Association is a Registered Scottish Charity and is not liable to United Kingdom Corporation Tax on

its charitable activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 12. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

£ £ £ £

COST / VALUATION

At 1 April 2019 55,184,110 5,104,220 394,667 60,682,997

Additions 2,596,891 5,964,435 - 8,561,326

Disposals (79,538) - (33,479) (113,017)

Revaluation 3,985,705 23,812 4,009,517

Write down on initial 

measurement (4,476,468) - (4,476,468)

Transfers 5,503,301 (5,503,301) - - 
                                                                 

At 31 March 2020 62,714,001 5,565,354 385,000 68,664,355
                                                                 

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2019 853,873 - 10,798 864,671

Charge for Year 843,758 - 5,003 848,761

Transfer to revaluation (1,652,064) - (15,801) (1,667,865)

Disposals (45,567) - - (45,567)
                                                                 

At 31 March 2020 - - - -                                                                  

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2020 62,714,001 5,565,354 385,000 68,664,355
                                                                 

At 31 March 2019 54,330,237 5,104,220 383,869 59,818,326
                                                                 

Component 

replacement Improvement

Component 

replacement Improvement

£ £ £ £

1,491,869 - 1,257,730 - 

- 1,463,685 - 1,280,094                                                                        

All land and housing properties are heritable.

2020 2019
£ £

Cost of properties 131,688,001 123,239,692

Less: Social Housing and Other Grants 71,943,829 68,081,402
                              

59,744,172 55,158,290

Depreciation (9,754,170) (8,950,976)
                              

49,990,002 46,207,314
                              

If housing properties had not been revalued, they would have been included as follows:

2019

The Association's lenders have standard securities over housing property with a carry value of £46,185,000 (2019 - 

£39,859,228).

All housing properties were fully revalued on the basis of existing value for social housing at 31 March 2020 by Jones

Lang LaSalle, Chartered Surveyors. The valuation reports have been made in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and

Valuation Manual. 

2020

Total 

Shared 

Ownership 

Completed

Housing 

Properties in 

Course of 

Construction 

Housing 

Properies Held 

for Letting

AYRSHIRE HOUSING

(a)  Housing Properties

Expenditure on Existing Properties

Amounts capitalised

Amounts charged to the statement of 

comprehensive income

Additions to housing properties include capitalised development administration costs of £68,224 (2019 - £48,041).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 12. NON CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Office Furniture Computer

Premises & Equipment Equipment Total 

£ £ £ £ £

COST

At 1 April 2019 653,801 76,087 161,920 206,836 1,098,644

Additions - - - 25,914 25,914
                                                                    

At 31 March 2020 653,801 76,087 161,920 232,750 1,124,558
                                                                    

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2019 105,420 74,509 161,920 147,830 489,679

Charge for year 9,035 1,070 - 17,999 28,104

Eliminated on disposals - - - - -
                                                                    

At 31 March 2020 114,455 75,579 161,920 165,829 517,783                                                                    

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2020 539,346 508 - 66,921 606,775
                                                                    

At 31 March 2019 548,381 1,578 - 59,006 608,965
                                                                    

(b) Other tangible assets

Let Furniture 

& Fittings
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 13. RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

£ £

Gross arrears of rent and service charges 154,998 146,304

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (57,668) (10,000)
                          

Net arrears of rent and service charges 97,330 136,304

Social housing grant receivable 69,001 - 

Other receivables 121,913 170,434
                          

288,244 306,738                          

 14. CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS

2020 2019

£ £

Subsidiary Investment 1 1                        

1 1
                        

 15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020 2019

£ £

Cash at bank and in hand 6,525,150 4,390,536                          

6,525,150 4,390,536                          

Ayrshire Homestake Limited is currently non trading. 

Ayrshire Housing holds the one issued share of Aysrhire Homestake Limited, a company registered in 

Scotland. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 16. PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2020 2019

£ £

Bank loans 1,048,343 1,044,641

Other loans 60,000 - 

Trade payables 544,056 319,845

Rent received in advance 312,382 302,525

Other taxation and social security 26,246 21,763

Other payables 261,987 136,051

Accruals and deferred income 77,457 92,997
                          

2,330,471 1,917,822
                          

 17. PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

2020 2019

£ £

Bank loans 24,598,527 21,507,506

Other creditor 406,716 229,235
                          

25,005,243 21,736,741
                          

 18. DEBT ANALYSIS - BORROWINGS

2020 2019

£ £

Bank Loans

Amounts due within one year 1,048,343 1,044,641

Amounts due in one year or more but less than two years 1,332,114 1,173,380

Amounts due in two years or more but less than five years 2,502,830 2,481,437

Amounts due in more than five years 20,763,583 18,081,924
                          

25,646,870 22,781,382
                          

Number of Effective

Properties Interest Maturity Variable or

Lender Secured Rate (Year) Fixed

Royal Bank of Scotland 574 1.95% - 5.87% 2027 - 2040 Variable & Fixed

Nationwide 257 1.4% 2022 - 2035 Variable

Bank of Scotland 231 3.85% - 5.74% 2023 - 2035 Variable & Fixed

Allia - 1.88% - 3.27% 2025 - 2029 Fixed

The Association has a number of bank loans the principal terms of which are as follows:
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AYRSHIRE HOUSING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme

Present values of defined benefit obligation, fair value

of assets and defined benefit asset / (liability)

2020 2019 2018

£ £ £
Fair value of plan assets 3,155,000 2,555,000 2,247,000

Present value of defined benefit obligation 3,105,000 3,156,000 2,787,000
                                 

Surplus / (deficit) in plan 50,000 (601,000) (540,000)

Unrecognised surplus (50,000) - - 
                                 

Defined benefit asset / (liability) to be recognised - (601,000) (540,000)
                                 

Ayrshire Housing participates in the Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a

multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 150 non-associated employers. The

Scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.

In 2019 the Pensions Trust, the administrator of the Scheme developed a method of determining

the share of assets and liabilities for individual employers. This method was adopted by the

Association in 2019 and resulted in an adjustment to the opening pension liability recognised in the

statement of financial position of (£325,000).

The Scheme operates on a 'last man standing' basis, meaning that in the event of an employer

withdrawing from the Scheme and being unable to pay its share of the debt on withdrawal, then the

liability of the withdrawing employer is reapportioned amongst the remaining employer. Therefore in

certain circumstances the Association may become liable for the obligations of a third party.

The last valuation of the Scheme was performed as at 30 September 2018 by a professionally

qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method. The market value of the Scheme’s assets

at the valuation date was £877m. The valuation revealed a shortfall of assets compared with the

value of liabilities of £121m (equivalent to a past service funding level of 89%). A recovery plan is in

place to eliminate the past service deficit which runs to 28 February 2022.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into

force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and

Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for

funding defined benefit occupational pensions schemes in the UK.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (continued.)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit

obligation

2020 2019

£ £
Defined benefit obligation at the start of period 3,156,000 2,787,000

Current service cost 148,000 119,000

Expenses 2,000 2,000

Interest expense 77,000 75,000

Contributions by plan participants 71,000 72,000

Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience 82,000 (106,000)

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions (18,000) 7,000

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial assumptions (407,000) 226,000

Benefits paid and expenses (6,000) (26,000)
                      

Defined benefit obligation at the end of period 3,105,000 3,156,000
                      

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan 

assets

2020 2019

£ £
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 2,555,000 2,247,000

Interest income 62,000 60,000

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income) -

gain (loss) 342,000 148,000

Contributions by the employer 131,000 54,000

Contributions by plan participants 71,000 72,000

Benefits paid and expenses (6,000) (26,000)
                      

Fair value of plan assets at the end of period 3,155,000 2,555,000
                      

The actual return on the plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended 31 

March 2020 was £404,000 (2019 - £208,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (coninued)

Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (continued.)

Defined benefit costs recognised in the statement of comprehensive

income

2020 2019

£ £
Current service cost 148,000 119,000

Expenses 2,000 2,000

Net interest expense 15,000 15,000
                      

Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income 165,000 136,000
                      

Defined benefit costs recognised in the other comprehensive income

2020 2019

£ £
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income) -

gain /(loss) 342,000 148,000

Experience gains and losses arising on plan liabilities - gain /(loss) (82,000) 106,000

Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the present

value of the defined benefit obligations - gain /(loss) 18,000 (7,000)

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the present value of

the defined benefit obligations - gain / (loss) 407,000 (226,000)
                      

Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus

not being recognisable) - gain / (loss) 685,000 21,000

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable (excluding

amounts included in interest cost) - gain / (loss) (50,000) - 

                      

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income - gain (loss) 635,000 21,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (continued.)

Assets

2020 2019 2018

£ £ £
Absolute Return 194,000 216,000 267,000

Alternative Risk Premia 253,000 143,000 85,000

Corporate Bond Fund 230,000 179,000 157,000

Credit Relative Value 76,000 44,000 - 

Distressed Opportunities 58,000 44,000 10,000

Emerging Markets Debt 112,000 82,000 77,000

Fund of Hedge Funds - 7,000 65,000

Global Equity 434,000 411,000 404,000

Infrastructure 186,000 107,000 41,000

Insurance-Linked Securities 85,000 66,000 61,000

Liability Driven Investment 830,000 909,000 791,000

Long Lease Property 77,000 31,000 - 

Net Current Assets 24,000 3,000 4,000

Over 15 Year Gilts 40,000 66,000 73,000

Private Debt 62,000 33,000 21,000

Property 59,000 51,000 89,000

Risk Sharing 100,000 74,000 20,000

Secured Income 175,000 89,000 82,000

Opportunistic Illiquid Credit 77,000 - - 

Liquid Credit 83,000 - - 
                                 

Total assets 3,155,000 2,555,000 2,247,000                                 

Key Assumptions

2020 2019 2018

Discount Rate 2.4% 2.4% 2.6%

Inflation (RPI) 2.6% 3.3% 3.1%

Inflation (CPI) 1.6% 2.3% 2.1%

Salary Growth 2.6% 3.3% 3.1%

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

75% of 

maximum 

allowance

75% of 

maximum 

allowance

75% of 

maximum 

allowance                                 

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life expectancies:

(years)

Male retiring in 2020 21.5

Female retiring in 2020 23.2

Male retiring in 2040 22.8

Female retiring in 2040 24.5
           

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investment in the Association's

own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by the Association.

Life expectancy at age 

65 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Assumptions as at 31 March 2020 2019 2018

%p.a. %p.a. %p.a.

Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 1.90        2.50        2.40        

Salary Increase Rate 3.00        3.70        3.60        

Discount Rate 2.30        2.40        2.70        

Expected Return on Assets

Asset Class 2020 2019

% p.a. % p.a.

Equities 59% 64%

Bonds 26% 24%

Property 13% 10%

Cash 2% 2%
                      

Strathclyde Pension Fund Defined Benefit Scheme

The Association operates a defined benefit scheme as an admitted body under the Strathclyde Pension

Fund, the assets of which are held in a separate trustee administered fund.

The administering authority has responsibility for the management of the Fund. As most of the Fund's

investments are equity based, there is an inherent risk of volatility in the investment market having a

significant effect on the value of the fund's assets. In order to mitigate this risk, the Fund holds a diverse

investment portfolio with a range of investment managers.

The following figures are prepared by the Actuaries in accordance with their understanding of FRS 102 and

Guidance Note 36: Accounting for Retirement Benefits under FRS 102 issued by the Institute and Faculty of

Actuaries.

The expected return on assets is based on the long-term future expected investment return for each asset

class as at the beginning of the period as follows:
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 19.

Strathclyde Pension Fund Defined Benefit Scheme (continued)

Mortality Rates

Males Females

(Years) (Years)

Current Pensioners 20.7             22.9                

Future Pensioners 22.2             24.6                

Net Pension Liability 2020 2019 2018

£ £ £

Fair value of employer's assets 1,767,000 1,791,000 1,653,000

Present value of scheme liabilities (2,369,000) (2,602,000) (2,238,000)
                                                      

(602,000) (811,000) (585,000)                                                      

Reconciliation of fair value of employer assets

2020 2019 2018

£ £ £

Opening fair value of employer assets 1,791,000 1,653,000 1,417,000

Expected return on assets 44,000 45,000 45,000

Contributions by members 19,000 15,000 -

Contributions by the employer 68,000 56,000 42,000

Return on assets excluding amounts included in

net interest - 55,000 149,000

Estimated benefits paid (34,000) (33,000) -

Return on assets excluding amounts included in

net interest (121,000) - -
                                                      

1,767,000 1,791,000 1,653,000                                                      

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligations

2020 2019 2018

£ £ £

Opening defined benefit obligation 2,602,000 2,238,000 2,229,000

Current service cost 134,000 98,000 95,000

Interest cost 64,000 61,000 63,000

Contributions by members 19,000 15,000 -

Changes to financial assumptions (416,000) 223,000 (149,000)

Estimated benefits paid (34,000) (33,000) -
                                                      

2,369,000 2,602,000 2,238,000                                                      

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Life expectancy is based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2016 model

with an allowance for smoothing of recent mortality experience and long term rates of 1.5% p.a. for

females. Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised

below:
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 19.

Strathclyde Pension Fund Defined Benefit Scheme (continued)

Analysis of amount charged to the statement of comprehensive income

2020 2019

£ £

Charged to operating costs:

   Service cost 134,000 98,000
                          

134,000 98,000
                          

Charged to other finance costs / (income)

   Expected return on employer assets (44,000) (45,000)

   Interest on pension scheme liabilities 64,000 61,000
                          

20,000 16,000
                          

154,000 114,000
                          

Actuarial gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

2020 2019 2018

£ £ £

Changes in financial assumptions 311,000 (223,000) 94,000

Changes in demographic assumptions 96,000

Other experience 9,000 55,000 55,000

Return on assets excluding amounts included in

net interest (121,000) - -
                                     

Total remeasurement recognised in Other

Comprehensive income 295,000 (168,000) 149,000                                     

£ % of pay

Projected current service cost (110,000) (38)

Interest on obligation (56,000) (19)

Expected return on plan assets 41,000 14
                        

(125,000) (43)
                        

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the statement of comprehensive income for

the year ended 31 March 2021

Contributions made by the Association for the year ended 31 March 2021 are estimated to be

approximately £87,000.

Net charge to the statement of comprehensive income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 20. DEFERRED INCOME

Social 

Housing

Grants Total

£ £

Capital grants received

At 1 April 2019 2,749,032 2,749,032

Additions in the year 3,422,426 3,422,426

Transferred to income (2,749,032) (2,749,032)
                                    

At 31 March 2020 3,422,426 3,422,426
                                    

Net book value

At 31 March 2020 3,422,426 3,422,426                                    

At 31 March 2019 2,749,032 2,749,032
                                    

Total at 31 March 2020 3,422,426 3,422,426
                                    

Total at 31 March 2019 2,749,032 2,749,032
                                    

2020 2019

£ £

Amounts due within one year 1,860,408 2,749,032

Amounts due in more than one year 1,562,018 - 
                                    

3,422,426 2,749,032
                                    

This is expected to be released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the following 

years:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 21. CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of net cash flow to 

movement in net debt

£ £ £ £

Increase in cash 2,134,614 822,965

Cashflow from change in net debt (3,094,723) 629,056
                               

Movement in net debt during the year (960,109) 1,452,021

Net debt at 1 April (18,161,611) (19,613,632)
                                  

Net debt at 31 March (19,121,720) (18,161,611)
                                  

At Other At

Analysis of changes in net debt 1 April 2019 Cashflows Changes 31 March 2020

£ £ £ £

Cash and cash equivalents 4,390,536 2,134,614 - 6,525,150
                                            

4,390,536 2,134,614 - 6,525,150

Debt: Due within one year (1,044,641) (3,094,723) 3,091,021 (1,048,343)

        Due after more than one year (21,507,506) - (3,091,021) (24,598,527)
                                                                      

Net debt (18,161,611) (960,109) - (19,121,720)
                                                                      

 22. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2020 2019

£ £

1,395,793 842,000
                               

 23. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

2020 2019

£ £

Other

Expiring in the next year 7,669 7,669

Expiring later than one year and not later than five years 15,338 15,338

Expiring later than five years 13,341 72,714
                      

2020 2019

Capital Expenditure that has been contracted for but has not been 

provided for in the finanical statements

The above commitments will be financed by a mixture of public grant, private finance and the 

Association's own resources.

At the year end, the total minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 

operating leases were as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 24.

 25.

 26.

The number of units of accommodation in management 2020 2019

at the year end was:- No. No. 

General needs 1,569 1,520

Shared ownership 10 11

                      

1,579 1,531
                      

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBER EMOLUMENTS

Board of Trustees members received £871 (2019 - £827) in the year by way of reimbursement of

expenses. No remuneration is paid to Board of Trustees members in respect of their duties to the

Association.

HOUSING STOCK

DETAILS OF ASSOCIATION

The Association is a company registered in Scotland under the Companies Act 2006.

The Association's principal place of business is 119 Main Street, Ayr, KA8 8BX.

The Association is a Registered Social Landlord and Scottish Charity that owns and manages social

housing property in Ayrshire.

AYRSHIRE HOUSING
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 27.

Transactions with Board of Trustees members (and their close family) were as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

26,657 23,833 
                      

Members of the Board of Trustees who are tenants 6 6 
                      

28.

29.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

At the time of approving the Financial Statements the United Kingdom is impacted by the Coronavirus

pandemic. While the Association's strong financial position means that it is well placed to manage the

impact on operations, it continues to monitor the position and update its plans accordingly. Like most

businesses, however, the virus is likely to have some impact in the forthcoming year. 

GROUP STRUCTURE

Ayrshire Housing is a housing company registered in Scotland and forms part of a group. The other

member is Ayrshire Homestake Limited and the company is registered in Scotland. The main activity of

Ayrshire Homestake Limited would be the administration of the supply of low cost home ownership.

However, the company has been dormant since its incorporation. Ayrshire Housing is considered to be

the ultimate parent. Seperate group accounts are not prepared as the Trustees are of the opinion that the

group is exempt from this requirement.

Rent received from tenants on the Board of Trustees and their close 

family members

Any transactions between the Association and any entity with which a Board of Trustees member has a 

connection with is made at arm’s length and is under normal commercial terms.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Members of the Board of Trustees are related parties of the Association as defined by Financial 

Reporting Standard 102.

AYRSHIRE HOUSING
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Executive Summary 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
The purpose of this report is to summarise for the Board of Trustees the key issues arising from our audit of the Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31 March 2020. The responsibilities of the Board of Trustees and ourselves as auditors is set out in our engagement letter. The 
report covers the following points: 

 Scope of the audit (Page 3) 
 Auditors independence and ethics (Page 4) 
 Key audit risks and how these have been dealt with (Page 5)  
 Qualitative aspects of the Financial Statements (Page 8) 
 Adjustments to the Financial Statements (Page 9) 
 Financial Statements review (Page 10) 
 Internal Controls (Page 12) 
 Audit Team (Page 13) 

 
Based on our detailed audit work which is carried out in accordance with International Standards on Auditing we have been able to satisfy 
ourselves that the Financial Statements provide a true and fair view of the Association’s affairs and have therefore issued an unqualified audit 
opinion on the Financial Statements. Our opinion is based on the signing of the letter of representation and the accounts by the Board of 
Trustees. 
 
Should you require any further information on any aspect of the audit then please contact the Audit Partner or Manager who will be pleased to 
assist you. 
 
This report is only for the use of the Association and must not be disclosed to any third party without our written consent. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person in respect of this report. 
 
A copy of this letter has also been sent to the organisation’s management for review prior to submission of the report to the Board of Trustees. 
We would like to thank the organisation’s management and staff for their assistance and co-operation during the audit. 
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Scope of the Audit 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
The scope of an external audit is set by the Financial Reporting Council. The main objective of the audit is to form an opinion as to whether the 
Financial Statements of Ayrshire Housing give a true and fair view and confirm that they are prepared under UK GAAP and comply with the 
Companies Act 2006. 
 
As part of our audit, we carry out the following work: 

 Examine, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements.  
 Assess any significant estimates and judgements made by the  
 Board of Trustees in the preparation of the Financial Statements. 
 Assess whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Association’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed. 
 Evaluate the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Financial Statements. 
 Report to you our opinion as to whether the Financial Statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance 

with relevant legislation. 
 Report to you our opinion as to whether the information contained within the Board of Trustees Report is consistent with the 

Financial Statements. 
 
Our audit methodology for the collection of audit evidence is based on our own Audit Manuals, which are continuously updated to reflect current 
auditing standards.  The methodology adopts a risk-based approach in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland). 
 
Although we are required under International Standards on Auditing to consider fraud when carrying out our audit, the purpose of our audit is 
not the detection of fraud. Responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with the Board of Trustees who should not rely wholly 
on the external audit function to discharge these responsibilities. 
 
Our audit report is made solely to the Association's members, as a body, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work is 
undertaken so that we might state to the Association’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. In those circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by law, we will not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Association and the Association’s members as a body, for our audit work, for the audit report, or for the opinions we form. 
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Audit Independence and Ethics 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
The Audit Plan for the period ended 31 March 2020 set out any matters that we are required to inform you of under the Financial Reporting 
Council’s (FRC) Ethical Standard and International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260: “Communication with those charged with 
governance”. 
 
We can confirm that as far as we are aware there are no changes to these matters or any further issues that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on the objectivity and independence of the audit team.  
 
We can specifically confirm: 

 the firm is not dependent on the audit fees;  
 the firm is not owed significant overdue fees;  
 there is no actual or threatened litigation between the firm and the Association;  
 no benefits have been received by the audit team which are not modest;  
 the firm does not have any mutual business interest with the Association; and  
 no members of the audit team have any personal or family connections with the Association or officers. 

 
At the conclusion of the audit we have also conducted a review of our independence and objectivity. In our professional opinion, our 
independence and objectivity has not been compromised and the firm has acted in accordance with the FRC’s Ethical Standard. 
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Key Audit Risks 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
The following risk areas were identified during the planning of the audit and were documented in our audit planning letter. These points were 
considered during the course of our audit and our findings for each point are set out below: 
 
Risk Audit Findings 
Management Override of Controls 
In all organisations, there is a risk that management and Board members 
have the opportunity to process transactions or make adjustments to the 
records outside the normal financial control process. Such transactions could 
result in a material misstatement within the financial statements. As a result, 
we consider this a significant risk area in accordance with the International 
Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 240 “The Auditor’s Responsibilities 
Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”. Although we do not 
suspect any incidences of management override, our audit work will be 
designed to respond to this risk in a number of ways, including considering 
accounting estimates for bias, reviewing transactions outside the normal 
scope of the business and testing a sample of journals for appropriateness. 
We are also required to consider other additional procedures as appropriate. 
 

 
Our audit work did not identify any override of financial 
controls. 

Revenue Recognition 
Under the International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 240 “The 
Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial 
Statements” there is a requirement for the auditor to presume that the 
Association could adopt accounting policies or recognise income in such a 
way that leads to a material misstatement of the reported revenue of the 
Association. Our audit work will therefore be designed to sample check 
revenue transactions to satisfy ourselves that there are no material 
misstatements in this regard. 
 

 
Our audit work did not identify any misstatement of revenue. 
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Key Audit Risks (continued) 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Risk Audit Findings 
Opening balances 
As this is our first year of engagement, we are required to carry out additional 
audit work to gain assurance over the assets and liabilities and reserves. 
 

 
We did not identify any variances form the opening balances to 
the prior year signed accounts.  

Development risk (financial) 
Ayrshire Housing has an active development programme and, as such, risk is 
increased due to the potential impact of the overall viability of each project 
and, in turn, upon the Association as a whole.  As part of our audit work, we 
will seek information relating to all significant ongoing developments together 
with details of the proposed and secured funding thereof. 
 

 
Our audit work did not highlight any issues with funding 
development which would cause a concern for the Association.  

Valuation of Housing Properties 
The Association carries its Housing Properties at valuation, and we will carry 
out audit work to provide assurance that the value of these properties is 
correctly reflected in the financial statements.  
 

 
Our audit work provided assurance that the value of the 
Association’s housing properties was correctly reflected in the 
financial statements.  

Loan covenant compliance  
We will review the Association’s management information to confirm the 
Association’s loan covenants are being monitored and complied with during 
the year. We will also confirm that the Association’s projections indicate 
continued compliance with the covenants.  
 

 
Our audit work did not highlight any instance of non-
compliance with lender covenants during the year or in relation 
to projections.  
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Key Audit Risks (continued) 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Risk Audit Findings 
COVID-19 
The COVID-19 pandemic is likely to have a significant impact on the 
operations of all Housing Associations in Scotland, including but not limited 
to, staff availability, the progress of development projects, debt recovery and 
strategic planning. During the audit we will consider any impact on your 
operations and review your projections and contingency plans. We will then 
consider the impact on your organisation and if there any implications for the 
financial statements and our audit. 
 
 
 

 
We discussed the impact upon the Association and reviewed 
various papers which demonstrate the Association’s 
considered response to the current operating environment. 
 
A note disclosing the impact of the Pandemic has been 
included within the notes to the financial statements.   
 
No revision of any Balance Sheet figures was considered 
necessary and the Going Concern basis of preparation of the 
accounts is not impacted. 
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Qualitative Aspects of the Financial Statements 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Qualitative Aspects Audit Findings 
Accounting Policies 
FRS 102 requires that entities should review their accounting policies 
regularly to ensure they are appropriate to its particular circumstances for 
the purposes of giving a true and fair view. As part of the audit we 
consider the appropriateness of these policies. 

 
We have reviewed the significant accounting policies and are 
satisfied that they are reasonable and appropriate to the 
Association’s circumstances. 

Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
FRS 102 requires that entities should use estimates and judgements 
appropriate to its particular circumstances for the purposes of giving a true 
and fair view. As part of the audit we consider the appropriateness of 
these estimates and judgements. 

 
We have reviewed the significant accounting estimates and 
judgements and are satisfied that they are reasonable and 
appropriate to the Association’s circumstances. 

Timing of Transactions 
The Board of Trustees are responsible for having accounting systems in 
place which accurately record financial transactions. During the audit we 
consider whether transactions have been recorded within the correct 
period. 

 
No cut off issues were identified during the course of the audit. 

Going Concern 
The Board of Trustees are responsible for assessing whether the 
Association is a going concern for 12 months from the date of signing of 
the audit report. As auditors we review the Board of Trustees’ assessment 
and whether we believe it is appropriate. 

 
Based on our audit work we have concluded that the Board of 
Trustees’ assessment is appropriate. 

Disclosures 
The Association is responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements. We consider whether they are presented in accordance with 
UK GAAP. 

 
We did not identify any disclosure errors within the Association’s 
financial statements. 
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Adjustments to the Financial Statements 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
During the course of our audit we may identify potential adjustments to the financial statements. All potential adjustments, which are not trivial, 
are discussed with the Association’s management. The decision as to whether to adjust the financial statements lies with the Association. As 
auditor when preparing our audit report, we will consider whether the financial statements are materially misstated. 
 
All audit adjustments were agreed by Alan Park and the financial statements adjusted accordingly.   
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 Financial Statements Review  
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Ayrshire Housing recorded a surplus for the year ended 31 March 2020 of £808,033 (2019 – £2,637,777). 
 

Revenue

Rents
Receivable

Grants
Receivables

Factoring

Other activities

Commercial
leases

 

Operating Costs Mgmt and maint
admin

Planned and
cyclical maint

Reactive maint

Depreciation

Bad debts rent
and service
charges

 
Turnover for the year totalled £10,408,890 (2019 - £7,539,576). Net 
Rents Receivable continues to be the main source of income for 
the Association amounting to £7,138,240 (69% of total turnover). 
The increase in turnover relates mainly to grant income released 
this year as a result of the completion of properties previously 
under construction. 
 

Total operating costs for the year totalled £4,241,339 (2019 - 
£3,772,995). Management and maintenance administration costs is one 
of the key drivers of expenditure in the year amounting to £1,787,169, 
increasing by £219,776 (14%) on the previous year. 
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Financial Statements Review (continued) 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Change in Operating Surpluses, Net 
Surpluses/Deficit and Reserves

0

5000000

10000000

15000000

20000000

25000000

30000000

35000000

40000000

45000000

50000000

2018 2019 2020

Year

£

Operating surplus

Total Comprehenive
income

Reserves

 

 
 
 
 
The reported operating surplus 
of £6,167,551 (2019 - 
£3,766,581) has significantly 
increased from the prior year. 
This is mainly due to grants 
released from deferred income 
in the year of £2,749,032 (2019 
- £nil) further to completion of 
property under construction.  
 
Before considering movements 
related to the pension scheme 
and revaluation of properties 
the, the Association incurred 
an overall surplus of £808,033 
(2019 - £2,637,777). The 
movement is vastly due to the 
decrease in valuation of 
housing properties of 
£4,476,468.  
 
Revaluation movements 
(£5,677,381) in the 
Association’s housing 
properties has led to total 
comprehensive income for the 
year of £7,415,414 (2019 - 
£2,029,777). 

106



 

Ayrshire Housing Management Letter for the year ended 31 March 2020      12 

Internal Controls 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Overall responsibility for maintaining adequate financial reporting systems and systems of internal control, as well as for the prevention and 
detection of fraud, irregularities, and other errors, rests with management.  
 
In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) each year we will inform you of matters that we consider should be 
brought to the attention of the Board of Trustees. 
 
It should be noted that any such matters are those that come to our attention during the normal course of our audit work and not as a result of a 
special review of the Association’s systems, procedures and controls.  

 
For the audit for the year ended 31 March 2020 there are no such matters that we wish to bring to the Board of Trustees’ attention. 
 
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Association’s staff from whom we have received every assistance and co-operation.
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Alexander Sloan 

Accountants and Business Advisers 

180 St Vincent Street 

Glasgow 

G2 5SG 

  

  

  

2 September 2020 

 

 

Dear Sirs 

 

We confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 

management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where 

appropriate, of inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves 

that we can properly make each of the following representations to you in connection 

with your audit of the Association's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2020. 

 

Accounting Records and Transactions 

1. We acknowledge as Board Trustees our responsibilities under the Companies Act 

2006, the Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Scottish Housing Regulator 

Determination of Accounting Requirements 2019 for preparing Financial Statements 

which give a true and fair view and for making accurate representations to you.  All the 

accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and 

all the transactions undertaken by the Association have been properly reflected and 

recorded in the accounting records.  All other records and related information, including 

Minutes of all Board Meetings, have been made available to you. 

 

2. The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

 

3. We confirm that we have approved all year end adjustments processed during the 

preparation of the financial statements. 

 

Internal Control and Fraud 

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 

control systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.  We have disclosed to you all 

instances of known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management, 

employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements.  We have also disclosed to you all 

information in relation to allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity’s 

financial statements communicated by current or former employees, analysts, 

regulators or others.  
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Assets and Liabilities 

5. The Association has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or 

encumbrances on the Association’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements. 

6. We have recorded or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities, both actual and 

contingent, and confirm that no guarantees that we have given to third parties.  

7. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

8. We are not aware of any failure to meet loan covenants during the year and the 

Association has not received any correspondence from any of our lenders to this 

effect. 

 

Accounting Estimates 

9. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 

measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

 

Loans and Arrangements 

10. The Association has not granted any advances or credits to, or made guarantees on 

behalf of, directors of the Board. 

 

Legal Claims 

11. We confirm no claims in connection with litigation have been, or are expected to be, 

received. 

 

Laws and Regulations 

12. There are no instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 

and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial 

statements. 

 

13. We have not identified any areas of material non-compliance with standards of 

governance and financial management, relevant standards and outcomes in the 

Scottish Social Housing Charter, regulatory requirements or our performance of 

regulatory duties. 

Related Parties 

14. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for 

and disclosed in the financial statements. We have disclosed to you all relevant 

information concerning such relationships and transactions and are not aware of 

any other matters which require disclosure in order to comply with the requirements 

of law, regulation or accounting standards. 

Subsequent Events 

15. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which require 

adjustment or disclosure have been properly accounted for and disclosed. 
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Going Concern 

16. We believe that the Association’s financial statements should be prepared on a 

going concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or 

support will be more than adequate for the Association's needs.  We have 

considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial 

statements.  We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Association's 

ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements. 

 

Pension Schemes 

17. We confirm that the Association has no plans to leave the Scottish Housing 

Association Pension Scheme or the Strathclyde Pension Scheme. 

 

18. We believe that the method adopted by the Pension Trust for calculating the 

Association’s share of assets and liabilities is appropriate and should be included in 

the financial statements.  

 

19. We have agreed the actuarial assumptions, used for the final salary scheme pension 

liability, as being reasonable. This includes the future salary increase assumption 

which is in line with the organisation’s future plans  

 

 

Yours faithfully 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Trustees on 2 September 2020 

 

 

................................................................................. (Chairperson) 

 

................................................................................. (Board member) 
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Board Meeting – 26 August 2020 

Agenda item:  8 (b)  

Subject: SHR ACS Return for the year ended 31 March 2020 

 

Prepared by: A Park 

 

We are required to submit detailed information abstracted from our Audited Financial 

Statements each year to the Regulator. There is a printout attached which shows the 

information to be returned to them. 

 

Recommendation 

The Board is asked to approve the return for submission to the Scottish Housing Regulator. 
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Landlord Name:  

RSL Reg No.:  

Report generated date:  

Approval 

A1.1 Date approved   

A1.2 Approver   

A1.3 Approver job title   

Ayrshire Housing

304
17/08/2020 09:23:24
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 Current Year Prior Year 

 £'000 £'000 

Turnover   

Operating costs   

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment   

Exceptional items   

Operating surplus/(deficit)   

   

Share of operating surplus/(deficit) in joint ventures and associates   

Interest receivable   

Interest payable   

Other financing (costs)/income   

Release of negative goodwill   

Movement in fair value of financial instruments   

Decrease in valuation of housing properties   

Reversal of previous decrease in valuation of housing properties   

Total   

   

Surplus/(deficit) before tax   

   

Tax (payable)/recoverable   

   

Surplus/(deficit) for the year   

   

Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of pension schemes   

Change in fair value of hedged financial instruments   

   

Total comprehensive income for the year   

0.0
6,202.0

0.0
26.6

(929.1)
(15.0)

0.0
0.0

(4,476.5)
5,677.4

283.4

6,485.4

0.0

6,485.4

930.0
0.0

7,415.4

34.4
(4,241.3)
10,408.9

0.0
3,832.3

0.0
15.2

(907.3)
(4.0)

0.0
0.0

(298.4)
0.0

(1,194.5)

2,637.8

0.0

2,637.8

(608.0)
0.0

2,029.8

65.7
(3,773.0)

7,539.6
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

  Share capital 
Revenue reserve 
Restricted fund 

Revenue reserve 
Unrestricted fund Restricted reserve 

Revaluation 
reserve 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Balance at beginning of the year      

Issue of shares      

Cancellation of shares      

Surplus/(deficit) from statement of comprehensive income      

Transfer from revaluation reserve to revenue reserve      

Transfer of restricted expenditure from unrestricted reserve      

Balance at end of the year      

 

  

Total excluding 
non-controlling 

interest 
Non-controlling 

interest 

Total including 
non-controlling 

interest 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Balance at beginning of the year    

Issue of shares    

Cancellation of shares    

Surplus/(deficit) from statement of comprehensive income    

Transfer from revaluation reserve to revenue reserve    

Transfer of restricted expenditure from unrestricted reserve    

Balance at end of the year    

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

23,236.4
0.0
0.0

7,415.4
(5,692.9)

0.0

24,958.9

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

14,072.6
0.0
0.0

0.0

5,692.9

0.0

19,765.5

37,309.0
0.0
0.0

7,415.4
0.0
0.0

44,724.4

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0

37,309.0
0.0
0.0

7,415.4
0.0
0.0

44,724.4
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 Current Year Prior Year 

 £'000 £'000 

Non-current assets   

Intangible assets and goodwill   

Housing properties - NBV   

Negative goodwill   

Net housing assets   

Non-current investments   

Other plant, property and equipment   

Investments in joint ventures and associates   

Total non-current assets   

Receivables due after more than one year   

Current assets   

Investments   

Stock and work in progress   

Trade and other receivables due within one year   

Cash and cash equivalents   

Total current assets   

Payables: amounts falling due within one year   

Deferred income: amounts falling due within one year   

Scottish housing grants (SHG)   

Other grants   

Total deferred income: amounts falling due within one year   

Net current assets/(liabilities)   

Total assets less current liabilities   

Payables: amounts falling due after more than one year   

Provisions   

Pension asset/(liability)   

Deferred income: amounts falling due after more than one year   

Scottish housing grants (SHG)   

Other grants   

Total deferred income: amounts falling due after more than one year   

Total long term liabilities   

Net assets   

Capital and reserves   

Share capital   

Revaluation reserves   

Restricted reserves   

Revenue reserves   

Total reserves   

  

0.0
68,664.4

0.0
68,664.4

0.0
606.7

0.0
69,271.1

0.0

0.0
0.0

288.2

6,525.2
6,813.4

(2,330.5)

(3,422.4)
0.0

(3,422.4)
1,060.5

70,331.6

(25,005.2)
0.0

(602.0)

0.0
0.0

0.0

(25,607.2)
44,724.4

0.0
19,765.5

0.0
24,958.9
44,724.4

0.0
59,818.3

0.0
59,818.3

0.0
609.0

0.0
60,427.3

0.0

0.0
0.0

306.7
4,390.5
4,697.2

(1,917.8)

(2,749.0)
0.0

(2,749.0)
30.4

60,457.7

(21,736.7)
0.0

(1,412.0)

0.0
0.0

0.0

(23,148.7)
37,309.0

0.0
14,072.6

0.0
23,236.4
37,309.0
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

 Current Year Prior Year 

 £'000 £'000 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities   

   

Tax (paid)/refunded   

   

Cash flow from investing activities   

   

Acquisition and construction of properties   

Purchase of other non-current assets   

Sales of properties   

Sales of other non-current assets   

Capital grants received   

Capital grants repaid   

Interest received   

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities   

   

Cash flow from financing activities   

   

Interest paid   

Interest element of finance lease rental payment   

Share capital received/(repaid)   

Funding drawn down   

Funding repaid   

Early repayment and associated charges   

Capital element of finance lease rental payments   

Withdrawal from deposits   

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities   

   

Net change in cash and cash equivalents   

   

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year   

  

4,776.8

0.0

(8,501.2)

(25.9)

101.9

0.0

3,353.4

0.0

26.6

(5,045.2)

(929.1)

0.0

0.0

4,443.1

(1,110.9)

0.0

0.0

0.0

2,134.7

4,390.5

6,525.2

2,403.1

7,928.1

0.0

(6,951.1)

(20.1)

129.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

15.2

(6,826.8)

(907.3)

0.0

0.0

1,556.0

(927.0)

0.0

0.0

0.0

823.0

3,567.5

4,390.5

(278.3)
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Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus or deficit – Current Year 

 Turnover Operating Costs 
Operating 

Surplus/(Deficit) 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Affordable letting activities    

Other activities    

Total    

 

Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus or deficit – Prior Year 

 Turnover Operating Costs 
Operating 

Surplus/(Deficit) 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Affordable letting activities    

Other activities    

Total    

 

10,308.2

100.7

10,408.9

(4,179.5)

(61.8)

(4,241.3)

6,128.7

38.9

6,167.6
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Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus or deficit from affordable letting activities 

 

General Needs 
Social Housing 

Supported 
Social Housing 

Accommodation 

Shared 
Ownership 

Housing Other 
Current Year 

Total Prior Year Total 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Rent receivable       

Service charges       

Gross income       

Voids       

Net income       

Grants released from deferred income       

Revenue grants from Scottish Ministers       

Other revenue grants       

Total turnover: letting       

Management and maintenance administration costs       

Service costs       

Planned maintenance       

Reactive maintenance       

Bad debts written (off)/back       

Depreciation: housing       

Impairment       

Operating costs       

Operating surplus/(deficit)       

Prior Year 

Total turnover: letting     

Operating costs     

Operating surplus/(deficit)     

7,153.2

0.0

7,153.2
(41.7)

7,111.5

2,749.0
411.2

9.8

10,281.5

(1,777.5)
0.0

(283.2)

(1,180.4)

(80.0)

(843.8)

0.0
(4,164.9)

6,116.6

7,392.3
(3,677.3)

3,715.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

26.7

0.0

26.7
0.0

26.7

0.0
0.0
0.0

26.7
(9.6)

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

(5.0)

0.0
(14.6)

12.1

30.1
(15.7)

14.4

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

7,179.9

0.0

7,179.9
(41.7)

7,138.2
2,749.0

411.2

9.8
10,308.2

(1,787.1)

0.0

(283.2)

(1,180.4)

(80.0)
(848.8)

0.0
(4,179.5)

6,128.7

6,454.9

366.9

6,821.8
(38.3)

6,783.5
0.0

452.6

186.3
7,422.4

(1,567.4)

0.0

(240.5)

(1,039.6)

(15.4)
(830.1)

0.0
(3,693.0)

3,729.4
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Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus or deficit from other activities  

 

Grants from 
Scottish 

Ministers 

Other 
revenue 
grants 

Supporting 
people 
income Other income 

Total 
turnover 

Other 
operating 

costs 

Current Year 
Operating 

surplus/(deficit) 

Prior Year 
Operating 

surplus/(deficit) 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Wider role         

Care and repair         

Investment property activities         

Factoring         

Support activities         

Care activities         

Contracted out services undertaken for RSLs         

Contracted out services undertaken for others         

Developments for sale to RSLs         

Developments for sale to non-RSLs         

Uncapitalised development administration costs         

Other activities         

          

Current Year Total         

        

Prior Year Total        

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

62.5

62.5

93.5

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

24.1
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

14.1

38.2

23.7

0.0
0.0

0.0

24.1
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

76.6

100.7

117.2

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

(61.8)

(61.8)

(80.0)

0.0
0.0

0.0
24.1

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

14.8

38.9

37.2

0.0
0.0

0.0

23.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

13.5
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ANALYSIS - UNITS 

 

General 
Needs 
Social 

Housing 

Supported 
Social Housing 

Accommodation 

Shared 
Ownership 

Housing Other 
Current 

Year Total 
Prior Year 

Total 

Units owned and managed at year end       

Units managed, not owned at year end       

Units owned, not managed at year end       

Units held for demolition at year end       

Total units owned / managed       

 

COST PER UNIT - Current Year 

 

General 
Needs Social 

Housing 

Supported 
Social Housing 

Accommodation 

Shared 
Ownership 

Housing Other Total     
Management & maintenance 
administration 

     

Planned maintenance      

Reactive maintenance      

Total direct maintenance      

Total management & maintenance      

 

COST PER UNIT - Prior Year 

 

General 
Needs Social 

Housing 

Supported 
Social Housing 

Accommodation 

Shared 
Ownership 

Housing Other Total     

Management & maintenance 
administration 

     

Planned maintenance      

Reactive maintenance      

Total direct maintenance      

Total management & maintenance      

  

1569
0

0

0
1569

0
0

0
0

0 10
0

0

10

0
0

0
0
0

1579
0

0
0

1579

1531
0

0
0

1531

£1,133

£180

£752

£933
£2,066

-

-

-
-
-

£960

£0

£0

£0
£960

-

-

-

-
-

£1,132

£179

£748

£927
£2,059
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SUPPLEMENTARY ITEMS  

 Current Year Prior Year 

 £'000 £'000 

Chief Executive emoluments excluding pension contributions   

Total key management personnel emoluments   

Total staff costs   

External auditors' fees – audit   

External auditors' fees – other   

Capitalised maintenance costs   

Capitalised development administration costs   

Capitalised interest costs    

Accumulated depreciation   

Receivables - net rental   

Total Pension deficit recovery payments due   

Housing loans due within one year   

Housing loans due after more than one year   

Other loans due within one year   

Other loans due after more than one year   

Overdraft / bridging finance   

Intra-group loans due within one year   

Intra-group loans due after more than one year   

Intra-group lending   

Intra-group receivables (trading)   

Other intra-group payables (trading)   

76.8

1,122.0
248.5

8.8

0.0

1,491.9
68.2

0.0

97.3

0.0

0.0

147.8

406.7

1,048.3

0.0

60.0
24,598.5

0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

72.5

189.8
1,086.6

7.2

0.0

1,257.7
48.0
11.6

864.7

136.3

168.0
1,044.6

21,507.5
0.0

229.2
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
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CONTEXTUAL INFORMATION 

Accounting year end  

Date financial statements authorised  

Are the financial statements qualified?  

Were there any emphasis of matter points raised in the audit report?  

External auditors' name  

Number of years since a full procurement exercise was undertaken for 
the external auditor 

 

Internal auditors' name  

Number of years since a full procurement exercise was undertaken for 
the internal auditor 

 

Do you have an Audit Committee?  

Do you have a Treasury Management Strategy?  

How do you account for capital grant income?  

Calendar year of last housing asset revaluation  

Contingent liabilities Legal action  

  LSVT contract compliance  

  Pension  

  Repayment of SHG  

  Other  

  None  

SHAPS financial assessment risk rating  

Are you appealing this risk rating?  

How many staff members not currently contributing to any scheme?  

Staff Pension Schemes 

Which scheme(s) are you members of? How many participating members in each scheme? 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

March

No
Yes

Alexander Sloan

1

Internal

2

Yes

Yes
Performance method

2020

Low

No

3

SHAPS final salary
Strathclyde Pension Fund

18
10
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RATIOS 

 

Current Year Prior Year  

Prior Year 
Sector 

Median 

Financial capacity     

Interest cover     

Gearing     

Efficiency    

Voids     

Arrears     

Bad debts    

Staff costs / turnover     

Key management personnel / staff costs  
   

Turnover per unit     

Responsive repairs to planned maintenance ratio    

Liquidity    

Current ratio    

Profitability    

Gross surplus / (deficit)     

Net surplus / (deficit)     

EBITDA / revenue     

Financing    

Debt burden ratio    

Net debt per unit     

Debt per unit     

Diversification    

Income from non-rental activities-     

 

517%

43.8%

0.6%

1.4%
1.1%

10.8%

22.1%

£6,592

1.5

1.2

59.6%
7.8%

53.4%

2.5
£12,406
£16,538

31.4%

404.8%

57.1%

0.6%

2.2%
0.7%

20.2%

15.9%

£5,121

1.8

1.8

19.9%
12.6%
30.0%

2.1
£6,784

£10,311

18.0%
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Comments
Page Field Comment

SOCI Turnover Grants from completed development project included

SOCI Other financing (costs)/income Charge per actuarial report

SOCI Decrease in valuation of 

housing properties

Decrease in initial measurement of new project

SOCI Reversal of previous decrease 

in valuation of housing 

properties

Increase in valuation of housing properties

SOCI Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect 

of pension schemes

Positive movement in both pension schemes

SOCE Surplus/(deficit) from 

statement of comprehensive 

income - Non-controlling 

interest & Totals

Large revaluation increase 

SOCF Acquisition and construction of 

properties

Development and improvment programme

SOCF Interest paid net interest

SOCF Funding drawn down New bond finance and RBS draw down on facility for 

devevlopment project

Analysis - 

Affordable Lettings

Service charges Change in reorting style

Analysis - 

Affordable Lettings

Other grants Reduced grant available in current year

Analysis - 

Affordable Lettings

Management and 

maintenance administration 

costs

Pension charge plus increased overheads

Analysis - 

Affordable Lettings

Planned maintenance New contract plus more activity

Analysis - 

Affordable Lettings

Bad debts written (off)/back Increased provision in response to pandemic

Analysis - Other 

Activities

Other activities Lock up surplus plus small surplus on aids and 

adaptations to be reinvested in future works 

Supplementary Total key management All personnel now exceed £60k threshold

Comments (i)126



Page Field Comment

Items personnel emoluments

Supplementary 

Items

Total staff costs Staff recruitment

Supplementary 

Items

External auditors' fees - audit Newly appointed auditor after procurement exercise

Supplementary 

Items

Capitalised maintenance costs Larger programme included CO and Fire Alarm 

installations

Supplementary 

Items

Capitalised development 

administration costs

Appointed Project Manager and other staffing 

adjustments

Supplementary 

Items

Capitalised interest costs Project completed

Supplementary 

Items

Accumulated depreciation Revaluation of all properties with consequent write 

back of accumulated depreciation

Supplementary 

Items

Receivables - net rental Increased provision for doubtful debts as a result of 

the pandemic

Supplementary 

Items

Total Pension deficit recovery 

payments due

Increased contribution levels

Supplementary 

Items

Other loans due after more 

than one year

Interest free loan from Scottish Government re CO 

and Fire Alarm works

Contextual 

Information

Were there any emphasis of 

matter points raised in the 

audit report?

Relating to Covid 19 and new valuation of properties

Contextual 

Information

How many staff members not 

currently contributing to a 

pension scheme?

1 Opted Out 2 Non Qualifying
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Board Meeting – 26 August 2020 

 

Agenda item:  8 (c)  

 

Subject: Financial Matters – OSCR Return for the year to 31 March 2020 

 

Prepared by: A Park 

 

Financial Performance 

 

Return of Financial Information to OSCR 

 

We are required to make an Annual Return every year to OSCR – the Scottish Charity 

Regulator. 

 

OSCR’s strategic objectives are to: 

• Help the public to have more confidence in charities 

• Help charity trustees to understand and comply with their legal duties 

• Keep registration and reporting straightforward and proportionate 

• Continually improve the way they operate and deliver services to all of their 

stakeholders. 

Charities are accountable to OSCR and the public. Once charities are registered they have to 

provide OSCR with their annual accounts and information about the way in which they have 

operated and used their resources during the year. OSCR works closely with a number of 

other organisations, including umbrella bodies and other regulators. One of their key 

objectives is to develop ways of reducing the regulatory burden on charities that operate 

under more than one regulatory regime such as Registered Social Landlords or Cross-Border 

charities. Our Annual Accounts reach OSCR via the Scottish Housing Regulator but they 

require Accounts information in a format specific to their needs. 

 

The information they require is noted below with the 2019 figures shown for comparative 

purposes: 

 

There is a significant difference between the two surplus figures due mainly to the 2020 

figures containing more grant now treated as income under FRS102; the cost of 

improvement works including the works to install CO and fire alarms to properties and the 

drawing of private finance for the Elba Street development. 
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OSCR Data for input to OSCR system once Accounts agreed

Turnover calculation - year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019

Turnover 7,238,890£   7,539,576£     

Interest receivable 26,608£       15,233£          

Capital grants received 3,843,404£   3,353,326£     

Loans drawn down 4,443,066£   1,556,048£     

Sales of housing properties 101,870£      129,171£        

Sales of other fixed assets -£             -£               

15,653,838£ 12,593,354£    

Total costs

Operating costs 4,241,339£   3,772,995£     

Interest payable 929,078£      907,344£        

Acquisition and Construction of Properties 6,941,219£   5,693,383£     

Capitalised development costs 68,224£       48,041£          

Purchase of Other Fixed Assets 25,914£       20,095£          

Major repairs capitalised 1,491,869£   1,257,730£     

13,697,643£ 11,699,588£    

1,956,195£ 893,766£        
Recommendation 

 

The Board is asked to approve the above figures for the year ended 31 March 2020 for 

submission to OSCR and to note that the signed Annual Accounts will be submitted to them 

via the Scottish Housing Regulator. 
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Board Meeting – Wednesday 26 August 2020 

 

Agenda Item: 9 

 

Subject: Operational matters 

 

Prepared by: Jim Whiston 

 

For noting 

  

Coronavirus issues (including health and safety) 

 

A fourth monthly report has been made to the Scottish Housing Regulator on the 

financial and operational impact. This was made available to Board members earlier in 

the month. This continues to show excellent performance with respect to arrears and 

letting including support for homelessness provision.  

 

We are working with our contractors to ensure that a much fuller range of non-urgent 

repairs are completed with the initial focus on clearing the backlog. This will allow a 

service closer to normal to be offered. We are looking at steps to improve call handling to 

cope with the increased volume. Whilst not fundamentally changing homeworking as the 

default, this is likely to see a small increase in office-based work for some. This will be 

carefully managed in consultation with the staff and Board and in line with current 

guidance on office-based work. 

 

The position on gas safety checks is being carefully monitored to ensure that we are 

conforming to the latest advice issued by the Health and Safety Executive and Gas Safe 

(the registration body for the gas installation industry). The reasons for any failures to 

maintain a current safety certificate are carefully recorded with our contractor to ensure 

that we are taking reasonable steps to comply with the regulations in the current 

circumstances. We have written to all tenants with an expired certificate informing them 

of the measures that we have put in place with our contractors for servicing. We are 

taking further steps to ensure compliance, including disconnections, where we believe 

there are no health grounds for not achieving access. Currently 45 dwellings have 

expired certificates (3% of the relevant stock). 

 

Board effectiveness and governance 

 

Preparations will begin to support the induction of any new Board members after the 

AGM. 

 

In the community category, an election is underway to fill two places in the community 

category.  

 

There is currently a vacancy in the tenant category. Efforts are underway to identify a 

candidate. It is suggested that a short Board meeting is held immediately after the AGM 

if there is the potential of co-option. 
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Eydent  

 

Nothing to report. 

 

Training opportunities within Ayrshire Housing 

 

This activity is in abeyance for the time being. 

 

Staffing issues 

 

See the note on our Coronavirus response above. We have appointed Debi Graham to 

provide cover during Michelle Reid’s maternity leave. 

 

Staff pension schemes 

 

There is nothing to report since the last Human Resources Committee 

 

Audit Committee  

 

The Committee meets on 26 August. 

 

Community engagement and publicity  

 

The VASA digital inclusion project, which we are supporting, is making good progress with 

10 tenants identified by our staff for support. 

 

We are actively using social media to communicate with our tenants and the general 

public and to promote the work of our partners. 

 

Notifiable events and disposals 

 

As reported previously, the Scottish Housing Regulator has been informed of our reduced 

service arrangements. The Regulator is asking us to submit a return each month on the 

impact of the Coronavirus restrictions. This covers information on arrears, voids and our 

cash position and, from June on, any legal actions. 

 

One disposal has taken place since the last meeting, a flat in MacAdam Place, Ayr which 

was previously identified for sale 

 

A consolidated report on notifiable events and disposals in 2020 will be given to the 

Audit Committee in February 2021.  

 

Annual General Meeting  

 

This will be held on Wednesday 2 September at 5.30pm by way of an online meeting. The 

Corporate Insolvency and Governance Act, 2020 makes this possible in the period to 30 

September, notwithstanding the terms of the articles of association.  

 

Newsletters to community and tenant members were issued by 6 July. Reminders about 

registering for the event have been placed on the website and our social media. One 

issue that has been raised is the question of ensuring an input to the event for those who 

do not have digital access. Whilst the digital format is likely to, in practice, expand 
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opportunities, a few members may be excluded. We have sought to address this by 

reminding members that they can appoint a proxy who can make a contribution on their 

behalf.  

 

It is suggested that meeting be restricted to the formal business with only short 

introductory presentations by the Chair and Director. The only matter which requires 

approval is the minute of last year’s meeting. It should not be necessary to put in place 

any special measures for voting. The other matters including the accounts are simply 

being presented to the members present. 
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Board Meeting – 26 August 2020 
 

Agenda Item: 9a 
 

Subject: Sustainability Policy annual review 
 

Prepared by: Jim Whiston 
 

For noting 
 

 
 
 

Introduction 

 
The association’s Sustainability Policy provides for annual reports on progress against the 

set objectives. 

 
Progress against the Policy objectives 

 
• To build houses which meet current and future needs and aspirations. 

 
Comment: the 2019 Design Guide focuses on flexibility, energy efficiency, air quality and 

careful choice of materials. This is being applied to all new projects. 

 
• To identify early opportunities to improve the thermal efficiency of the existing stock, 

eg. through new heating and ventilation systems. 

 
Comment:  We have offered to make some of our houses available to trial technology 

to store energy from solar water heating systems. This is presently the subject of a 

funding application. 

 
• To provide advice to tenants on how to further reduce the running costs of their homes. 

 
Comment: our Money Advice team continues to signpost tenants to advice on energy 

efficiency, for example recently Home Energy Scotland’s crisis funding to fuel poor 

households. Tenants in new developments are supplied with “quick start” guides for their 

homes and the Tenants Handbook has been fully updated to include further 

information on energy efficiency. 

 
• To identify opportunities to work in partnership for the benefit of tenants and the wider 

community. 

 
Comment: We are continuing to collaborate with several other landlords on building 

performance through the Hab-Lab project. We also continue to support the work of the 

Energy Agency through participation on its Board.  

  
• To ensure that our designers and contractors adopt a positive approach to 

sustainability. 
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Comment: the new Design Guide is intended to ensure that this is achieved 

with key performance indicators built into every project brief. 

 
• To avoid building on greenfield sites where there are feasible alternatives. 

 

Comment: we have a longstanding objective that at least 40% of units commissioned 

over a three-year period should be on brownfield land. For the last period 2017-2020, 

62% were on brownfield land. 

 
• To reduce the dependence on non-renewable resources. 

 
Comment: we continue to promote recycling in the office. Our contractors are expected 

to have effective waste management systems and these are monitored for each 

project.  

 
• To avoid the use of potentially environmentally damaging materials and processes. 

 
Comment: our procurement and health and safety policies, and Design Guide aim to 

apply this commitment as fully as possible. As a small example, we continue to 

exclusively use “eco” cleaning products on the office. 

 
• To review current opportunities to ensure that they meet current expectations and 

processes. 

 
Comment: in applying the asset management plan, a key task is to ensure that 

measures to bring the small number of houses not meeting the Energy Efficiency 

Standard for Social Housing (EESSH) are put in place by the end of 2020. The plan is 

due for a substantial revision in 2021. This will address the challenges of EESSH 2.  

 
• To actively seek out opportunities for innovation and the demonstration of  best 

practice. 

 
Comment: As noted above we are supporting a knowledge transfer project looking at 

domestic energy storage and continue to participate in the Hab-Lab collaboration 

project. 
 

Recommendation 
 

The Board is asked to note the progress being made against the policy objectives. 
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Board Meeting – Wednesday 29 July 2020 

 

Agenda Item: 9b 

 

Subject: Annual Assurance Statement 

 

Prepared by: Jim Whiston 

 

Recommendation: to note the supporting evidence document. 

  

 

 

     

 

     

   

  

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

   

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Introduction

The Scottish  Housing  Regulator  introduced  a requirement to produce  an assurance 
statement to confirm compliance with (or any departure from) the Regulatory Framework. 
It should be published between each April  and  October with  a  copy  sent  to  the 
Regulator. Last year the Board agreed to review the supporting evidence for, and text of, 
the assurance statement at its August meeting.

The Regulator is consulting on changes to its requirements for the Statements given the 
Coronavirus  pandemic.  It  seems  minded  to  retain  the  timeframe  for  submission  but  is 
suggesting issuing guidance on the form of the Statements to cover Coronavirus specific

compliance issues.

Supporting Evidence

A  review of  supporting  evidence  of  compliance  is  attached.  This  builds  on last  year’s 
exercise  and has  already  been  circulated  to  Board  members  for  comment. It  follows 
closely a  template  issued by the SFHA. It  confirms evidence  of  compliance.  It  notes, 
however, that steps have been introduced to manage compliance with gas maintenance 
requirements to reflect both the current  public health  situation  and health and  safety 
guidance with regard to access to properties. These are being reported on each month to

the Board.

Assurance Statement

It  is  suggested  that  a  draft  statement  is  considered  at  the  October  meeting. This will 
ensure  that  any  Coronavirus  specific  issues  can  be  highlighted  if  necessary and  in  a 
manner which reflects any new guidance from the Regulator. 

135



 

 

Supporting Evidence for the 2020 Assurance Statement  

As required by the Scottish Housing Regulator’s Regulation of Social Housing in Scotland – Our Framework (February 2019) 

See also the SHR’s Annual Assurance Statement guidance and the SFHA’s Self-Assurance Toolkit. 

The evidence and assurance mechanisms confirming our compliance are listed. Where possible this is through hyperlinks. Unfortunately, 

it has not been possible to give these to, for example, the relevant Board papers held in the Basecamp Board and staff project. These 

documents are highlighted and should be easy to find within the relevant folder. For key polices, the Board paper approving or reviewing 

them is also highlighted to give evidence that the Board received confirmation of legislative and regulatory compliance. A small number of 

internal documents are held in our document management system. These have references beginning with “id”.  They are available on 

request or can be viewed at a briefing session. 

This document builds on the 2019 exercise. The final column shows progress against the actions highlighted last year as well as listing 

new action points. 

Ref SHR Regulatory Requirement Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

(including progress since 2019) 

AN1 Prepare an Annual Assurance 

Statement in accordance with 

SHR published guidance, 

submit it to us (SHR) between 

April and the end of October 

each year, and make it 

available to tenants and other 

service users. 

 

This document and its consideration by 

the Board in August 2020. 

 

Statement made available on website 

and highlighted in the forthcoming 

Charter report.  

2019 - Ongoing compliance to be covered in 

notifiable events reporting at each Board 

meeting. Comment: now in place. 

 

2019 - Cycle of interim verification to support 

the 2020 Statement, eg the regulatory  and 

financial health check as part of the annual 

review of the delivery plan. Comment: steps 

carried out. 
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https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/regulatory-framework
https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/annual-assurance-statement
https://www.sfha.co.uk/our-work/policy-category/governance-and-regulation/sub-category/governance/policy-article/self-assurance-toolkit
https://ayrshirehousing.basecamphq.com/clients


Ref SHR Regulatory Requirement Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

(including progress since 2019) 

AN2 Notify us (SHR) during the year 

of any material changes to the 

assurance in its Annual 

Assurance Statement. 

 

“Notifiable events” a standing item in 

Board papers. Quarterly performance 

management, business planning and 

financial reporting (sample: July 2020 

Board papers).  Annual regulatory 

standards self-assessment and 

financial health check (see March 

2020 Board papers) 

 

AN3 Each landlord must have 

assurance and evidence that it 

is meeting all of its legal 

obligations associated with 

housing and homelessness 

services, equality and human 

rights, and tenant and resident 

safety. 

 

 

Housing and homelessness services: 

 

Allocations Policy reviewed to meet fully 

the Scottish Government’s guidance of 

February 2019 (see Board papers, 

August 2019). 

Annual lettings plan (see April 2020 

Board papers) which confirms support 

for local housing priorities through a 

nomination agreement with SAC and for 

homelessness services through a 

“section 5” protocol.  

Arrears Policy See the Board papers for 

August 2017, the report confirmed that 

the policy had been adjusted to adopt 

the recommendations of an internal 

audit report of February 2017. See also 

Board papers for August 2020 for 

further review. 

   

Abandoned Tenancies Policy The policy 

has been reviewed to take account of 

2019 - Commitment to review Equality and 

Human Rights Policy after its first year of 

application (June 2020) including the 

application of impact assessments in policy 

and practice reviews. Comment: reviewed in 

May 2020. 

 

2019 - To work pro-actively with SAC in a 

review of the Section 5 protocol as part of 

their Rapid Transition Plan, the development 

of which we supported. To work as an active 

partner with the Council on the delivery of a 

“Housing First” approach for homeless 

households. Comment: close liaison with SAC 

continues, eg to maintain priority lettings 

despite Coronavirus restrictions. 

 

 

2019 - Continuous scope legislative changes 

and good practice reports to ensure that 

policies remain up to date and to inform the 

internal audit programme. Comment: 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/housing-management/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/Rent-Arrears-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/housing-management/


Ref SHR Regulatory Requirement Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

(including progress since 2019) 

relevant legislation and to provide for a 

correct and consistent approach. (see 

Board papers August 2019). 

Tenants Handbook 

Tenancy agreements Tenants have 

been informed of changes through 

newsletter items and by letter.  

Neighbour Disputes and Anti-Social 

Behaviour Policy  See August 2019 

Board papers which noted that the 

policy had been reviewed to take 

account of relevant legislation. 

 

Backed by Internal audit programme 

(see Audit Committee papers February 

and  August 2019) and  

Equalities and Human Rights Policy 

based on Internal audit report (see 

Audit Committee papers, June 2019 

and review in Board papers May 2020).  

 

ongoing, for example current experiences will 

inform reviews. 

AN4 Notify us (SHR) of any tenant 

and resident safety matters 

which have been reported to, or 

are being investigated by the 

Health and Safety Executive, or 

reports from regulatory or 

statutory authorities, or 

insurance providers, relating to 

safety concerns. 

Quarterly performance monitoring (gas 

compliance) (sample: July 2020 Board 

papers 

Inspection reports from insurers for lifts 

and play areas support internal checks 

of health and safety matters.  

Health and Safety standing Board 

agenda item (sample: July 2020 Board 

papers). 

2019 - By June 2020 update Asset 

Management Plan, and Repairs and 

Maintenance Policy.  Amend and adopt fully 

the EVH/ACS Health and Safety Facilities 

Manual to centralise property related H&S 

policies. The latter will ensure the further 

development of inspection and recording 

regimes. Comment: tasks completed. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/tenants-handbook/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/tenants-handbook/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/housing-management/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/housing-management/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/housing-management/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Equalities-and-Human-Rights-Policy.pdf


Ref SHR Regulatory Requirement Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

(including progress since 2019) 

 

 

Health and Safety Committee agenda 

(sample: February 2020 H&S 

Committee papers) 

 

Asset Management Plan  

Repairs and Maintenance Policy 

 

2020 – ensure that gas safety measures 

comply with the advice from the HSE to cope 

with access restrictions, and that appropriate 

communications and risk management are in 

place as we move from lockdown. 

 

2019 - Complete the already commissioned 

programme of upgrades to fire detections 

systems (eg smoke alarms and heat 

sensors). Comment: steps in place to ensure 

compliance. 

AN5 Each landlord must make its 

Engagement Plan easily 

available and accessible to its 

tenants and service users, 

including online. 

 

 

On website and My Home 

Highlighted in 2019 Charter Report 

which also included the 2019 SHR 

Landlord Report as a filler when sent to 

our tenants and in display copies.  

 

139

http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Asset-Management-Plan-2018-2021.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/Repairs-and-Maintenance-Policy_8024.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/
https://myhome.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/auth/login?r=dashboard
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/how-are-we-performing/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/LandlordReport.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/LandlordReport.pdf


 

 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

CH1 Submit an Annual Return on the 

Charter (ARC) to us (SHR) each 

year in accordance with our 

published guidance. 

 

Considered by the Board in July 2020 

with accompanying “quarter 4” 

performance review. (see July 2020 

Board papers). 

 

CH2 Each landlord must involve 

tenants, and where relevant, 

other service users, in the 

preparation and scrutiny of 

performance information.  It 

must: 

 

• agree its approach with 

tenants 

 

• ensure that it is effective and 
meaningful – that the chosen 
approach gives tenants a real 
and demonstrable say in the 
assessment of performance 

 
• publicise the approach to 

tenants 

 

• ensure that it can be verified 
and be able to show the 
agreed approach to involving 
tenants has happened 

Active promotion of tenant membership 

of the Board aiming for competition for 

places. 

 

Ongoing engagement through the 

annually reviewed Tenant Participation 

Policy and Scrutiny Policy. Supported by 

the Tenant Information Service (TIS). 

 

Update on tenant scrutiny to the 

October 2019 Board meeting including 

input to Charter report and 

performance reporting, and the group’s 

support arrangements.  

 

Additional qualitative information 

introduced into the Board performance 

reports (eg, see July 2020 Board 

papers). 

 

Feedback form with annual landscape 

management bills. 

 

2019- Review existing Participation policy by June 

2020 to ensure more coordinated approach to 

engagement linked to the Business Plan and the 

extension of the quarterly performance reports to 

include more feedback information across the 

range of our services. Ensure includes input from 

the staff working group on customer involvement 

and feedback. Comment: due to Coronavirus 

restrictions, review postponed until June 2021 

 

2019 - Improve reporting on tenant scrutiny 

through newsletters and the annual Charter 

Report. Comment: ensure further reflected in the 

2020 Charter report. 

 

2020 – expanded coverage of tenant scrutiny in 

the 2020 Charter report. 
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https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/publications/scottish-social-housing-charter-indicators-statutory-guidance-draft-consultation
https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/publications/scottish-social-housing-charter-indicators-statutory-guidance-draft-consultation
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/Tenant-Participation-Strategy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/Tenant-Participation-Strategy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/Tenant-Led-Scrutiny-Framework.pdf


 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

 

• involve other service users in 

an appropriate way, having 

asked and had regard to their 

needs and wishes. 

 

 

Feedback facility in My Home. 

 

Service standards and feedback 

sections in the Tenants Handbook. 

 

Additional supporting evidence: 

Group’s terms of reference (id75156) 

and code of conduct (id75156). 

Board presentation (id8245) 

CH3 Each landlord must report its 

performance in achieving or 

progressing towards the Charter 

outcomes and standards to its 

tenants and other service users 

(no later than October each year). 

It must agree the format of 

performance reporting with 

tenants, ensuring that it is 

accessible for tenants and other 

service users, with plain and 

jargon-free language. 

Annual Charter Report published each 

year. Paper copy to all tenants which 

included the SHR Landlords Report. 

Also available on My Home. 

 

Consultation on format at Scrutiny 

group in September 2019 (October 

Board papers) 

 

Accessibility statement on Report’s 

front page. 

 

Additional supporting evidence: Log of 

tenant feedback (id178226) 

2020 – Ensure that the Charter report includes 

an interim comments on post March 2020 

performance.  

CH4 When reporting its performance 

to tenants and other service 

users each landlord must: 

 

• provide them with an 

assessment of performance in 

delivering each of the Charter 

Points addressed in the annual Charter 

Report. For example, it contains a 

feedback section, comparisons with 

other providers and  previous year’s 

figures. 

 

Additional supporting evidence: 

2019 - For 2020, review report text to ensure 

feedback response. Comment: ensure response 

to feedback in 2020 report.  

 

2020 – enhanced feedback section in 2020 

Charter report. 
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https://myhome.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/auth/login?r=dashboard
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/tenants-handbook/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/how-are-we-performing/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/how-are-we-performing/
https://myhome.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/auth/login?r=dashboard
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/how-are-we-performing/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/how-are-we-performing/


 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

outcomes and standards 

which are relevant to the 

landlord 

• include relevant comparisons 

– these should include 

comparisons with previous 

years, with other landlords 

and with national 

performance 

• set out how and when the 

landlord intends to address 

areas for improvement 

• give tenants and other service 

users a way to feed back their 

views on the style and form of 

the reporting. 

 

 

2019’s report questionnaire 

((id178576) and feedback log 

(id178226). 

 

 

CH5 Each landlord must make the 

SHR report on its performance 

easily available to its tenants, 

including online. 

 

Included as a filler in the 2019 Charter 

Report sent to all tenants and on the 

My Home and  the public website and 

our social media.  

2019 - Review format for 2020 report based on 

feedback from the Scrutiny Group and our 

tenants generally. Comment: committed to follow 

through in the 2020 report. 
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https://myhome.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/auth/login?r=dashboard
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

TS1 Each landlord must make 
information on reporting 
significant performance failures, 
including SHR leaflet, available to 
its tenants. 

 

 

Service standards, feedback arrangements and 

complaints process (including external redress covered  

in the Tenant handbook and website. Complaints 

Handling Procedure available on the website and 

reception counter references the SHR leaflet.  

 

TS2 Provide tenants and other service 

users with the information they 

need to exercise their right to 

complain and seek redress and 

respond to tenants within the 

timescales outlined in its service 

standards, in accordance with 

guidance from the Scottish Public 

Services Ombudsman (SPSO). 

Complaints Handling Procedure meets expectations of 

the SPSO. 

 

TS3 Each landlord must ensure it 

has effective arrangements to 

learn from complaints and 

from other tenant and service 

user feedback, in accordance 

with SPSO guidance 

Annual report to the Board on complaints and 

complements. (Board papers July 2020) 

 

Feedback on the 2019 tenant satisfaction survey with a 

summary sent to every tenant, see 

https://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/2019/11/27/what-

our-tenants-think-of-us/ 

 

 

 

2019 - Complaints handling training in 

2019 to help ensure greater capture of 

feedback on services and identification 

of learning points. Will feed into 

quarterly and annual reporting. 

Comment: staff training carried out and 

additional Board reporting introduced.   

 

2019 - Engage with Scrutiny Group 

about its interest in offering oversight. 

Comment: group reformed with TIS 

support but currently not meeting due to 

restrictions. 
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https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/publications/significant-performance-failure
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/tenants-handbook/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/tenants-handbook/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/complaints/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Corporate-Complaints-Handling-Procedure_110921.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Corporate-Complaints-Handling-Procedure_110921.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Corporate-Complaints-Handling-Procedure_110921.pdf
https://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/2019/11/27/what-our-tenants-think-of-us/
https://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/2019/11/27/what-our-tenants-think-of-us/


 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

2020: need to ensure that open to 

feedback and challenge on services 

restricted by the Coronavirus crisis. 

 

2019 - Add a “you said, we did” section 

to My Home and the Charter Report with 

updates to the Board in the quarterly 

performance reports. Comment: 

enhanced Board reports introduced. 

 

2020 – Include more feedback 

information in the Charter report, for 

example based on the 2019 Tenant 

Satisfaction survey, feedback from the 

2019 report and the new Board 

reporting. 
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Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

WB1 Each landlord must have effective 
arrangements and a policy for 
whistleblowing by staff and governing 
body/committee members which it 
makes easily available and which it 
promotes. 

 

Whistleblowing Policy based on EVH 

model. Guidance in the Board Member 

and Staff Handbooks. The  Audit Policy 

includes whistleblowing within the Audit 

Committee’s remit, eg see Audit 

Committee papers for February 2020. 

  

2019 - Whistleblowing training for staff and Board. 

Comment: covered in induction meetings and through 

the Audit Committee but needs extending to all Board 

members and staff. 
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https://bcc-production-attachments-us-west-1.s3-us-west-1.amazonaws.com/abfd7d22-b8b0-11e7-b064-e89a8f7410ca?X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Credential=AKIAIOCXHXGECQHD4N3A%2F20190906%2Fus-west-1%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Date=20190906T152705Z&X-Amz-Expires=3600&X-Amz-Signature=0aa9c135b1d18113675fbf06001e966903e5bd05431aef24f4c9c826dbb03d71&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=Host&response-content-disposition=inline%3B%20filename%3D%22Whistleblowing%20Policy.pdf%22&response-content-type=application%2Fpdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Outline-proposal-form.doc?web=1
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/Audit-Policy_109559.pdf


 

 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

 

EH1 
Each landlord must have assurance 

and evidence that it considers equality 

and human rights issues properly 

when making all of its decisions, in 

the design and review of internal and 

external policies, and in its day-to-day 

service delivery. 

 

 

 

Equalities and Human Rights subject to 

internal audit (see Audit Committee 

papers June 2019) using external 

consultant in 2019. Report has informed 

new Equalities and Human Rights Policy. 

Being applied through new equalities 

impact assessments (see examples in 

August 2019 Board papers). See also the 

May 2020 Board papers for its review. 

 

Accessibility policy revised in August 

2019 (see Board papers) to provide 

guidelines to staff on ensuring equality of 

access through our physical facilities and 

communications.  

2019 - Commitment in policy to review its application 

after one year (ie in June 2020). In the meantime, 

ensure that all policy reviews are consistent with the 

new policy. Comment: policy reviewed in May 2020 

particularly with regard to impact assessment. 

 

2019 - Staff briefing on applying the updated 

Accessibility Policy to ensure that communication 

media consistently conforms to the Policy. Comment: 

briefing as part of a staff meeting.  

 

2020 – extend communication options based on 

current experience. 

EH2 To comply with these duties, 

landlords must collect data relating 

to each of the protected 

characteristics for their existing 

tenants, new tenants, people on 

waiting lists, governing body 

members and staff. Local 

authorities must also collect data on 

protected characteristics for people 

who apply to them as homeless. 

Landlords who provide 

gypsy/traveller sites must collect 

data on protected characteristics for 

these service users. 

Data collected to meet the requirements 

of the Annual Return on the Charter (see 

report on ARC in July 2020 Board 

papers.) 

2019 - Ensure application of forthcoming guidance 

from April 2020. Comment: guidance still to be 

published. 

 

2020 – respond to guidance when published. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Equalities-and-Human-Rights-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/Accessibility-Policy.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 
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Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

SG1 Comply with, and submit information 

to us (SHR) in accordance with, our 

guidance on notifiable events (NE) 

 

Introduced as a standing item in 

Operational Matters Board paper 

(sample: Board papers  July 2020). 

Annual summary to the Audit Committee, 

see February 2020 Committee papers. 

Guidance referenced in Member’s 

Handbook.  

 

SG2 Comply with, and submit information 

to us (SHR) 

in accordance with our  

guidance on group structures 

 

This only applies to RSLs which are 

members of a group structure 

The sole subsidiary has not traded for 

several years. The Group Financial 

Regulations provide for appropriate 

arrangements if the Board wishes to 

activate the subsidiary.  

2019 - Reintroduce the reference to the previous 

Corporate Plan to reviewing the role of the subsidiary in 

the Delivery Plan (planned April 2020 edition). 

Comment: not actioned. 

 

2020 - Reintroduce the reference to the previous 

Corporate Plan to reviewing the role of the subsidiary in 

the Delivery Plan (planned April 2021 edition). 

SG3 Comply with, and submit information 

to us (SHR) 

in accordance with, our guidance on 

consulting tenants where tenant 

consent is required 

This applies only where a RSL is 

intending to either: 

dispose of tenanted properties by sale 

or transfer; or become a subsidiary of 

another organisation; or is intending 

to convert from being a company to 

become a registered society; or is 

likely to be restructured as a result of 

the actions of creditors; or intends to 

be dissolved or wound up voluntarily 

The association has no proposals for the 

disposal of tenanted stock or to join with 

another organisation. The Board is aware 

of its obligations if the situation changes. 
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https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/notifiable-events
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/group-structures-and-constitutional-partnerships
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Financial-Regulations-2019.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Financial-Regulations-2019.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

SG4 Comply with, and submit information 

to us (SHR) 

in accordance with, our guidance on 

financial viability of RSLs: information 

requirements 

 

The Board is aware of the timetable for 

submissions through its Board meeting 

and development handout. See Board 

papers July 2020 as an example of 

returns being considered. 

 

SG5 Comply with, and submit information 

to us (SHR) 

in accordance with, our guidance on  

determination of accounting 

requirements 

 

Audited accounts and auditor’s 

management letter considered by the 

August Audit Committee and Board prior 

to the 2020 AGM. 

 

SG6 Comply with, and submit information 

to us (SHR) 

in accordance with, our guidance on 

preparation of financial statements. 

 

Board relies on the auditor’s report for 

“going concern” assurance. As recorded 

in the minute of the August 2020 Audit 

Committee.  The Board Meetings and 

Development handout includes key dates 

for submissions to the SHR. The Audit 

Committee considers reports from the 

auditor twice a year.    
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https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/financial-viability-of-rsls
https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/financial-viability-of-rsls
https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/determination-of-accounting-requirements
https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/determination-of-accounting-requirements
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Ayrshire-2019-Accounts-ARMSTRONGs-FINAL-09-07-19.pdf
https://www.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/for-landlords/statutory-guidance/preparation-of-financial-statements


 

 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

OC1 Make publicly available, 

including online, up-to-date 

details of: 

− who is on its governing 

body 
− the date when they first 

became a 

member/office holder 
− how to become a 

member of the RSL and 

of the governing body, 
and 

− minutes of governing 

body meetings. 

 

Information on  Board members is on the 

website including length of service.  

 

Website and Company Profile 

encourages Community membership and 

participation on the Board. Tenants are 

also encouraged to stand for the Board 

through newsletters, the tenant 

handbook and the website.  

 

Board reports and minutes are placed 

on the website as they are approved. 

2019 - Ensure that the new Guide to Information 

signposts non-digital access to minutes etc. 

Comment: guide updated. 

OC2 Keep up-to-date 

organisational details in the 

Register of Social Landlords, 

by maintaining the 

information provided through 

the Landlord Portal. 

 

Periodic checks made that the 

information held on the SHR website 

(filing history) is up to date.  

 

The association also complies with OSCR 

(filing history) and Companies House 

(filing history) reporting requirements.  

The Head of Finance’s job description 

includes exercising the role of Company 

Secretary with the obligations attached 

to this role. 

 

OC3 The constitution of the RSL 

must comply with all 
The current articles were adopted in April 

2018 with the consent of the Regulator. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/staff/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/community-membership/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/board-meetings-2/
https://directory.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/pages/landlord.aspx?LAtoZNameQS=4E2B074C-CFA9-E311-93F1-005056B555E6
https://www.oscr.org.uk/about-charities/search-the-register/charity-details?number=27906
https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/company/SC185652
https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/company/SC185652
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/NewArts-April-2018.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

legislative requirements 

under the 2010 Act and the 

SHR Constitutional 

Standards 
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Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

GF1 Comply with the Standards of 

Governance and Financial 

Management and associated 

guidance 

Through carrying out this assurance 

review, and internal and external audit. 

Continuing with the existing regulatory 

and standards compliance self-

assessment and financial health check 

each March.  
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Ref SHR Regulatory  

Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

1.1 The governing body sets the RSL’s 

strategic direction. It agrees and 

oversees the organisation’s business 

plan to achieve its purpose and 

intended outcomes for its tenants and 

other service users. 

 

The Board is fully engaged in the 

production of the business and delivery 

plans (see Board papers August 2018, 

February 2019 and March 2019 for the 

development of the plan and March 

2020 for its review), the long-term 

financial plan (Board papers February 

2020) and the annual budget (Board 

Papers February 2020). The latest Board 

effectiveness reviews (see Board papers 

April 2020) confirm that the Board is 

satisfied with the performance 

management framework. 

 

1.2 The RSL’s governance policies and 

arrangements set out the respective 

roles, responsibilities and 

accountabilities of governing body 

members and senior officers, and the 

governing body exercises overall 

responsibility and control of the 

strategic leadership of the RSL. 

 

The Board effectiveness policy clearly 

states the duties and responsibilities of 

Board members. The Board carries out 

individual and collective skills audits 

each year. There is clear delegation to 

the Director (see Board Members 

Handbook) coupled with regular review of 

his performance (see Board papers June 

2020). 

 

1.3 The governing body ensures the RSL 

complies with its constitution and its 

legal obligations. Its constitution 

adheres to these Standards and the 

constitutional requirements set out 

below [in the Regulatory Standards]. 

 

There are standing orders (in the 

Member’s Handbook) to ensure that 

decisions are made in accordance with 

the articles of association. The articles 

acknowledge the statutory rights of the 

SHR. Each Board member also receives 

guidance on their responsibilities as a 

charity trustee.(see the Board Members 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/NewArts-April-2018.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

Handbook and the Board Effectiveness 

Policy. 

1.4 All governing body members accept 
collective responsibility for their 
decisions. 

 

Board member obligations in terms of the 

code of conduct and standing orders are 

covered in induction and formal review 

meeting - see the Board Effectiveness 

Policy and report on the 2020 reviews 

(see Board papers  April 2020). The Board 

is committed to regular reviews of its 

governance arrangements, for example 

through externally supported training and 

through internal audit. (see action and 

training plans in the Board papers April 

and June 2020). 

 

2019 - Ensure that the action plan is fully 

implemented in regard to the 2020 reviews. 

Comment: completed.  

 

2020 – ensure standard reflected in 2020 Board 

inductions. 

1.5 All governing body members and 

senior officers understand their 

respective roles, and working 

relationships are constructive, 

professional and effective. 

A performance management framework 

forms the core of the Board’s meetings 

providing for challenge to the staff team. 

The Board has formal review 

arrangements in place for reviewing the 

Director’s performance through a 

dedicated committee (Board papers June 

2020). The Board Effectiveness Policy 

and Board Members Handbook outline 

the respective roles in detail.  

 

1.6 Each governing body member always 

acts in the best interests of the RSL 

and its tenants and service users, 

and does not place any personal or 

The Board has full role descriptions in 

place for its members as part of the 

Board Effectiveness Policy. Each Board 

member is conversant with the code of 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Code-of-Conduct-Board_111069_1EF3A1B8952C9A3D718F5A54D6B9422E.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

other interest ahead of their primary 

duty to the RSL. 

 

conduct and of their primary 

responsibility to the beneficiaries of the 

association. The Board supports 

independent tenant scrutiny so as to 

provide an additional layer of 

accountability (Board  papers October 

2019) 

1.7 The RSL maintains its independence 

by conducting its affairs without 

control, undue reference to or 

influence by any other body (unless it 

is constituted as the subsidiary of 

another body). 

 

The association’s governance structure is 

designed to ensure its independence 

through a partnership between tenant 

and community members. The open 

competition for places on the Board in 

2019 and 2020 provides evidence of this.  
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Code-of-Conduct-Board_111069_1EF3A1B8952C9A3D718F5A54D6B9422E.pdf


 

 

 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

2.1 The RSL gives tenants, service users 

and other stakeholders information 

that meets their needs about the RSL, 

its services, its performance and its 

future plans 

 

All tenants are members of the 

association and receive an annual report 

and an invitation to the AGM. They are 

consulted on policy changes (including 

on rents) and the content of the annual 

Charter report. They have the opportunity 

to participate on a tenant scrutiny panel. 

Owner-occupiers receive full details of 

the services provided and have the 

opportunity to offer feedback. 

Other assurance is provided by a 

comprehensive Tenant Handbook and 

website and regular newsletters. 

Freedom of Information and 

Environmental Policy, and Guide to 

Information are clearly signposted. 

2019 - Ensuring that the association’s Freedom of 

Information obligations are met from 11 November 

2019. Comment – a new Freedom of information and 

Environmental Policy adopted to ensure compliance. 

2.2 The governing body recognises it  

is accountable to its tenants, and has 

a wider public accountability to the 

taxpayer as a recipient of  

public funds, and actively  

manages its accountabilities 

The association engages in depth with its 

tenants and other users. It promotes its 

work through publicity including a 

comprehensive website. It engages with 

a wide range of local and national 

bodies. It fully complies with the 

requirements of funding bodies and in 

addition is committed to public 

evaluation of its work.  

 

2019 Ensuring that the association’s Freedom of 

Information obligations are met from 11 November 

2019. Comment, task completed (see above). 

 

2019 - Developing further the capturing and analysis of 

complaints and other feedback. Developing clearer “you 

said, we did” reporting in the tenant newsletters. 

Comment: enhanced information on satisfaction in 

Board performance reports. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/tenants-handbook/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/your-home/keeping-in-touch/
https://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/freedom-of-information/


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

Additional assurance can be provided by: 

 . 

Annual report to the Board on complaints 

(see Board papers July 2020) 

 

A comprehensive Guide to Information. 

 

Publishing its satisfaction surveys and 

evaluations of projects. 

Annual accounts contain on a voluntary 

basis a comprehensive operating and 

financial review and details of the chief 

officer’s remuneration and expenses. 

2020 – Ensure a consistent “you said, we did” reporting 

in newsletters and Charter Reports. 

 

 

2.3 The governing body is open and 

transparent about what it does, 

publishes information about its 

activities and,  

wherever possible, agrees to requests 

for information about the work of the 

governing body and the RSL. 

 

The association complied with the 

Freedom of Information Act on the due 

date (Board papers October 2019) and 

published a Guide to Information. 

 

Board reports and minutes and details of 

the Board members are on the website. 

2019 - Ensuring that the association’s Freedom of 

Information obligations are met from 11 November 

2019. Comment: completed and kept under review. 

 

2.4 The RSL seeks out the needs, 

priorities, views and aspirations of 

tenants, service  

users and stakeholders. The governing 

body takes account of this information 

in its strategies, plans and decisions. 

 

The association consults widely with its 

tenants and other services users. It 

carries out an independent survey of 

tenant views every three years as well as 

seeking feedback from other users. It 

seeks to engage and work in partnership 

with local community organisations (eg 

through providing grants) and with public 

authorities. See November 2019 Board 

2019 - Full analysis of the currently commissioned 

satisfaction survey in the first instance to inform the 

Board’s rental review in February 2020. Comment 

survey results used by the Board.  

 

2019 - To complete a review the gathering, analysis and 

reporting of service information across functions by June 

2020. Comment: outcome includes enhanced Board 

performance reporting.  
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https://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/freedom-of-information/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/publications-2/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/annual-meetings-accounts-and-reviews/
https://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/freedom-of-information/


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

papers for the presentation on the 

Tenant survey and the February 2020 

Board papers for a report in the rent 

consultation. 

 

The Delivery Plan contained in the 

published Business Plan sets a target to 

increase the rent consultation response 

by 25%.  

 

2019 - Building on past practice, to ensure that the 

consultation on a possible rent increase from November 

2019 maximises the opportunities for informed 

comment from tenants. Comment: consultation 

promoted across a variety of media and encouraging 

informal feedback through routine service contacts.  

 

2020 – Further increase the opportunities for tenant 

input into the next rent consultation being mindful of the 

concerns of tenants at this time. 

2.5 The RSL is open, cooperative, and 

engages effectively with all its 

regulators and funders, notifying them 

of anything  

that may affect its ability to fulfil its 

obligations. It informs the Scottish 

Housing Regulator about any 

significant  

events such as a major issue, event or 

change as set out and required in 

notifiable events guidance. 

 

The Board is fully aware of its reporting 

obligations to the Scottish Housing 

Regulator and to other regulatory bodies, 

eg through the Board Member’s 

Handbook and standing Board reporting 

(sample in Board papers July 2020). The 

SHR and OSCR guidance on notifiable 

events is also part of each Board 

member’s online “policy pack” (the 

indexed set of policies in Basecamp). 
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https://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/about/our-accounts-policies/corporate-plan-and-key-strategies/
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
https://ayrshirehousing.basecamphq.com/projects/1790197-board-staff/posts


 

 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

3.1 The RSL has effective financial and 

treasury management controls and 

procedures, to achieve the right 

balance between costs and 

outcomes, and control costs 

effectively. The RSL ensures security 

of assets, the proper use of public 

and private funds, and access to 

sufficient liquidity at all times. 

 

The association has comprehensive 

financial polices including financial 

regulations and procedures. The Board 

receives regular reports allowing it to 

monitor short- and long-term financial 

positions and to ensure covenant 

compliance (management accounts 

sample: Board papers July 2020). There 

is an annual review of the long-term 

financial plan and a linked risk 

assessment as part of the annual budget 

setting (Board papers February 2020). 

The association carries out an annual 

financial health check as part of the 

Business Plan review process (Board 

papers March 2020). 

 

 

3.2 The governing body fully 

understands the implications of the 

treasury management strategy it 

adopts, ensures this is in the best 

interests of the RSL and that it 

understands the associated risks. 

 

Sound financial understanding is a key 

consideration of the Board Effectiveness 

Policy. A risk assessment is part of 

annual review of the financial plan (Board 

papers  February 2020 and a Business 

Plan appendix. This is further 

summarised in the financial health 

(Board papers March 2020). As a matter 

2019 - As part of the annual review of the financial 

plan and Business Plan (February and March 2020). 

Comment: enhanced presentation made to reflect the 

Board training review. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Business-Plan.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Business-Plan.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Business-Plan.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

of policy, the association does not use 

financial derivatives. 

 

3.3 The RSL has a robust business 

planning and control framework and 

effective systems to monitor and 

accurately report delivery of its 

plans. Risks to the delivery of 

financial plans are identified and 

managed effectively. The RSL 

considers sufficiently the financial 

implications of risks to the delivery 

of plans. 

 

The delivery of the business and delivery 

plans, the asset management plan, the 

financial plan and annual budgets are 

monitored through regular reports 

(backed where appropriate by key 

performance indicators) to the Board, for 

example the reports on performance, the 

delivery plan and the management 

accounts (in the Board papers July and 

August 2020, for example.) and the 

annual review of the Asset Management 

Plan  (in the Board papers July 2020). 

There is a comprehensive risk 

assessment contained within the 

business and financial planning 

processes (see above), and as part of 

setting the annual budget.  

 

 

3.4 The governing body ensures 

financial forecasts are based on 

appropriate and reasonable 

assumptions and information, 

including information about what 

tenants can afford to pay and 

feedback from consultation with 

The Board is fully briefed with regard to 

the annual budget and all other financial 

matters.  The Board carries out a full 

consultation with tenants before 

approving any rent increase. This is 

addition to feedback obtained through 

2019: This is identified by the Board as an area for 

continuous development not only with regard to 

further developing the annual rent consultation but 

increasing the quality of feedback information across 

our services. This is coupled with the continued 

support for tenant scrutiny. Comment: reflected in the 
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Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

tenants on rent increases. 

 

regular tenant surveys and the use of the 

SFHA affordability tool. (see the Board 

papers February 2020) and the Rent 

Policy). 

See also notes at 2.4 above on 

consultation. 

 

efforts noted to increase the quality and quantity of 

engagement, including through tenant scrutiny. 

 

2020: to demonstrate the further strengthening of 

tenant input into the next rent consultation. 

3.5 The RSL monitors, reports on and 

complies with any covenants it has 

agreed with funders. The governing 

body assesses the risks of these not 

being complied with and takes 

appropriate action to mitigate and 

manage them. 

 

Covenant compliance is monitored by the 

Board each quarter (see for example 

Board papers July 2020). Key 

performance indicators are set yearly to 

ensure more than sufficient headroom in 

terms of compliance (see Board papers 

February and March 2020 for financial 

plan and Business Plan reviews).  

 

3.6 The governing body ensures that 

employee salaries, benefits and its 

pension offerings are at a level that 

is sufficient to ensure the 

appropriate quality of staff to run 

the organisation successfully, but 

which is affordable and not more 

than is necessary for this purpose. 

The association adheres fully to the EVH 

salary scales and terms including for the 

Director.  This ensures that remuneration 

is neither more or less than required to 

attract and retain competent employees. 

There is a dedicated committee to 

oversee human resource issues including 

pension arrangements.  

 

3.7 The governing body ensures the RSL 

provides accurate and timely 

statutory and regulatory financial 

Timing for the approval of the various 

returns is given well in advance in the 

Board meetings and development 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Rent-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Rent-Policy.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

returns to the Scottish Housing 

Regulator. The governing body 

assures itself that it has evidence 

the data is accurate before signing it 

off. 

 

handout. There are robust systems in 

place for data collection which are 

periodically subject to external or internal 

audit (see Audit Policy). 
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Ref SHR Regulatory Standard Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

4.1 The governing body ensures it 

receives good quality information 

and advice from staff and, where 

necessary, expert independent 

advisers, that is timely and 

appropriate  to its strategic role and 

decisions. The governing body is 

able to evidence any of its 

decisions. 

 

Board decisions are based on full and 

timely reports. External professional 

advice is sought as necessary for 

example:  

 

Regulatory compliance (Board papers 

June 2019) 

Board Effectiveness (Board papers March 

2019) 

Director’s review (Board papers June 

2019) 

 

This has been built on the 2020 Board 

and Director reviews, see Board Papers of 

April and June 2020. 

 

4.2 The governing body challenges and 

holds the senior officer to account 

for their performance in achieving 

the RSL’s purpose and objectives. 

 

The Board has rigorous performance 

management reporting in place covering 

all business critical areas. There is 

dedicated committee reviewing the 

performance of the Director on a quarterly 

basis against the objectives of the 

Business Plan’s delivery plan. (see also 

4.1 above). This is backed by the 

programme of internal audit. 

 

 

4.3 The governing body identifies risks 

that might prevent it from achieving 

The business and financial planning 

processes, and annual budget setting 

2019 -Ongoing reviews to ensure major incident and 

business continuity processes remain appropriate. 
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Ref SHR Regulatory Standard Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

the RSL’s purpose and has 

effective strategies and systems for 

risk management and mitigation, 

internal control and audit. 

 

include comprehensive risk assessments 

(Board papers February and March 

2020). Mitigation of risk is reflected in the 

delivery plan actions and financial 

controls. There is an annual programme 

of internal audit which focuses on 

business critical risk areas whether 

financial, regulatory or representational 

(see Audit Committee papers August 

2019 for ongoing programme).  

 

Comment: being addressed through the adoption of the 

facilities H&S manual and ongoing responses to 

Coronavirus restrictions.  

 

2020: Review business continuity processes in the light 

of current experience. 

4.4 Where the RSL is the parent 

within a group structure it 

fulfils its responsibilities as 

required in our group 

structures guidance to: 
a) control the activities of, and 

manage risks arising from, its 
subsidiaries; 

b) ensure appropriate use of 
funds within the group; 

c) manage and mitigate risk to 
the core business; and 

d) uphold strong standards of 

governance and protect 

the reputation of the group 

for investment and other 

purposes. 

 

The association’s only subsidiary has 

been dormant since 2008. The Financial 

Regulations provide for the appropriate 

arrangements if the situation changes.  

 

 

4.5 The RSL has an internal audit 

function. The governing body 

The association has a comprehensive 

Audit Policy which covers these 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Financial-Regulations-2019.pdf
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Ref SHR Regulatory Standard Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

ensures the effective oversight of 

the internal audit programme by an 

audit committee or otherwise. It has 

arrangements in place to monitor 

and review the quality and 

effectiveness of internal audit 

activity, to ensure that it meets its 

assurance needs in relation to 

regulatory requirements and the 

Standards of Governance and 

Financial Management.  Where the 

RSL does not have an audit 

committee, it has alternative 

arrangements in place to ensure 

that the functions normally provided 

by a committee are discharged. 

 

requirements in detail. There is a standing 

audit committee which normally meets 

four times a year. Audits are carried out 

either internally or using external 

consultants in accordance with the policy. 

4.6 The governing body has formal and 

transparent arrangements for 

maintaining an appropriate 

relationship with the RSL’s external 

auditor and its internal auditor. 

 

These requirements are covered fully in 

the Audit Policy and in reports and 

minutes of the Audit Committee. 
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Ref SHR Regulatory  

Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

5.1 The RSL conducts its affairs with 

honesty and integrity and, through 

the actions of the governing body 

and staff, upholds the good 

reputation of the RSL and the 

sector. 

The association has adopted the sector 

standard codes of conduct for Board 

members and staff, and benefit policy .  It 

ensures that all Board members and staff 

are conversant with their terms including 

the maintenance of annual individual 

declarations through the Board and staff 

handbooks. 

 

The Board Effectiveness Policy and 

arrangements for the Director’s review (see 

above) provide additional reassurance.  

 

A report on declarations is a now a 

standing item for each November Board 

meeting (see Board Members Handout and 

the November 2019 Board papers. 

 

 2019; Confirmation given by the Director that the 

declaration of interests registers for Board and Staff 

members are up to date at the November Board meeting 

as part of the regular review of the application of the 

Board Effectiveness Policy. Comment: report submitted. 

 

5.2 The RSL upholds and promotes the 

standards of behaviour and conduct 

it expects of governing body 

members and staff through an 

appropriate code of conduct. It 

manages governing body members’ 

performance, ensures compliance 

and has a robust system to deal 

Sector standard codes of conduct are in 

place. The annual Board member reviews 

always cover the requirement for additional 

training and support on governance 

matters. The Board receives quarterly 

updates on the application of the Board 

Effectiveness Policy and the Director’s 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Code-of-Conduct-Board_111069_1EF3A1B8952C9A3D718F5A54D6B9422E.pdf
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Benefits-policy-2018.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Standard 

Evidence & assurance mechanisms Areas of development and improvement 

with any breach of the code. 

 

reviews (eg Board papers for April and June 

2020) 

 

5.3 The RSL pays due regard to the 

need to eliminate discrimination, 

advance equality and human rights, 

and foster good relations across the 

range of protected characteristics in 

all areas of its work, including its 

governance arrangements. 

 

 

  

A comprehensive review of equalities and 

human rights was completed by an 

external consultant in June 2019 (see 

Audit Committee and Board papers June 

2019). This formed the basis of the 

Equalities and Human Rights Policy. 

The policy was reviewed as required in 

June 2020. See the June 2020 Board 

papers. 

Board vacancies are always advertised 

publicly for example through local 

volunteering networks. 

 

2019 - Ensure that the policy is applied and then 

reviewed in June 2020. Comment: the policy was 

reviewed in June 2020. 

5.4 Governing body members and staff 

declare and manage openly and 

appropriately any conflicts of 

interest and ensure they do not 

benefit improperly from their 

position. 

 

Board members and staff obligations with 

regard to the codes of conduct and 

benefits policy are further summarised in 

their respective handbooks. Board and 

staff are aware of their obligations to 

maintain their declaration of interests on a 

no less than annual basis. Confirmation at 

the November 2019 Board meeting that 

these are up to date. See also 5.1 above. 

 

 

167
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5.5 The governing body is responsible 

for the management, support, 

remuneration and appraisal of the 

RSL’s senior officer and obtains 

independent, professional advice on 

matters where it would be 

inappropriate for the senior officer 

to provide advice. 

 

The Board reviews the performance and 

provides support to the Director through a 

dedicated committee. It has sought 

independent advice on how this should be 

done (Board papers June 2019). The Board 

is also aware that it can obtain 

independent advice and support through, 

for example, EVH. 

 

5.6 There are clear procedures for 

employees and governing body 

members to raise concerns or 

whistleblow if they believe there has 

been fraud, corruption or other 

wrongdoing within the RSL. 

 

The Codes of Conduct for Board and staff 

outline the standards of behaviour 

expected including an obligation to raise 

concerns including through the 

Whistleblowing Policy. The Whistleblowing 

Policy is also highlighted in the Board and 

Staff handbooks.  

 

The conditions of service include a 

grievance procedure, and the Staff  

Handbook highlights the benefits of union 

membership and a confidential counselling 

service.  

 

5.7 Severance payments are only made 

in accordance with a clear policy 

which is approved by the governing 

body, is consistently applied and is 

in accordance with contractual 

obligations. Such payments are 

monitored by the governing body to 

ensure the payment represents 

The association’s policy is outlined in the 

Entitlements, Payments and Benefits 

Policy. Severance payments are only made 

on the express authority of the Board and 

after taking the advice of EVH or other 

advisors. 

 

168
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/conditions-of-service.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Benefits-policy-2018.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Benefits-policy-2018.pdf
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value for money. The RSL has 

considered alternatives to 

severance, including redeployment. 

 

5.8 Where a severance payment is 

accompanied by a settlement 

agreement the RSL does not use 

this to limit public accountability or 

whistleblowing. The RSL has taken 

professional legal advice before 

entering into a settlement 

agreement. 

 

A settlement agreement would only ever be 

entered into after taking independent 

advice and with the authority of the Board. 

The Board would never run counter this 

standard.  
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6.1 The RSL has a formal, rigorous and 

transparent process for the election, 

appointment and recruitment of 

governing body members. The RSL 

formally and actively plans to ensure 

orderly succession to governing body 

places to maintain an appropriate 

and effective composition of 

governing body members and to 

ensure sustainability of the 

governing body. 

 

Compliance with this standard is covered 

in a comprehensive Board Effectiveness 

Policy which has been updated with the 

support of a specialist consultant. The 

Board reviews its skills requirements 

before each annual call for new members 

(Board papers March 2019, April 2020 

and June 2020). 

 

6.2 The governing body annually 

assesses the skills, knowledge, 

diversity and objectivity it needs to 

provide capable leadership, control 

and constructive challenge to 

achieve the RSL’s purpose, deliver 

good tenant outcomes, and manage 

its affairs. It assesses the 

contribution of continuing governing 

body members, and what gaps there 

are that need to be filled. 

 

The Board Effectiveness Policy provides 

for annual reviews of all Board members 

and for the endorsement of members 

seeking re-appointment. The reviews also 

inform the call for new Board members. 

See above at 6.1 for evidence. 

 

6.3 The RSL ensures that all governing 

body members are subject to annual 

performance reviews to assess their 

The Board effectiveness policy provides 

for annual individual reviews and a 

collective skills audit which then informs a 

 

170
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
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contribution and effectiveness. The 

governing body takes account of 

these annual performance reviews 

and its skills needs in its succession 

planning and learning and 

development plans. The governing 

body ensures that any non-executive 

member seeking re-election after 

nine years’ continuous service 

demonstrates continued 

effectiveness. 

 

training plan and the call for new 

members. Members with nine years’ 

service are required to address the 

continued relevance of their participation 

and to seek the Board’s endorsement of 

their continued service. See 6.1 for 

evidence including the review of a 

member with nine years’ continuous 

service.  

 

6.4 The RSL encourages as diverse a 

membership as is compatible 

with its constitution and actively 

engages its membership in the 

process for filling vacancies on 

the governing body. 

 

Every tenant is a member of the 

association and is actively encouraged to 

contribute to its work through a variety of 

means including encouragement to join 

the Board. The association is committed 

to increasing the breadth of its community 

membership through for example links to 

volunteering networks.  See the Board 

Effectiveness Policy, Board Member’s 

Handbook and Company Profile for the 

approach to encouraging an active and 

diverse community membership.  

  

 

 

 

6.5 The RSL ensures all new governing 

body members receive an effective 

induction programme to enable 

An induction programme commences prior 

to a new member’s first Board meeting 

(Board Effectiveness Policy). The yearly 

2019 - Ensure that the induction programme for Board 

members joining at the 2019 AGM meets the policy. 

Comment: Updated induction arrangements followed. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Members-Handbook.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Company-Profile-2018_109857-1.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Board-Effectiveness-Policy.pdf
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them to fully understand and 

exercise their governance 

responsibilities. Existing governing 

body members are given ongoing 

support and training to gain, or 

refresh, skills and expertise and 

sustain their continued 

effectiveness. 

 

review meetings for all members inform a 

training plan for Board members. See the 

Board papers April 2020 and the Board 

meetings and development handout. 

 

6.6 If the governing body decides to pay 

any of its non-executive members 

then it has a policy framework to 

demonstrate clearly how paying its 

members will enhance decision-

making, strengthen accountability 

and ownership of decisions, improve 

overall the quality of good 

governance and financial 

management and deliver value for 

money. 

 

In adopting the Entitlements, Payments 

and Benefits Policy, the Board confirmed 

that it would not be appropriate for any 

Board member to be paid. 

 

6.7 The governing body is satisfied that 

the senior officer has the necessary 

skills and knowledge to do his/her 

job. The governing body sets the 

senior officer’s objectives, oversees 

performance, ensures annual 

performance appraisal, and requires 

continuous professional 

development. 

The Board has established a committee to 

review the performance of the Director on 

a quarterly basis. This is done through a 

process devised with the assistance of an 

independent consultant, see the Staff 

Personal Development policy and the 

report in the Board Papers June 2020. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Benefits-policy-2018.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Benefits-policy-2018.pdf
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7.1 The governing body discusses and 

scrutinises any proposal for 

organisational change and ensures 

that the proposal will benefit current 

and future tenants. 

 

The Board has no plans to merge in any 

form with another organisation. Nor are 

there any plans to change the current 

membership structure of the association. 

The current position can be reviewed as 

part of the annual reviews of the 

Business Plan. 

 

 

7.2 The RSL ensures that its 

governance structures are as 

simple as possible, clear and allow 

it to meet the Standards of 

Governance and Financial 

Management, Constitutional 

Requirements, and Group 

Structures guidance. 

 

The Board reviewed its governance 

structure in detail through the 2018 

regulatory compliance assessment 

(Board papers June 2018). The 

subsequent annual Board effectiveness 

reviews provide an opportunity for Board 

members to reflect on the adequacy of 

the governance arrangements. (for 

example, Board papers April and June 

2020).  

 

 

7.3 The RSL ensures adequate 

consultation with, and support from, 

key stakeholders including tenants, 

members, funders (who may need to 

give specific approval) and local 

authorities as well as other regulators. 

 

As stated above there are no plans for 

“organisational or constitutional 

change”. See also 7.1. 
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7.4 The governing body is satisfied that 

the new (or changed) organisation will 

be financially viable, efficient and will 

provide good outcomes for tenants. 

 

As stated above there are no plans for 

“organisational or constitutional 

change”. See also 7.1. 

 

 

7.5 The RSL establishes robust monitoring 

systems to ensure that delivery of the 

objective of the change and of 

commitments made to tenants are 

achieved (for example in relation to 

service standards, operating costs and 

investment levels). 

 

As stated above there are no plans for 

“organisational or constitutional 

change”. See also 7.1. 

 

 

7.6 Charitable RSLs seek consent/notify 

OSCR of changes to their constitution 

and other changes as appropriate. 

 

As stated above there are no plans for 

“organisational or constitutional 

change”. See also 7.1. 

 

 

7.7 The governing body ensures that 

disposals, acquisitions and 

investments fit with the RSL’s 

objectives and business plan, and that 

its strategy is sustainable.  It considers 

these taking account of appropriate 

professional advice and value for 

money - whether as part of a broader 

strategy or on a case by case basis. 

 

All development investment decisions 

are set within the parameters of the 

business and financial plans which 

include risk assessment and sensitivity 

analysis (Board papers February and 

March 2020), and the Risk Management 

Policy.  

The policy on individual disposals is 

contained within the Asset Management 

Plan.  
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Asset-Management-Plan-2018-2021.pdf
http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Asset-Management-Plan-2018-2021.pdf


 

 

Ref SHR Regulatory  

Requirement/Standard 
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7.8 The RSL complies with regulatory 
guidance on tenant consultation, 
ballots and authorisation. 

 

The association has no plans to seek 

“organisational or constitutional 

change”. 

 

7.9 The RSL notifies the Regulator of 
disposals in accordance with 
regulatory guidance. 

 

The association always complies with 

regulatory or statutory requirements as 

confirmed in the Financial Regulations.  

 

All notifications to the Regulator are 

reported to the Board meeting following 

the notification.  

2019 - Annual summary of notifiable events and 

disposals to the Audit Committee. Comment: first report 

to the February Audit Committee. 

7.10 The RSL only agrees fixed or floating 

charges where the assets are used to 

support core activities. This should 

exclude providing security in relation 

to staff pensions. 

 

Such charges are only provided for in 

connection with investment decisions in 

accordance with the business and 

financial plans. 

2019 - Amend financial regulations to preclude security 

regarding pensions. Comment: will be amended at the 

next comprehensive review. 

 

2020 - Amend financial regulations to preclude security 

regarding pensions at the next comprehensive review. 
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http://www.ayrshirehousing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Financial-Regulations-2019.pdf
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